
 
 
Hillsborough Board of Commissioners Agenda 
7 p.m. May 9, 2016 
Town Barn, 101 E. Orange St. 
 
 
Compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act interpreter services and/or special sound equipment is available on 
request. If you are disabled and need assistance with reasonable accommodations, call the Town Clerk’s Office at 919-
732-1270, ext. 71. 
 
 
Please use the Bookmark Feature to navigate and view the Item Attachments. 
 
1. PUBLIC CHARGE  

The Hillsborough Board of Commissioners pledges to the citizens of Hillsborough its respect. The Board asks its citizens to 
conduct themselves in a respectful, courteous manner, both with the Board and with fellow citizens. At any time should any 
member of the Board or any citizen fail to observe this public charge, the Mayor or their designee will ask the offending person to 
leave the meeting until that individual regains personal control. Should decorum fail to be restored, the Mayor or their designee 
will recess the meeting until such time that a genuine commitment to this public charge is observed. 

 
2. AUDIENCE COMMENTS REGARDING MATTERS NOT ON THE PRINTED AGENDA 
 
3. AGENDA CHANGES & AGENDA APPROVAL 
 
4. PRESENTATIONS 

 Recognition of Citizen Academy Graduates and Presentation of Certificates  
 Presentation and Swearing in of Police Officer William Felts 

  
5. INTERVIEWS 

A. Board of Adjustment – Interview Rob Bray for an out-of-town position 
B. Orange County Animal Services Advisory Board – Interview Kimberly Rider for appointment as the Town of 

Hillsborough representative 
C. Orange County Animal Services Advisory Board – Interview Victoria Hudson for appointment as the Town of 

Hillsborough representative 
  

6. APPOINTMENTS 
 Board of Adjustment – Adopt a resolution requesting the Board of County Commissioners to appoint Rob Bray to 

an out-of-town seat with a term ending June 30, 2017 
 Orange County Animal Services Advisory Board – Adopt a resolution requesting the Board of County 

Commissioners to appoint a Town of Hillsborough representative with a term ending June 30, 2018 
 
7. COMMITTEE REPORTS (CRITICAL) 
 
8. REPORT FROM THE TOWN MANAGER 
   
9. DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS  
 
10. ITEMS FOR DECISION – CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Minutes of the Board of Commissioners April 11, 2016 Regular Meeting, Minutes of the Board of Commissioners 
April 11, 2016 Regular Meeting Closed Session, and Minutes of the Board of Commissioners April 25, 2016 
Work Session 

B. Budget Amendments 



C. Receive report from School Adequate Public Facility Ordinance Technical Committee regarding school data and 
projections 

D. Interlocal agreement regarding funding and responsibilities related to the Community Home Trust  
E. Traffic Calming Policy revision 
F. Approve letter of support for the agreement between the Occoneechee Band of the Saponi Nation and Orange 

County to re-establish a village site in Hillsborough 
G. Approve resolution authorizing the Orange County FY 2016-2017 HOME program design 
H. Mental Health Awareness Month Proclamation 
I. Consider Professional Services Agreement with EMA Resources, Inc. for Water Plant residuals removal 
J. Consider acceptance of water & sewer facilities at Waterstone Estates, Phase 2, and start of 1-year warranty 

period 
K. Consider changing the name of the Old Water Plant facility to the "Adron F. Thompson Water/Sewer Facility"  
L. Encroachment agreement request for 125 Bonaparte Drive 
M. Interlocal Agreement for Orange County to administer collection of stormwater fees and charges to be levied 

against and charged to properties located within the town 
N. Authorize Manager to enter into contracts for design and survey work related to relocating town hall annex and 

conceptual design for police and fire station 
 

11. ITEMS FOR DECISION – REGULAR AGENDA 
A. Discussion of service impact report related to the potential annexation of Northside Mobile Home Park 
B. Receive request from Mystery Brewing to authorize use of Riverwalk for a “parade” on Saturday June 18 
C. Receive request from Classical American Homes Preservation Trust to install pedestrian warning and trail 

crossing signs on Elizabeth Brady Road 
D. Receive and discuss conceptual site layout for the train station portion of the town’s 20 acres on Orange Grove 

Street 
E. Ordinance revision amending Town Code, Section 11-17, Specifications for Solid Waste receptacles 
F. Itinerant Merchant policy 
 

12. CLOSED SESSION 
A. Closed Session as authorized by North Carolina General Statute Section 143-318.11(a)(5) to discuss and give 

direction to staff regarding negotiating terms for the possible acquisition of real property (the former Colonial Inn, 
153 W. King St.) 

 
13. ADJOURN   
 
 
 



 
 

Board of Commissioners 
Agenda Abstract Form 

 

Meeting Date:   ______May 9, 2016________ 
 

Department:   ______Administration________ 
 

Public Hearing:    Yes    No 
 

Date of Public Hearing:   __________________________ 

 
For Clerk’s Use Only 

AGENDA ITEM # 
 

 
      
 

 
    4.A 

 
      

Consent 
Agenda 

Regular 
Agenda 

Closed 
Session 

 

 

PRESENTER/INFORMATION CONTACT:    Eric Peterson, Town Manager 
 

ITEM TO BE CONSIDERED 
Subject:    
Recognition of Citizens Academy Graduates and Presentation of Certificates 

 
Attachment(s):   
n/a 

 
Brief Summary:   
The Town of Hillsborough’s Citizens Academy was held from March 16 through April 20. Participants met weekly and 
received instruction on a variety of topics:  
 

 Foundation of Town Government 
 Advisory Boards 

 Planning 

 Utilities System 

 Police & Fire 

 Town Operations 

 Budget Management 
 
The program is aimed at helping citizens increase their knowledge of town government as well as their interest and 
ability in influencing and participating in town decisions. 

 
Action Requested:   
none 

 
ISSUE OVERVIEW 

Background Information & Issue Summary:   
n/a 

 
Financial Impacts:   
 n/a 

 
Staff Recommendations/Comments:   
n/a 

 



 
 

Board of Commissioners 
Agenda Abstract Form 

 

Meeting Date:   ______May 9, 2016____________ 
 

Department:   _________Police____________ 
 

Public Hearing:    Yes    No 
 

Date of Public Hearing:   __________________________ 

  
For Clerk’s Use Only 

AGENDA ITEM # 
 

 
      
 

 
  4.B 

 
      

Consent 
Agenda 

Regular 
Agenda 

Closed 
Session 

 

 

PRESENTER/INFORMATION CONTACT:      Chief Duane Hampton 
 

ITEM TO BE CONSIDERED 
Subject:    
Introduction of Officer William Felts and public reaffirmation of his Oath of Office 

 
Attachment(s):   
 

 
Brief Summary:   
Recently hired Officer William Felts will be introduced to the board and he will publically reaffirm his Oath of Office as 
administered by the Mayor. 

 
Action Requested:   
n/a 

 
ISSUE OVERVIEW 

Background Information & Issue Summary:   
n/a 

 
Financial Impacts:   
n/a 

 
Staff Recommendations/Comments:   
n/a 

 
 



 
 

Board of Commissioners 
Agenda Abstract Form 

 

Meeting Date:   __May 9, 2016_______________ 
 

Department:   _Planning__________________ 
 

Public Hearing:    Yes    No 
 

Date of Public Hearing:   __________________________ 

  
For Clerk’s Use Only 

AGENDA ITEM # 
 

 
      
 

 
   5.A 

 
      

Consent 
Agenda 

Regular 
Agenda 

Closed 
Session 

 

 

PRESENTER/INFORMATION CONTACT:    Margaret Hauth, Planning Director 
 
ITEM TO BE CONSIDERED 

Subject:    
Interview Rob Bray for out-of-town position on the Board of Adjustment 

 
Attachment(s):   
Application 

 
Brief Summary:   
Mr. Bray has expressed interest in serving on the Board of Adjustment and attended a board meeting to be 
interviewed. 

 
Action Requested:   
Conduct interview 

 
ISSUE OVERVIEW 

Background Information & Issue Summary:   
 

 
Financial Impacts:   
 

 
Staff Recommendations/Comments:   
 

 
 





 
 

Board of Commissioners 
Agenda Abstract Form 

 

Meeting Date: May 9, 2016 
  

Department: Administration 
  

Public Hearing:   Yes    No 
  

Date of Public Hearing:  
 

  
For Clerk’s Use Only 

AGENDA ITEM # 
 

 
      
 

 
5.B 

 
      

Consent 
Agenda 

Regular 
Agenda 

Closed 
Session 

 

 

PRESENTER/INFORMATION CONTACT: Katherine Cathey, Human Resources Director/Town Clerk 
 
ITEM TO BE CONSIDERED 

Subject:    
Orange County Animal Services Advisory Board – Interview Kimberly Rider for appointment as the Town of 
Hillsborough representative 

 
Attachment(s):   
Volunteer application 

 
Brief Summary:   
Ms. Kimberly Rider has volunteered to serve as the Town of Hillsborough representative on the Animal Services 
Advisory Board. One other applicant will be interviewed for consideration as the Town of Hillsborough representative 
on the Animal Services Advisory Board.  
 
The Orange County Board of County Commissioners will make the appointment on June 7 or June 21, 2016. The 
term will end on June 30, 2018. This would be a first full term for the appointee, and she will be eligible for a second 
full term running from June 30, 2018 to June 30, 2021. 

 
Action Requested:   
Conduct interview. 

 
ISSUE OVERVIEW 

Background Information & Issue Summary:   
The Animal Services Advisory Board is charged to advise the Board of County Commissioners on matters of concern 
regarding animal issues and services within the county, and to work with Animal Services on various policy concerns 
and issues. The board also hears appeal cases involving Potentially Dangerous Dog Declarations within the county. 

 
Financial Impacts:   
N/A 

 
Staff Recommendations/Comments:   
N/A 

 



Volunteer Application 

Orange County Advisory Boards and Commissions

Kimberly Rider Page 1 of 1

Home Address: 2314 Red Oak Ct.

Township of Residence: Hillsborough

Zone of Residence: Hillsborough Town Limits

Ethnic Background: Caucasian

Sex: Female

Phone (Day): 9198187319

Phone (Evening): 9198187319

Phone (Cell): 9198187319

Email: kimnrider@gmail.com

Name:  Kimberly Rider 

Boards/Commissions applied for:

Hillsborough NC  27278

Other Comments:

Place of Employment: Self employed (Kimie's Kritters LLC)

Job Title: Owner and sole proprietor of pet sitting  business

Name Called:

This application was current on: 3/21/2016 5:32:06 PM Date Printed: 3/22/2016

Year of OC Residence: 2005

Community Activities/Organizational Memberships:

Volunteer for Paws4ever, Independent Animal Rescue, Rural Shelter Transports, and 
Lucky Labs.

Past Service on Orange County Advisory Boards:

N/a

Supplemental Questions:

Animal Services Advisory Board

Background, education and experience relevant to this board:

I have been an Animal advocate my entire life. In 2012 I created my pet sitting business and now 
am proud to say I have over 200 clients and make a good living owning and operating my 
business. I tried my passion for animals into a career and livelihood. I have always volunteered 
with the SPCA in Maryland until I moved here in 2005 and since moving here have become 
involved with Paws4ever and lucky labs.

Reasons for wanting to serve on this board:

I can provide a new perspective. I care for animals everyday and understand their needs and 
their owners needs better than alot of people.

Conflict of Interest:



Board of Commissioners 
Agenda Abstract Form 

Meeting Date: May 9, 2016 
  

Department: Administration 
 

Public Hearing:   Yes    No 

Date of Public Hearing: 

For Clerk’s Use Only 
AGENDA ITEM # 

5.C

Consent 
Agenda 

Regular 
Agenda 

Closed 
Session 

 

PRESENTER/INFORMATION CONTACT: Katherine Cathey, Human Resources Director/Town Clerk 

ITEM TO BE CONSIDERED 
Subject:   
Orange County Animal Services Advisory Board – Interview Victoria Hudson for appointment as the Town of 
Hillsborough representative 

Attachment(s):  
Volunteer application 

Brief Summary:  
Ms. Victoria Hudson has volunteered to serve as the Town of Hillsborough representative on the Animal Services 
Advisory Board. One other applicant will be interviewed for consideration as the Town of Hillsborough representative 
on the Animal Services Advisory Board.  

The Orange County Board of County Commissioners will make the appointment on June 7 or June 21, 2016. The 
term will end on June 30, 2018. This would be a first full term for the appointee, and she will be eligible for a second 
full term running from June 30, 2018 to June 30, 2021. 

Action Requested:  
Conduct interview. 

ISSUE OVERVIEW 
Background Information & Issue Summary:  
The Animal Services Advisory Board is charged to advise the Board of County Commissioners on matters of concern 
regarding animal issues and services within the county, and to work with Animal Services on various policy concerns 
and issues. The board also hears appeal cases involving Potentially Dangerous Dog Declarations within the county. 

Financial Impacts:  
N/A 

Staff Recommendations/Comments:  
N/A 



Volunteer Application 

Orange County Advisory Boards and Commissions

VICTORIA HUDSON Page 1 of 1

Home Address: 109 Bonaparte Dr

Township of Residence: Hillsborough

Zone of Residence:

Ethnic Background: Caucasian

Sex: Female

Phone (Day): 9194288540

Phone (Evening): 9194288540

Phone (Cell): 9194288540

Email: kouvoutti@att.net

Name:  VICTORIA HUDSON 

Boards/Commissions applied for:

Hillsborough NC  27278

Other Comments:

Place of Employment: OCHD

Job Title: EHS

Name Called:

This application was current on: 3/15/2016 8:37:16 AM Date Printed: 3/17/2016

Year of OC Residence: 2011

Community Activities/Organizational Memberships:

Cornwallis Hills Homeowners Association Board, 2015-present; NC Public Health 
Association-Environmental Health Section, Exec Committee, 2014-present

Past Service on Orange County Advisory Boards:

N/A

Supplemental Questions:

Animal Services Advisory Board

Background, education and experience relevant to this board:

Richmond County Health Department Animal Control assistance, 2009-2011; Certified Chemical 
Immobilization, 2009; Richmond Country CART, 2006; assisted in annual Rabies Vax clinics in 
Richmond County 2005-2010.

Reasons for wanting to serve on this board:

I am always looking for areas where I can serve my community. We are rich with animal lovers 
in this area, and emotions are always high for our pets, but I would like to maintain a voice of 
public health reasoning that is always fair and has public value.

Conflict of Interest:



 
 

Board of Commissioners 
Agenda Abstract Form 

 

Meeting Date:   __May 9, 2016_____________________ 
 

Department:   __Planning____________________________ 
 

Public Hearing:    Yes    No 
 

Date of Public Hearing:   __________________________ 

  
For Clerk’s Use Only 

AGENDA ITEM # 
 

 
      
 

 
   6.A 

 
      

Consent 
Agenda 

Regular 
Agenda 

Closed 
Session 

 

 

PRESENTER/INFORMATION CONTACT:    Margaret Hauth, Planning Director 
 
ITEM TO BE CONSIDERED 

Subject:    
Adopt a resolution asking the Board of County Commissioners to appoint Rob Bray to fill an out-of-town vacancy on 
the Board of Adjustment for a term expiring June 30, 2017 

 
Attachment(s):   
Application form (with interview item) 
Resolution 

 
Brief Summary:   
Mr. Bray has expressed interest in serving on the Board of Adjustment and has been interviewed by the Board 
members.  The Board’s recommendation is for Mr. Bray to be appointed to a fill the vacancy caused by Jamie 
Tomosunas’s resignation.  That term will expire on June 30, 2017. 

 
Action Requested:   
Adopt the resolution requesting the Board of County Commissioners appoint Rob Bray to fill an out-of-town vacancy 
on the Board of Adjustment. 

 
ISSUE OVERVIEW 

Background Information & Issue Summary:   
 

 
Financial Impacts:   
 

 
Staff Recommendations/Comments:   
 

 
 



RESOLUTION REQUESTING APPOINTMENT  
TO AN EXTRATERRITORIAL JURISDICTION SEAT  

ON THE HILLSBOROUGH BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
 
 
 
WHEREAS, as a result of a resignation, it is necessary to appoint a volunteer to an alternate seat reserved on the 
Hillsborough Board of Adjustment for persons residing within the town’s extraterritorial planning jurisdiction; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, by state statute and town ordinance, the Orange County Board of Commissioners initially has the 
authority and responsibility to appoint ETJ members to the town’s Board of Adjustment; and 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE TOWN OF HILLSBOROUGH 
RESOLVES: 
 
Section 1. The Orange County Board of Commissioners is respectfully requested to appoint the following 
individual to an alternate ETJ seat on the Hillsborough Board of Adjustment, whose term would expire on June 
30, 2017: 
     Mr. Rob Bray 
     1806 W Chapman Court 
     Hillsborough, NC  27278     
 
Section 2. If the Orange County Board of Commissioners fails to appoint persons willing to serve in the 
capacity described above within 90 days after receiving this resolution, then the Hillsborough Town Board may 
make this appointment. 
 
Section 3. The Town Clerk shall send a copy of this resolution to the Orange County Manager. 
 
Section 4. This resolution shall become effective upon adoption. 
 
The foregoing resolution having been submitted to a vote received the following vote and was duly adopted this 
9th day of May, 2016. 
 
Ayes:   
Notes:   
Absent or excused:   
 
I, Katherine M. Cathey, Town Clerk of the Town of Hillsborough, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true 
and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the Hillsborough Town Board of Commissioners on May 9, 2016. 
 
 
 

Katherine M. Cathey 
Human Resources Director/Town Clerk 



 
 

Board of Commissioners 
Agenda Abstract Form 

 

Meeting Date: May 9, 2016 
  

Department: Administration 
  

Public Hearing:   Yes    No 
  

Date of Public Hearing:  
 

  
For Clerk’s Use Only 

AGENDA ITEM # 
 

 
      
 

 
6.B 

 
      

Consent 
Agenda 

Regular 
Agenda 

Closed 
Session 

 

 

PRESENTER/INFORMATION CONTACT: Katherine Cathey, Human Resources Director/Town Clerk 
 
ITEM TO BE CONSIDERED 

Subject:    
Orange County Animal Services Advisory Board – Adopt a resolution requesting the Board of County Commissioners 
to appoint a Town of Hillsborough representative with a term ending June 30, 2018 

 
Attachment(s):   
Resolution 

 
Brief Summary:   
Ms. Kimberly Rider and Ms. Victoria Hudson are being considered for appointment as the Town of Hillsborough 
representative on the Animal Services Advisory Board.  
 
The Orange County Board of County Commissioners will make the appointment on June 7 or June 21, 2016. The 
term will end on June 30, 2018. This would be a first full term for the appointee, and she will be eligible for a second 
full term running from June 30, 2018 to June 30, 2021. 

 
Action Requested:   
Select an appointee for the vacant seat and adopt the resolution.  

 
ISSUE OVERVIEW 

Background Information & Issue Summary:   
The Animal Services Advisory Board is charged to advise the Board of County Commissioners on matters of concern 
regarding animal issues and services within the county, and to work with Animal Services on various policy concerns 
and issues. The board also hears appeal cases involving Potentially Dangerous Dog Declarations within the county. 

 
Financial Impacts:   
N/A 

 
Staff Recommendations/Comments:   
N/A 

 
 



   

107 East Orange Street • P.O. Box 429 • Hillsborough, North Carolina 27278 
919-732- 7 270 •  Fax  919-644-2390 

 
 
 
 

 
RESOLUTION REQUESTING APPOINTMENT TO THE  

ORANGE COUNTY ANIMAL SERVCIES ADVISORY BOARD 
 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to appoint a volunteer to a seat reserved on the Orange County Animal 
Services Advisory Board for persons residing within the Town of Hillsborough; and 
 
WHEREAS, by state statute and county ordinance, the Orange County Board of Commissioners has the 
authority and responsibility to appoint members to the Animal Services Advisory Board; and 
 
WHEREAS, the current applicant wishes to serve a first term as the Town of Hillsborough representative 
on the Animal Services Advisory Board; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE TOWN OF HILLSBOROUGH 
RESOLVES: 
 
Section 1. The Orange County Board of Commissioners is respectfully requested to appoint the 
following individual to the vacant Town of Hillsborough seat on the Animal Services Advisory Board, 
whose term would expire June 30, 2018:  
 

Name:        
Address:      
       

 
 
Section 2.  The Town Clerk shall send a copy of this resolution to the Orange County Manager.  
 
Section 3.  This resolution shall become effective upon adoption. 
 
The foregoing resolution having been submitted to a vote received the following vote and was duly 
adopted this 9th day of May, 2016. 
 
Ayes:    
Noes:   
Absent or excused:   
 
I, Katherine M. Cathey, Town Clerk of the Town of Hillsborough, do hereby certify that the foregoing is 
a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the Hillsborough Town Board of Commissioners on 
May 9, 2016. 
 
 
 
 

Katherine M. Cathey 
Town Clerk 



 
 

Board of Commissioners 
Agenda Abstract Form 

 

Meeting Date: May 9, 2016 
  

Department: All 
  

Public Hearing:   Yes    No 
  

Date of Public Hearing:  
 

  
For Clerk’s Use Only 

AGENDA ITEM # 
 

 
      
 

 
    9 

 
      

Consent 
Agenda 

Regular 
Agenda 

Closed 
Session 

 

 

PRESENTER/INFORMATION CONTACT: Department Heads 
 
ITEM TO BE CONSIDERED 

Subject:    
Departmental Reports 

 
Attachment(s):   
Monthly Departmental Reports 

 
Brief Summary:   
n/a 

 
Action Requested:   
Accept reports 

 
ISSUE OVERVIEW 

Background Information & Issue Summary:   
n/a 

 
Financial Impacts:   
n/a 

 
Staff Recommendations/Comments:   
n/a 

 
 



Page 1 of 6 

                  ADMINISTRATION DEPARTMENTAL REPORT  
May 2016 

 
Human Resources Director/Town Clerk  
April 2016 
 
Meetings 

• Racial Equity Workshop Follow-up and Next Steps (4/8/16) 
• Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting (4/11/16) 
• Synergy Health (4/12/16) 
• Safety Committee (4/13/16) 
• Citizens’ Academy (4/13/16) 
• HR Fire Drills, UNC SOG (4/14/16) 
• 2016 Regional Master Municipal Clerks Academy (4/15/16) 
• Root Beer with the Town Manager (4/21/16, 4/25/16, 4/28/16, 5/2/16) 
• Wellness Team (4/21/16) 
• LGFCU Annual Meeting and Statewide Volunteers Meeting (4/22/16) 
• Board of Commissioners Work Session (4/25/16) 
• EACP Quarterly Meeting (4/28/16) 
• Weekly update meetings with Town Manager  
• Bi-weekly update meetings with Safety and Risk Management Officer 
• Monthly meetings with Administration and Management Teams 

 
Employee Events and Training 
 
Recruitment and Selection 

• Orange County Dept. of Social Services Job Fair (4/6/16) 
• Police Officer (Police) 

o Recruitment opened (1/2/15) 
o Recruitment ongoing (98 applicants to date) 
o Nine offers accepted 

• Water Treatment Plant Operator 
o Recruitment opened 12/2/15  
o Recruitment closed (12/16/15) (17 applicants) 
o Position re-advertised (1/13/16) 
o Position closed 2/1/16 (41 applicants total) 
o 1 offer declined; 1 offer rescinded due to background check 
o Position re-advertised (3/24/16) (72 applicants total) 
o Conditional Offer pending background check 

• Police Officer – Trainee (Diversity Scholarship Program) 
o Recruitment opened (3/21/16) 
o Recruitment closed (4/7/16) (16 Applicants) 
o Two offers accepted; start date 5/2/16-BLET 



Page 2 of 6 

• Police Sergeant (External) 
o Recruitment opened (1/11/16) 
o Recruitment closed (2/1/16) (3 applicants) 
o Considering internal applicants 
o Internal promotion effective 5/2/16 

 
Pay and Benefits 

• Biweekly payroll (2) 
• Classification and Compensation study 
• Open Enrollment preparation 

 
Wellness 

• Implemented wellness mini-grant program 
• On the Move Challenge 

 
Performance Evaluation 

• Provided ongoing support for NEOGOV performance evaluation system 
• NeoGov Perform system update 

 
Professional Development 

• Webinar: Adverse Action Essentials (4/19/16)/Katherine 
• HCW seminar: Impacting Your Population Health: Emerging Trends in Health 

Management (4/20/16)/Sherri 
• Webinar: Continuous Innovation Journey:  Planning Implementing & Sustaining a 

Process Improvement Team (4/20/16)/Katherine  
• CPR/AED and Basic First Aid Training (4/22/16-Sherri) (4/26/16-Katherine) 

 
Miscellaneous 

• High school student began vocational training on 4/20/16 (1 hour/week) 
• Employee Handbook updates 
• Began contract scanning project 
• Began minutes/agenda scanning project 
• Developing employee safety training requirements per position 
• Employee newsletter published 
• Draft proposal for Carolina Star program 

 
 
Public Information Office Report 
April 2016 
 
News Releases 

• Issued news releases to media and subscriber list; posted to website and social media 
sites; and created bulletins for government access channel: 
1-Apr — Ayr Mount and Speedway Trail Owners Building Riverwalk Connection 
1-Apr — Town to Perform Maintenance along Riverwalk 
1-Apr — Normal Water Disinfection Resumes; Flushing Completed   
4-Apr — Town Leaders Seeking Repeal of House Bill 2  



Page 3 of 6 

4-Apr — Video of 2016 State of Town Address Available   
4-Apr — Input Sought on Proposed Changes to Utility Billing and Collections 
6-Apr — Riverwalk Maintenance to be Completed Thursday   
7-Apr — Registration Open for Citizens Police Academy   
7-Apr — Public Hearing to Open on Stormwater Utility and Fee   
8-Apr — Calling Citizens to Battle Officers on Ice for Special Olympics   
8-Apr — Police to Help Raise Autism Awareness  
11-Apr — Improvements Coming to West Margaret Lane, Mayo Park Parking Lots  
12-Apr — Town Leaders Approve Seeking Repeal of House Bill 2   
13-Apr — Board of Commissioners Meeting Summary   
15-Apr — Input Sought on Installment Financing for Meter Reading   
19-Apr — One More Team Needed for Broomball Battle  
25-Apr — Repaving Today in Downtown Hillsborough   
26-Apr — Police Investigating Break-ins of Storage Sheds   
27-Apr — Section of Riverwalk to Close for Erosion-Control Work  
27-Apr — Joint Investigation Leads to Drug Arrest   
  

• As of May 2, subscriptions are: 
o News releases — 700  
o Meeting notices — 409  
o Bid postings — 352 

 
Website/Intranet 

• Fine-tuned new website’s backend to employee workflow and discussed proposed 
refinements with other departments. 

• Discussed employee section of website with Human Resources director and analyst. 
• Made adjustments to new website’s navigation. 
• Worked with town staff on posting to new website. 

 
Newsletters/Brochures/Advertisements 

• Completed additional edits to draft Old Town Cemetery walking guide and reformatted 
brochure for narrower text columns. Took new photos of cemetery on April 26. 

• Created promotions for Police Department’s Special Olympics fundraiser and Citizens 
Police Academy. Helped to edit fliers on Police Department events and application for 
academy. 

• Updated Riverwalk map for news releases, showing areas to be closed for tree removal 
and erosion-control work. 

• Helped Public Works Department with editing of advertisement and document regarding 
monuments to be cleaned and repaired at the Town Cemetery, starting in May. 

 
Social Media 

• Made 28 Facebook posts and 36 tweets. Posted two new videos to YouTube. 
• As of May 1: 

o Facebook: 1,393 likes 
o Twitter: 620 followers 
o YouTube: 51 subscribers 

• Responded to 1 comment on Facebook. 
 



Page 4 of 6 

Government Access Channel/Videos 
• Edited and posted video of 2016 State of Town Address. 
• Shot, edited and posted meeting summary video for Board of Commissioners’ April 11 

meeting.  
• Continued troubleshooting and working with IT, local support and hardware/software 

support regarding various issues with the government access channel, including a 
software error that prevented editing of bulletins. Problems are resolved, and channel is 
available for streaming again on the town’s website. 

• Continued looking into purchase of camera and accessory equipment. 
 
Other Work 

• Created Hillsborough banner logos to match the town website for use in town documents 
and provided suggested update of the Board of Commissioners agenda facesheet and 
meeting schedule. The updated meeting schedule template will be used by other advisory 
boards that post a schedule for the year. 

• Updated advertisement of town phone listings for the phone book’s yellow pages, due out 
in June. 

• Continued work on questions and answers for proposal on new metering technology and 
outsourcing of billing and collections services. 

• Helped edit Board of Commissioners’ statement and resolution regarding Session Law 
2016-3 of the N.C. General Assembly. 

• Looked into measures of social media effectiveness for the Administration Department’s 
balanced scorecard. 

• Provided photo of mayor at State of Town Address at request of The News of Orange. 
• Updated questions and answers for proposal on stormwater utility and fee. 
• Took photos of officer oaths of office at April 11 Board of Commissioners meeting. 
• Worked with utilities analyst on updating questions and answers regarding water and 

sewer rates. 
• Took photos of volunteer work at the Gold Park Pollinator Garden on April 7 and 21 for 

use on social media and with news releases. 
• Worked with Planning Department to create questions and answers regarding 

development for use on town website. 
• Updated handout on Public Information Office’s communication methods for distribution 

at Citizens Academy. 
• Worked with citizen to help distribute Hillsborough Alerts forms to increase number of 

citizens signed up for the town’s new emergency notification system. Citizen volunteered 
following operations presentation at Citizens Academy. 

• Looked into updating town clock logo to match new version created for Hillsborough 
Alerts notification system. 

• Took photos of loading zone construction on West Margaret Lane for use with news 
release and on website and social media. 

• Began planning writing course to be offered to town employees during the summer as 
part of Hillsborough University. 

• Looked into cost of printing and mailing citizens newsletters through water and sewer bill 
statements. 

• Took photos of planning and public works employees on April 21 installing fencing to 
protect a cherry laurel tree at Gold Park from deer for use on social media. 



Page 5 of 6 

• Worked on completing questionnaires for employee compensation and pay study and 
making adjustments to the administration and PEG channel budgets. 

 
Meetings/Events/Training 

• PIO attended public speaking training on April 6 with consultant. 
• PIO served as a guest on The Lunch Crunch show on WHUP-FM on April 11. 
• Attended Board of Commissioners meeting on April 11. 
• PIO and web developer/assistant PIO attended NC3C (N.C. City and County 

Communicators) conference April 13-15 in Chapel Hill 
• PIO presented information on the office’s operations to the Citizens Academy on April 

13.  
• PIO and management analyst/assistant PIO attended meeting on mosquito management 

and communication with town manager, fire marshal/emergency management 
coordinator, public works director and stormwater program manager on April 19. 

• PIO staff met for monthly meeting on April 19. 
• PIO and management analyst/assistant PIO attended process improvement team webinar 

with the management team on April 20. 
• PIO met with utilities director on April 20 regarding communications. 
• PIO met with town manager for briefing on April 20. 
• Attended administration and management team meetings on April 27. 

 
 
Safety and Risk Management Officer Monthly Report 
April 2016 
 
Meetings Attended/Conducted 

• Safety Committee Meeting 
• Semi-monthly department meeting 
• Wellness Team Meeting 
• Reconsideration meeting w/utilities employee and supervisor regarding incident 

 
Training Attended/Conducted 

• Monthly Safety Trainings 
• AED/CPR/First Aid Classes x8 

 
Site inspections 

• Elizabeth Brady Lift Station 
• Gold Park 
• Turnip Patch Park    
• Murray Street Park 
• Hillsborough Heights Park 
• New Park in Waterstone 

 
Miscellaneous 

• On target for 2nd quarter random drug screens 
• 3 pre-hire drug screens 
• Updated P&L insurance renewal, completed equipment schedules 



Page 6 of 6 

• Worked on employee training schedule 
• Working on Active Shooter Program/Training 
• Gathering information regarding Lead Safety Training/Policy 
• Installed “Safety is no Accident” and “811 Know where you dig” banners at the 

86 Facility 
• Working on workers comp. incident 
• Working on P & L claims 
• Working on completion of incident reviews (Safety Committee) 
• Finalized reconsideration review 
• Stocked safety gear 
• Assigning and installing stickers to employee’s badges for vending machine 

access 
• Vending machine tutorials for employees, demonstrating functions and 

accessibility 
• Working on inspection requirements with Safety Committee members 
• Updated training spreadsheet 
• Distributed updated safety wear 
• General duties concerning new facility at Highway 86 north 
• Forwarded Safety Inspection results to departments 
• Collecting Fire Extinguisher Monthly check sheets 
• Forwarded recommendations (work orders) generated from Park Inspections 

    



TOWN OF HILLSBOROUGH
Engineering Department

ENGINEERING STATUS REPORT
Page 1

c:\projects\engineering\Item 9 Departmental Reports - Engineering
5/5/2016, 11:15 AM

PROJECT BUDGET STATUS
WWTP Discharge Compliance - We were compliant with our discharge permit limits in March.  Our sludge management program is in good condition.

Sewer Spill Summary -
The Town had no reportable collection system sewage spills since my last report (one so far in 2016).  There have been no reportable 
spill/bypass events at the WWTP in 2016.

West Fork of the Eno Reservoir -
The reservoir is full, with approximately 353 days of supply remaining.  The current overflow is exceeding the minimum release for 
May of 3.0 cubic feet per second (1.939 MGD).

WFER Phase 2 Design Project (FY16) 1,237,000$    

The road improvements design work is ongoing.  Final design of Mill Creek Road and Carr Store road began in July 2015.  Discussions 
with NCDOT are ongoing to determine responsibilities and cost sharing of the Efland-Cedar Grove Road realignment and raising, with 
construction to begin in Summer 2016 and bidding in June, and the Town's share of project funds will be due to NCDOT upon contract 
award (approximately $500,000).  The remaining dam and project design work began in September 2015, in order to complete all of the 
engineering and permitting required prior to construction of Phase 2 in early 2017.  Project construction is planned in the FY17 budget.  
The total estimated construction cost of Phase 2 is currently at $6.7 million, plus about $910,000 in inspection & contract administration 
costs during construction (total of $8.3M needed for construction in FY17, which includes contingency funds).  These estimated costs 
are included in the FY17-19 budget requests.

Total Trihalomethanes (TTHM) Compliance -

The 1st Quarter 2016 testing was performed in mid-February. These results are 6 parts per billion (ppb) higher than the 2015 1st 
Quarter, increasing our 1st Quarter average to 36 ppb, which makes our current running annual average increase to 51 ppb (up by 2 
ppb, annual average limit is 80 ppb).  The Town remains compliant with TTHM levels. 2nd Quarter 2016 testing is scheduled for mid-
May.

Water Restrictions -
No restrictions are in effect for Town customers. The Town is not subject to any withdrawal restrictions currently. Our usage is currently 
around 1.323 MGD. Lake Orange is full.

Water System Flushing -
The Spring water system flushing operations were completed in March. Approx. 4,905,870 gallons were flushed (645 hydrants).  Fall 
flushing is planned for September through November.

"Unaccounted-for" Water -

The FY15 annual water audit was included with the February engineering reports.  Unaccounted-for water percentage is higher than last 
year (13.46%), although our AWWA Infrastructure Leakage Index remains at a very acceptable level (1.88, acceptable range is between 
1 & 3.  We suspect that some of the increase was due to difficulties with our billing software, which has been addressed.  Miscellaneous 
repairs have been proceeding as needed.

Miscellaneous Water Projects -

Water improvements in the North Zone are ongoing.  The 6" water line along US 70 between Walgreens and Orange High School Road 
was substantially completed in March, although some customer connections are still being completed.  A short connection and road 
crossing on NC 86 North at the BP station will be constructed in May.

New South Zone Water Transmission Main 240,000$       

A delay in the acquisition of the utility easement for the proposed water meter vault at Davis Road continues to delay construction of this 
project (a verbal agreement has been reached, but I am awaiting lender documentation from the owner).  A new meter vault, additional 
connections to our existing distribution system, demolition of the existing OWASA Booster Pump Station, and addressing emergency 
pumping issues from OWASA due to pressure zone changes are all parts of this project.  The project will be primarily constructed in-
house, after attaining the easement and completing the current North Zone work.

Waterstone Elevated Water Tank 2,029,398$    

Tank construction is behind schedule, primarily due to contractor delays. Final landscaping is complete and electrical inspections 
have been delayed due to a jurisdictional dispute.  Tank construction began on 10/27/14, and final completion was scheduled by 
11/9/15.  We are hopeful that the tank can be filled and placed into service this month.

New South Zone Booster Pump Station 175,000$       

Construction of the Forest Ridge water booster pump station (BPS) has begun, and the water line from Executive Court to I-85 (which 
will link Forest Ridge to the South Pressure Zone) should begin later this year.  Easements for the water line are currently being 
finalized.  The BPS project is part of the next phase of Forest Ridge, and the Town's financial contribution to the project will add capacity 
to the BPS planned by the developer, to boost water to the South Zone and the Waterstone Tank.

Sewer Rehabilitation & Repairs and Eno River 
Outfall Lining  $      250,000 

The sewer relining along the Eno (and Riverwalk) was completed in January.  Some additional sewer relining will be done in the next few 
months further down the river near the WWTP.  Cleaning and reinspection of the Eno River Outfall and some contributing sewers 
occurred in August, a few point repairs were completed in November, and relining of a few hundred feet near the Post Office was 
completed in late November.  

Emergency Generators 75,000$         

The final new portable generator has been delivered.  We found significant maintenance issues with some generators earlier this year, 
and brought in a specialty contractor to repair deficiencies and perform proper maintenance.  We are proposing additional funding to 
have generator maintenance performed regularly by an outside contractor beginning in FY17.

Kenneth P. Keel, PE;  919-732-1270 ext 75;  kenny.keel@hillsboroughnc.org

TOWN OF HILLSBOROUGH
ENGINEERING STATUS REPORT

MAY 2016



Spill 
Number Date Location Cause of Spill

Spill 
Volume 
(gallons)

Volume 
Reaching 

Surface Waters 
(gal)

1 3/9/2016 212 Mollies Court Grease 900         400                  
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20

TOTAL 900         400                  

TOWN OF HILLSBOROUGH
2016 SEWER SPILL SUMMARY (as of May 2, 2016)



PRIORITY PROJECTS – STOPLIGHT REPORT   Engineering (May 2016)       P a g e  | 1 of 2 

PRIORITY PROJECTS – STOPLIGHT REPORT 
Engineering (May 2016) 

 
Project & Key Information 

 
Time

2 
$$$3 Other

4 
% 

Complete 
Comments/Notes/Key Lessons Learned To Date 

Waterstone Elevated Water Tank 
Project 

Current Phase1:  Construction 
Original/Preliminary Estimated Cost 
(pre-design): $1,300,000 
Revised Cost (post-design): $1,960,127 
Revised Cost (actual): $2,029,398 
Original Completion Date:  Fall 2015 
Revised Completion Date:  Spring 2016 
 
Original cost based on rough estimate 
with various assumptions.  Revised costs 
based on actual design output, actual 
cost on bids received/construction 
contract and contingency. 

   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

95% • Disinfection and initial filling will occur as soon as electrical inspections are completed and 
electric meter installed.  A jurisdictional conflict between Orange County and the State 
Construction Office has delayed this inspection.  SCO is currently reviewing. 

• Landscaping, driveway paving, curb and storm water drain construction, fencing, and other 
site work are complete.  Quality testing of the evenness of the tank structure was completed 
in February with positive results. 

• An additional 1-month delay occurred due to the discovery of the incorrect pipe size being 
installed for the tank during the UNC Hospital project.  The incorrect pipe was a short (about 
30 feet long) extension from the 12” main toward the tank site.  The pipe was replaced with 
the correct size on November 27th by the UNC Health Care utility sub-contractor. 

• Work is complete for the piping (December).  Contractor left project during July & August, 
resulting in the initial construction delay. 

• The interior and top painting was finished in September 2015, and the steel tank structure 
ground fabrication, painting, and jacking was completed in early June 2015. 

• Tank riser (concrete support column) was completed in early May 2015, foundation in 
February 2015. 

• Actual tank construction began on October 27, 2014 (site preparation). 
• The Notice to Proceed was issued on September 15, 2014.  The substantial completion date 

is October 10, 2015, and final completion by November 9, 2015. 
• The Town awarded the construction contract on 6/9/14 to Caldwell Tanks for the Composite 

tank option. The alternates for a mixer, FAA lighting, and 2 text logos were also awarded. 
• SRF loan is being used for all project costs, $2,029,398 at 0% for 20 years.  The $500,000 

contribution from Waterstone will be used to make loan payments until it is exhausted.  
• In April 2014, the Town Board approved a UDO amendment to allow painting of a text logo 

(“Hillsborough”) on the tank. 
• Revised cost estimate increased from original estimates due to preliminary quotes received 

from tank contractors and more detailed estimating. 
New South Zone Transmission 

Main Project 
Current Phase1:  Construction 
Original Cost:  $200,000 (entire project) 
Revised Cost:  $240,000 
Original Completion Date:  Dec. 2015 
Revised Completion Date: Summer ‘16 
 
Delays due to meter easement 
acquisition and line crew workload.  
Added costs due to North Zone work. 

   22% • The North Zone loops are under construction (Walgreens to OHS Rd is complete as of 
March 5th & NC 86 adjacent to BP station to be completed hopefully in May).   

• Project delays due to easement acquisition & crew workload are not problematic. 
• There is a verbal agreement on the meter site easement purchase, and we are awaiting 

documents to be signed.  Construction of new meter vault will follow, then remainder of 
South Zone construction work (tie-ins & OWASA PS demo). 

• Design of new meter vault near Davis Drive, pump connections near New Hope Creek, and 
various interconnections to existing Hillsborough distribution system began in early 2014.   

• Some additional water line was included along US70 between NC86 and OHS Road. This 
will create additional loops in the North Zone to improve water flow & quality. 

• Transfer of 16” water line through Hillsborough from OWASA was completed Sept. 2013. 



PRIORITY PROJECTS – STOPLIGHT REPORT   Engineering (May 2016)       P a g e  | 2 of 2 

WFER Phase 2 Road Design & 
Permitting 

Current Phase1:  Design 
Original Cost:  $458,019 
1st Revised Cost:  $483,799 
2nd Revised Cost: $602,575 
Original Completion Date:  June 2015 
1st Revised Completion Date:  Fall 2015 
2nd Rev. Completion Date:  June 2016 
 
Revisions due to contract addendums to 
continue work to final completion for all 
3 roads that require modifications. 

   79% • Request for revisions to the 404 permit were submitted in late April 2016 to cover the entire 
Phase 2 project.  Timing was driven by the need to proceed with Efland-Cedar Grove Road 
realignment project. 

• Municipal agreement negotiation with NCDOT anticipated for May 2016.  A budget 
amendment will follow to make funding available for project from Capital Reserve funds 
prior to the funding of the rest of the Phase 2 project in early 2017. 

• Final right-of-way plans for the Efland-Cedar Grove Road realignment project were 
submitted in late January 2016. 

• Preliminary bridge design plans for Carr Store Road were submitted for NCDOT review in 
mid-October 2015. 

• A contract amendment was approved on July 13, 2015 for roadway & hydraulic design 
completion, bridge design, ROW staking, and 404 permit modification. 

• Discussions with NCDOT are ongoing regarding responsibilities and cost sharing.  The 
Efland-Cedar Grove Road project bid is scheduled for June 2016, and the Town’s share of 
costs will have to be made available to NCDOT at that time (currently estimated around 
$500,000). 

• Some perimeter surveying and concrete & soils testing at the dam were done in April & 
May 2015. 

• Environmental studies and the eagle survey are complete (see Facebook page for eagle 
photos).  A follow-up eagle study will be completed in 2016. 

• Design is proceeding in accordance with the schedule NCDOT has set.  Construction of 
Efland-Cedar Grove Road realignment will be completed in Summer 2016.  Town schedule 
has been revised to match NCDOT postponement of construction (previously was scheduled 
for Summer 2015). 

• A contract amendment with Atkins, NA was approved on November 10, 2014 for the 
hydrologic model and flood mapping for the Phase 2 improvements. 

• We are partnering with NCDOT for improvements on Efland-Cedar Grove Road, which 
will benefit both parties.  Atkins is leading this effort for Hillsborough. 

WFER Phase 2 Dam & Clearing 
Design 

Current Phase1:  Design 
Original Cost:  $633,500 
Revised Cost:   
Original Completion Date:  Dec. 2016 
Revised Completion Date:   

   19% • Site visits for development of the clearing plan began in February, with help of a forestry 
consultant. 

• Design work began in mid-September 2015. 
• The final design contract with Schnabel Engineering South, PC for dam & clearing design, 

contractor prequalification, and bidding services was approved on September 14, 2015. 

Notes: 1  Current project phase is basis for “stoplights.”  Current project phases may be in study, design, implementation, or construction. 
 2 Time:  Green = on schedule or ahead of time; Yellow = behind schedule but not problematic; Red = behind schedule/urgent/problematic. 
 3 $$$:  Green = w/in 5% of current phase budget; Yellow = w/in 5% to 15% of budget; Red = more than 15% & contingency likely exhausted. 
 4 Other:  Green = no issues current phase; Yellow = minor issues; Red = major issues/concerns 



FINANCE DEPARTMENTAL REPORT FOR APRIL 2016

SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES:
Daily Collections 701,565.65$                
Tax & Vehicle License 63,388.87$                  
Solid Waste Disposal Tax -$                            
Beer & Wine Receipt -$                            
Franchise Tax -$                            
Sales & Use Tax 91,459.35$                  

856,413.87$                

Expenditures:  General Fund/Water Fund 871,609.12$                
                
FINANCE:
• Compiled and submitted all monthly reports.
• Issued 24 purchase orders.
• Processed 432 vendor invoices, issued 263 accounts payable checks.
• Collected and processed 61 payments for food and beverage tax.
• Collected and processed 19 payments for fire inspection fees and permits.
• Prepared and mailed no delinquent fire inspection letters.
• Prepared and processed 2 payrolls.
• Issued no new special event permits; collected no payments.
• Assistant Finance Director prepared 44 special event permits for Hillsborough Downtown
      
METER READING:

• Installed no new meters, changed no old meters, performed 1 pressure test.

BILLING & COLLECTION:

• Prepared  water bills; processed 3 returned checks.

FINANCE DIRECTOR
• Conducted Supervisor Meetings April 12 & 26, 2016
• Attended Accounting & Financial Reporting Class at the SOG April 4 to 7, 2016
• Conducted meetings with Fathom April 1, 8, 20, & 22, 2016
• Attended and presented at WSAC meeting April 7, 2016
• Attended Racial Equity Meeting April 8, 2016
• Conducted Trisource/My Gov Hub post implementation review April 8, 2016
• Conducted All Staff meeting April 13, 2016
• Attended and presented at Citizen's Academy April 13, 2016
• Attended Continuous Improvement Webinar April 20, 2016
• Attended NCLM Tax and Legislative Action Committee meeting April 21, 2016
• Attended Town Board Meetings April 12 & 25, 2016
• Participated in BOA P-Card Implementation meeting April 25, 2016
• Attended Management Team meeting April 27, 2016



Revenues
Collections: 698,974.43$           
NCCMT Interest: 2,591.22
Tax & Vehicle: 63,388.87$             
Solid Waste Disposal Tax: -$                         
Beer & Wine Receipt: -$                         
Franchise Tax: -$                         
Sales & Use Tax: 91,459.35
Total: 856,413.87$           

Expenditures
General & Water Fund: 871,609.12$           Central Depository + NCCMT account
CPF: -$                         

Finance
Purchase Orders: 24 24 purchase orders
Vendor Invoices: 432 432 vendor invoices
A\P Checks: 263 263 accounts payable checks
Food & Bev. Pmts: 61 61 payments
Fire Inspections Fees: 19 19 payments
Delinquent Fire Insp. Letters: 0 no delinquent fire inspection letters
Payrolls: 2 2 payrolls
Special Event Permits 0 no new special event permits
Privilege Licenses Payments: 0 no payments
Last Fridays Permits 8 Leave blank if no permits were issued
B/W Privilege License Billed: 0 Leave blank if no permits were issued
B/W Privilege License Renewals: 0 Leave blank if no permits were issued
Hillsborough Downtown Permits 44 Leave blank if no permits were issued
Beer & Wine Priv. Lic. Letters 0 Leave blank if no letters were sent out

Meter Reading:
New Services Connected: 74 74 new services
Services Terminated: 69 69 services
Meter Readings Rechecked: no meter readings
Call Backs: 0 no call backs
New Meters Installed: no new meters
Old Meters Changed: no old meters
Pressure Tests: 1 1 pressure test
Hydrant Tamperings: 1 1 hydrant tampering 
Meter Tamperings: 1 1 meter tampering

Finance
Departmental Report

April 2016
Due: Monday, May 02, 2016



Meter Registers Changed: no meter registers

Billing & Collections
Bills corrected before 5-1-16: no bills
Bills adjusted after 4-1-16: Leaks: no leaks

Late Fees: no late fees
Pools: no pools
Misc.:  miscellaneous

Water Bills Mailed: no water bills
Returned Checks: 3 3 returned checks
Services Disconnected for non-pmt: N/A Disconnected N/A services for non-payment
Reconnected: N/A N/A services
Adjustments for Apr-2016(Gal.): no gallons
Adjustments for Apr-2016($):
Utility Bank Drafts: 1378 1,378 utility bank drafts
Debt Set-Off Letters Processed: 0 0 debt set-off letters
Online Bill Pays Processed: 799 799 on-line bill pays



 
Planning Department Report 
April 2016 

 
Advisory Board Activities 
Planning Board 
Conducted the joint public hearing with the Town Board regarding an SUP amendment and about a dozen text 
amendments as part of the 5-year ordinance update. 
 
Historic District Commission 
The members considered applications for work on W King St, W Margaret Lane, and two locations on E Tryon St. 
The members discussed 2016 Preservation Awards. 
 
Board of Adjustment  
Conducted election of officers and interviewed a candidate for an out of town alternate. 
 
Parks & Recreation Board 
Did not meet 
 
Tree Board  
Reviewed the King Highway Park forest management plan and discussed the Riverwalk Tree identification project. 
 
Tourism Development Authority 
Voted to financially support the 2017 North American Tourism Journalist Association conference which will be in 
Orange County next year. The members also received updates on on-going projects. 
 
Tourism Board 
Received updates on on-going projects and released RFPs to three local entities for on-going tourism services. 
 
Revenues Collected 
Development Review fees  $   300.00    
Zoning Permits & HDC reviews  $3,600.22  Code Enforcement Reimbursement   $       50 
   
Planning Total      $3,900.22  Park Reservations         $     840 
 
Other department activities of note: 
Tom conducted 20 certificate of occupancy site inspections and 4 other site inspections. He attended a 4-day 
training in Raleigh on stormwater identification.  Stephanie managed the construction on the West Margaret 
loading zone and repaving of the Mayo Street parking lot. She also continued to work with the signage committee 
for the next round of interpretive signs and the group working to rebuild the Occaneechi Village near River Park. 
Shannan responded to questions and coordinated the grant cycle while on leave. Margaret worked with Stratford 
to prioritize the sign installation on Cates Creek Parkway so the road can be opened to traffic. Stephanie and 
Margaret worked with Eric and Jen to move the Moseley contract closer to finalization. 
 
We hired a retired planner to help with permit administration and other tasks in the office for 4 hours one day a 
week through the end of the fiscal year. 
 
The Tourism Board grant cycle closed with 14 applications received. The Board has also sent out 3 RFPs to local 
entities who provided on-going tourism services. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Planning Department Stoplight reports 
April 30, 2016 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Project Time Budget Other % complete

CMAQ 2012 - design/construction    
Design Complete:  9/15/15                           
Construction Complete 6/30/16

80%

Still awaiting final approval from NCDOT to advertise for 
construction bids.

Downtown access - construction

35%

We weren't able to solicit contractors during two advertising 
periods. The project will be held until the fall, which is prime 
bidding season & possibly combined with the CMAQ project to 
attract larger contractors.

N Churton and US 70 Pedestrian 
assessment

75%

The consultant to performed the majority of the field work and is 
finalizing a report for the Town Board's June meeting.

Train station conceptual plan

50%

Conceptual plans have been modified to match staff direction. 
These plans are ready to share with the town board and our 
funding partners.

Train station environmental 
documentation

0%

This review cannot begin until the conceptual design is complete.



Hillsborough Police Department Monthly Report  April 2016 

 

REPORTED OFFENSES - UCR
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec 2016 2015 2014

Part I Offenses
Homicide 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Rape 0 0 0 1 1 1 0
Robbery 1 0 0 1 2 3 10
Aggravated Assaul t 2 4 5 3 14 31 27
Burglary 2 2 4 5 13 59 39
Larceny/Theft 30 24 31 34 119 360 333
Motor Vehicle Theft 0 1 0 0 1 9 13
Total Part I 35 31 40 44 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 150 463 422

Other Offenses 2016 2015 2014
Simple Assaul t 9 13 8 4 34 170 152
Fraud/Forgery 5 7 4 2 18 49 43
Stolen Property 0 1 0 1 2 3 3
Damage to Property 7 9 7 12 35 91 93
Weapons  Violations 0 1 0 0 1 9 8
Sex Offences 1 3 2 0 6 9 12
Drug Violations 3 2 2 4 11 34 35
Driving Whi le Impaired 3 6 1 0 10 38 31
Liquor Law Violations 0 0 1 0 1 6 7
Trespass ing 1 1 1 5 8 9 14
Domestic Related 6 15 5 8 34 na na
Miss ing Persons 1 1 0 0 2 14 14

 

Summary of Select Offenses: 

On 04/02/2016, Officers received a report from a teenager that a teenage acquaintance known to them sexually 
assaulted them in the 400-block of N Nash St. This incident is under investigation. 

From 04/11/2016 to 04/18/2016, Officers received 5 reports of Breaking and Entering to sheds.  

• 04/11/2016, 400-block of Tulip Tree Rd. No items reported missing from the locked shed. 
• 04/12/2016, 100-block of E Queen St. $415.00 in power tools from an unlocked shed. 
• 04/14/2016, 100-block of E Queen St. $1,759.00 worth of lawn equipment from a locked shed. 
• 04/16/2016, 300-block of N Churton St. $324.00 in power tools from a shed. 
• 04/18/2016, 400-block of N Churton St. $436.74 in power tools from a locked detached workshop. 

On 04/14/2016, Officers received a belated report of an Aggravated Assault, Larceny, and Interfering with 
Emergency Communications that had occurred on 04/05/2016 in the 200-block of Hampton Pointe Blvd. The 
victim advised that he was threatened with a knife, assaulted, and the suspect took his phone and EBT card. This 
incident is under investigation. 

On 04/15/2016, Officers responded to the 100-block of Cornelius St. in reference to an attempted Armed 
Robbery. The victim advised he was leaving the area when 3 black males approached him and pointed a gun at 
him, and he then drove off. This incident is under investigation. 

On 04/15/2016, Officers responded to a report of an Aggravated Assault involving a knife during a verbal dispute 
at 200 Cheshire Dr. The male had minor injuries to his hand. Officers charged Katrina Cooper, (B/F, 44, of 



Hillsborough Police Department Monthly Report  April 2016 

 
Mebane) with Misdemeanor Assault with a Deadly Weapon and Misdemeanor Simple Assault, she was put on a 
48 hour Domestic hold. 

On 04/19/2016, Officers responded to the 300-block of W Orange St. in reference to an Aggravated Assault. The 
victim advised that he was threatened with a knife. The victim did not want to pursue charges. Officers arrested 
Robert Lee Thompson, (W/M, 78, of W Orange St.) on an unrelated warrant, he was given a $300.00 secured 
bond. 

On 04/26/2016, Officers were located a stolen vehicle out of Durham, at Lloyd’s Citgo, 110 N NC 86. Officers 
charged Adrianna May LeBlanc, (W/F, 31, of Mebane) with Felony Possession of Stolen Vehicle, and served 
unrelated warrants on her. She was given an $8,500.00 secured bond. 

31 Larcenies were reported at various locations including: 

• 13 larcenies were shoplifting related incidents at Hampton Pointe- Walmart. 
• 11 larcenies from vehicles were reported. 7 were from unlocked vehicles – 1 was in Beckett’s Ridge, 2 

were in the Cornwallis Hills area and 2 were at Lloyd’s gas station, 1 was behind Jay’s Chicken Shack, and 
1 from Eno Haven Apartments. 2 Larcenies from vehicles were power tools form a locked trailer on 
Executive Dr. 1 vehicle had a tag removed at Walmart. 1 is a Larceny of lawn equipment and tools from 
the bed of a truck on Oak St. 

• 2 Larcenies of lawn equipment from open yards were reported, one on Revere Rd. and one on Torain St. 
• 1 Larceny was a camcorder left on a bench unattended at Gold Park. 

Narcotics/weapons related incidents: 

• On 04/09/2016, Officers performed a traffic stop on a swerving vehicle on US 70 driving towards N 
Churton St. and recovered a syringe, and 2.6 grams of an unknown powdered drug, along with 
paraphernalia. 

• On 04/11/2016, Officers conducted a traffic stop near Occoneechee Speedway Park and recovered a 
Marijuana grinder and storage case. 

• On 04/13/2016, Officers were in the Kangaroo and after conducting an investigation on a suspicious 
person they recovered 10.20 grams of Marijuana. 

• On 04/20/2016, Officers conducted a traffic stop and while serving several summons they recovered 1.0 
gram of Marijuana. 

• On 04/27/2016, Officers were assisting Probation and Parole with an arrest at Gateway Village 
Apartments near the 300 bldg. and during the prisoner search located .4 grams of cocaine on the subject 

  



Hillsborough Police Department Monthly Report  April 2016 

 
ADMINISTRATIVE SUMMARY 

 
Training 

• Total Hours of Non-Mandatory training – 192 
• Patrol Shift Training Conducted:  52 trainings conducted over 56 shifts (93%) 

Complaints related to service or conduct: 

• A service complaint was received related to an officer writing parking tickets on a Sunday 
morning. This situation is being reviewed.  

Resistance encounters that result in the use of some kind of force: 

• none 

Commendations/Compliments Received: 

• Received a letter from a citizen commending and thanking Office House for his assistance during 
the Autism Awareness walk. They were very complimentary of how he interacted with their 
daughter and the positive image he portrayed of our agency.  

Other Notable Events/Activities/Accomplishments 

• Two police cadets started the Orange County BLET program as the result of the Department’s 
diversity initiative. Lt. Whitted managed the process which included advertising, interviewing, 
testing and ultimately selecting candidates. Lt. Whitted accomplished these things under a very 
tight time frame of approximately two weeks. As a result of his work, two candidates were 
identified and were approved for the program.  

• We have continued to receive positive feedback on improved visibility and are continuing to 
work on improving.  

• On 4/5/16, Lt. Whitted attended a meeting at the Orange County Sheriff’s Office in reference to 
the Misdemeanor Diversion Program.  The program is designed to “divert” first time arrest or 
citations for eligible misdemeanor offenses. Hillsborough PD is participating in the program and 
made their first referral on April 30th.  
 

  



Hillsborough Police Department Monthly Report  April 2016 

 
PATROL SUMMARY  

 

Patrol Activities 2016 Feb Mar Apr
DISPATCHED CALLS 502 463 440

SELF INITIATED ACTIVITIES 164 367 322
TRAFFIC STOPS 174 172 145 Feb Mar Apr

TOTAL ENFORCEMENT TRAFFIC ENFORCEMENT DETAIL
              On-View Felony Arrest/warrant issued 2 8 5 Injury Accidents investigated 1 8 25
                  On-View Misd Arrest/warrant issued 9 21 10                                  DWI Arrests 5 2 1

                Warrants/OFA/Summons Served 17 29 10 Stopsign/Stop Light Violations 22 17 17
                           Traffic Citations 44 49 30                       Speeding Citations 4 2 7

Written Warnings 92 109 97 Other Traffic Citations 20 31 19
                          Parking Tickets 27 70 15           Truck Route Cits/Warnings 0 0 1

DRUG/GUN ENFORCEMENT DETAIL                            License Checks 0 6 4
                     Felony Drug Charge 1 0 2 Traffic Directed Patrols 35 27 13
                        Misd Drug Charge 1 3 8 COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

                        Currency Seizure 0 0 0 Non-Traffic Directed Patrols 205 117 66
                             Gun(s) Seized/Recovered 0 2 2                              School Patrols 49 53 47

Schedule I Seized (gms) 2.0 0 0 Downtown Foot Patrols 23 11 39
             Schedule II Seized (gms) 0 0 4 Preventative Contacts 0 12 11
            Schedule III Seized (gms) 0 0 0    Community Meetings / Events Attended 8 4 11
           Schedule IV Seized (gms) 0 0 1 Community Project/Problem Solved 0 0 2
           Schedule V Seized (gms) 0 0 0
           Schedule VI Seized (gms) 0.8 6.5 11.2

 

Other Notable Events/Activities/Accomplishments 

On 4/26 Officer Kempf was headed out to do some parking enforcement when heard some arguing 
behind the dumpster in the town parking lot. It turned out to be a couple who have been homeless, 
living in a tent and trying to make their way to Oregon. Officer Kempf was concerned for the female due 
to her appearing exhausted and stating she was pregnant so he called for EMS. He also contacted local 
resources such as OCIM for assistance with food and water. Kempf was called away to assist another 
officer and our Office Manager, Mrs. King, stepped up, providing a ride to the Petro and giving them 20 
dollars so they could get some hot food. 

Also on 4/26 Officer Hagbourne recognized a vehicle that had been reported stolen from Duke 
University Hospital Emergency Parking Lot, and she was also able to stop the vehicle and make the 
arrest for Possession of said vehicle. An outstanding warrant was also located and served on the 
suspect.  Officer Hagbourne was very observant which lead to the arrest and recovery.  

Cpl. Nash and Officer Felts, who is in training,  

  



Hillsborough Police Department Monthly Report  April 2016 

 
INVESTIGATIONS SUMMARY 

 
 

VIOLENT/PROPERTY CRIME SUMMARY AND CLEARANCE STATUS 

Crime 
CURENT MONTH YEAR TO DATE 

Reported Assigned 
to Invest. 

Cleared By 
Invest. 

Cleared By 
Other 

Reported Cleared % 

Homicide 0 0 0 0 0 0 na 
Rape 1 1 0 0 1 0 0% 
Robbery 1 1 0 0 2 1 50% 
Agg Assault 3 3 1 1 14 10 72% 
Sex. Offense 0 1 1 0 2 2 100% 

VIOLENT TOTAL 5 6 2 1 19 13 68% 
Burglary 5 5 0 0 12 2 16% 
Larceny from MV 10 7 0 0 27 0 0% 
Other Larceny 24 11 2 19 84 54 64% 
Motor Vehicle Theft 0 0 0 0 1 0 0% 

PROPERTY TOTAL  39 10 2 19 124 56 45% 
 

CID MONTHLY WORKLOAD  WARRANTS F M 
Prior Cases 52  Issued 2 0 
New Cases Assigned 37  Served 2 0 
Cleared by Arrest 4 
Exceptionally Cleared 11  NARCOTICS 
Unfounded 1  Prior Cases 5 
Closed/Inactivated 17  New Cases 2 
Cases to Carry 72  Closed Cases 1 

 

Other Notable Events/Activities/Accomplishments: 

• A selection process for future CID investigators was completed during April. As a result, Officer 
Purvis is moving to CID at the beginning of March. In addition, Sgt. White is also being moved to 
CID to fill the vacant Sergeant’s position.  

 

  



Hillsborough Police Department Monthly Report  April 2016 

 
COMMUNITY POLICING SUMMARY 

 
Community Watch Group Interactions/Activities   

 

Ongoing Programs Summary: 

• Tutoring – 3 sessions with approximately 33 participants. 

• Are You OK? – 14 participants. 21 checks made.  

• Safe Kids Program - 16 participants 

• Vial of Life – 21 residents registered 

Community Events/Engagement: 

• 4/4/16 – A meeting with the Spanish-Speaking community was held at the police sub-station.  
This meeting was a continuation of a series of meetings being held to improve relations and 
dispel fear. The community shared their concerns and discussed issues surrounding obtaining a 
NC operator’s license, the U-Visa program, replacement Social Security Cards and the Faith ID 
Program. Lt. Whitted is continuing to work with this group and answer questions. 

• 4/6/16 – Chief Hampton presented at the Town Citizen’s Academy. In attendance with him were 
Sgt. Chelenza and Officer Purvis. Officer Purvis was also a participant in the entire citizen’s 
academy as a way to become more familiar with town operations.  

• 4/6/16 - PHE Health Fair 9a-2p/ Lt. Whitted and Sr. Cpl. King attended and spoke on law 
enforcement as a career and answered questions. 

Group Type of contact(s) 
Beckett’s Ridge Community Watch meeting held 4/19. Cpl. King and 4 citizens attended.  
Cameron St. Cpl. King communicated with them through email 
Coachwood Cpl. King communicated with them through email 
Cornwallis Hills Inactive  
Fairview Chief Hampton, Lt. Whitted, Cpl. King, Cpl. Nash and Cpl. House attended 

Community Watch meeting on 4/4. 
Gateway Community watch meeting on 4/7. Cpl. King attended. 
Gatemoore No contact – group meets quarterly 
Hampton Point Cpl. King communicated through email. 
Hillsborough Heights Commissioner Ferguson attend the Fairview Community Watch on 4/4. She 

attended to relay information back to her group. 
Kenion Grove Cpl. King communicated through email. 
Orange St. INACTIVE 
Patriot’s Point INACTIVE 
River Bend Community watch meeting help on 4/7. Cpl. King and Officer Watson in 

attendance.  
% of Community Watch Groups Interacted with:  90% (9/10) 



Hillsborough Police Department Monthly Report  April 2016 

 
• 4/8/16 - Emergency Management Services held a Health Fair at University Mall in Chapel Hill. 

The time of the event was 10a-2p. Sr. Cpl. King attended. 

• 4/14/16 - Alamance Community College held a Career Day from 9:30am-12:30pm. Sgt. Parker 
attended the event as a representative of the Hillsborough Police Department. He spoke with 
college students on the career of law enforcement 

• 4/16/16 - Autism Awareness Day. Sr. Cpl. King, Lt. Simmons, Sgt. Parker, Sgt. Nash, Officer 
Dimitri, and Officer Hemingway represented the police department. There were approximately 
75 participants in the event. 

• 4/20/16 - North Carolina Central held a Crime Prevention Fair. Sr. Cpl. King represented the 
police department and there were approximately 200 participants from the university. 

• 4/24/16 - The residents of Fairview held a Walk For Hunger event from 1-4pm. Lt. Whitted and 
Cpl. E. House attended.  The participants, approximately 150, walked throughout the Fairview 
community only to return to the Fairview Park to raise money and fellowship 

• 4/27/16 - Grady A. Brown Elementary School held a bike safety program.  Sr. Cpl. King attended 
along with 75 students from the school 

• 4/29/16 - Last Friday’s events/ Lt Whitted, Sr. Cpl. King and Sgt. Huey attended. 

• 4/29/16 - Sr. Cpl. King attended a Visitors center Tour along with 40 participants. 

• 4/30/16 - The Hispanic Faith ID Drive/El Centro was held. Lt. Whitted represented the police 
department. This program is designed to assist the Hispanic community in obtaining proper 
identification. 

• 4/30/16 - Walk for Bladder Cancer was held from 9am-2pm at Gold Park. Sgt. Parker, Cpl. 
Corbett, and Officer Hagbourne attended. 

Community Concerns Summary: 

• During the Spanish-speaking community meeting, several citizens shared concerns related to 
some calls for service at 428 Tulip Tree Rd and 520 Locust Rd, where it was felt that the citizen’s 
complaints was dismissed. These incidents were discussed and it was found that they occurred 
several years ago, and the officer involved is no longer with the agency. Citizens were told that if 
they are ever dissatisfied with the service they receive they should let the chief or commanders 
know and it will be looked into.  

• Loud music complaints were received from Homemont Av. and patrol personnel were made 
aware.  

Community Problem Solving Summary: 

Problem Actions Results 
Community Problem Solving is still being developed 

 
Future Plans/Events: 



Hillsborough Police Department Monthly Report  April 2016 

 
• A Special Olympics Fundraiser - Broom Ball is planned for May 7th.  Broomball is a hockey/soccer 

style event that will be held at the Sportsplex. We are hoping to have 4 teams involved, and still 
have openings for several teams.   

• Plans are in motion to hold a Citizen’s Police Academy in May. 

 

 



Hillsborough Public Works 

April 2016 Monthly Report 

 

Work Orders:   15 work orders including 4 asphalt repair work orders, 11 work 
orders completed within two days, 4 asphalt repair completed 

Park Maintenance:    62 staff hours  

Cemetery:   4 gravesites marked, 2 monuments marked 

Stormwater Infrastructure:  52.5 staff hours, 463 ft. of ditch maintenance 

Last Friday’s:  4 staff hours 

 
 



Board of Commissioners 
Agenda Abstract Form 

Meeting Date: May 9, 2016 
  

Department: Administration 
 

Public Hearing:   Yes    No 
 

Date of Public Hearing: 

For Clerk’s Use Only 
AGENDA ITEM # 

10.A
Consent 
Agenda 

Regular 
Agenda 

Closed 
Session 

 

PRESENTER/INFORMATION CONTACT: Katherine Cathey, Human Resources Director/Town Clerk     

ITEM TO BE CONSIDERED 
Subject:   
Minutes of the Board of Commissioners April 11, 2016 Regular Meeting, Minutes of the Board of Commissioners April 
11, 2016 Regular Meeting Closed Session, and Minutes of the Board of Commissioners April 25, 2016 Work Session 

Attachment(s):  
1) Minutes of the Board of Commissioners April 11, 2016 Regular Meeting
2) Minutes of the Board of Commissioners April 25, 2016 Work Session 

Brief Summary:  
None 

Action Requested:  
Approve minutes 

ISSUE OVERVIEW 
Background Information & Issue Summary:  
None 

Financial Impacts:  
None 

Staff Recommendations/Comments:  
Approve minutes 



D
R
A
FT

 

Hillsborough Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting Minutes 
7 p.m. April 11, 2016 
Town Barn, 101 E. Orange St. 
 
PRESENT:  Mayor Tom Stevens and Commissioners Mark Bell, Kathleen Ferguson, Evelyn Lloyd, Brian Lowen, 
and Jenn Weaver 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Town Manager Eric Peterson, Planning Director Margaret Hauth, Finance Director Heidi 
Lamay, Management Analyst/Assistant PIO Jen Della Valle, Human Resources Director/Town Clerk Katherine 
Cathey, Public Works Director Ken Hines, Police Chief Duane Hampton, Stormwater Program Manager Terry 
Hackett, Public Information Officer Catherine Wright, and Town Attorney Bob Hornik 
 
ABSENT: None. 
 
Open the meeting:  
7:00:20 PM Mayor Stevens opened the meeting.  
 
1. PUBLIC CHARGE 
Mayor Stevens did not read the public charge but asked that everyone abide by it. 
 
2. AUDIENCE COMMENTS REGARDING MATTERS NOT ON THE PRINTED AGENDA 
There were none.  
 
3. AGENDA CHANGES & AGENDA APPROVAL 
No changes. Mayor Stevens approved the agenda as it stood. 
 
4. PRESENTATIONS 

A. Presentation and swearing in of Police Officer Anthony DeSantis 

Chief Hampton introduced Officer Anthony DeSantis who was then sworn in by Mayor Stevens.  
 
B. Presentation and swearing in of newly promoted Sergeant Jason Winn 

Chief Hampton recognized the service and promotion of now Sergeant Jason Winn, who reaffirmed his oath with 
Mayor Stevens.  
 
5. APPOINTMENTS 

A. Board of Adjustment – Appoint Dan Barker to a second full term as an in-town member with a term 
expiring April 30, 2019 

7:08:33 PM Commissioner Ferguson moved to appoint Dan Barker to a second term. Commissioner Lowen 
seconded. The motion carried upon a unanimous vote of 5-0.  
 
6. PUBLIC HEARING 

A. Staff Recommended Stormwater Utility Fees & Update 

Mayor Stevens opened the public hearing. Mr. Hackett gave a brief presentation. The highlights included: the 
town provides stormwater management services, there are unfunded mandates put upon the town by the state and 
the Environmental Protection Agency, the recommended fee structures, and comparisons with the fees of nearby 
municipalities. 
  

April 11, 2016 
Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting 

Approved: ____________________ 
Page 1 of 12

tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Board&nbsp;of&nbsp;Commissioners&quot;?datetime=&quot;20160411190020&quot;?Data=&quot;92d454f2&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Board&nbsp;of&nbsp;Commissioners&quot;?datetime=&quot;20160411190833&quot;?Data=&quot;98d8330c&quot;


D
R
A
FT

 
 

The proposed fee structure involves an annual fee of $75 for residential properties and five tiers for non-
residential properties. He presented a chart showing that revenue projections are $641,801 and proposed expenses 
are $629,417. 
 
No changes to fees for first 3 years. 
 
The public hearing is to stay open until the May budget hearing to enable citizens to continue to give input. 
 
Mayor Stevens said this has been covered at several meetings and the retreat.  
 
Cy Hogue addressed the board. Mr. Hogue encouraged the board to calculate the amount of impervious surface on 
each lot and divide it by square foot. He also asked whether the town is paying for its impervious surface – paying 
from the general fund into the water/sewer fund. Mr. Hogue read from the state statute to emphasize his point that 
there are other ways to calculate for a fee structure.  
 
Mayor Stevens said point taken, we would do it very specifically on the square footage but his understanding is 
that the cost of doing that is difficult. That’s what we’re wrestling with.  
 
Mr. Hogue said the town will still have to decide when properties go over the 10,000 SF and added that the town 
should at least pay the highest fee of $12,900 one time, considering all its property as one.  
 
7:22:07 PM Commissioner Lowen made a motion to continue the public hearing on this item. Commissioner 
Weaver seconded. The motion carried upon a unanimous vote of 5-0.  
 
7. PRESENTATION AND PUBLIC COMMENT 

A. Presentation and public comment regarding updating the town’s meter reading technology and 
contracting with FATHOM’s data management services 

Ms. Lamay reviewed that technology has become more advanced and the meter readers are antennas rather than 
people driving by in trucks. The system the town has now doesn’t give us a lot of detailed information. The town 
has had trouble with customer billing and currently service orders are printed pieces of paper. Customers have 
asked for a mobile app for phones, which the town cannot provide on its own. 
 
The contract includes assistance in taking phone calls, doing the billing and the collection, and meter data 
management (to help people determine if they have a leak sooner, customers can get a mobile app that alerts 
them of their usage). She believes it will improve collections. The proposal is to start with implementing 
customer service and then the data piece. Also, FATHOM has bilingual representatives and more payment 
options.  
 
Ms. Lamay gave a brief history of the FATHOM company. She reviewed that the town can use the readers and 
antennas we have. That infrastructure would not be wasted. We can start to install a different, preferable brand of 
meter and FATHOM can handle both models.  
 
Ms. Lamay highly recommends this contract. It will not result in a rate increase. She recognized the two 
representatives from FATHOM who were present.  
 
Mayor Stevens added that this presentation was also made to the Sewer Water Advisory Group. That board is 
very inquisitive, knowledgeable, and thoughtful. He acknowledged that Ms. Lamay has researched this.  
 
Ms. Lamay added if the board approves this, the customer piece would be in place by November, as opposed to 
her searching 18 months for a new system.  

April 11, 2016 
Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting 

Approved: ____________________ 
Page 2 of 12

tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Board&nbsp;of&nbsp;Commissioners&quot;?datetime=&quot;20160411192207&quot;?Data=&quot;041b1a00&quot;


D
R
A
FT

 
 

 
Commissioner Weaver said at the board retreat she had a concern about outsourcing customer service. She asked 
Ms. Lamay to repeat her answer from the retreat. 
 
Ms. Lamay said there would still be a customer service person in her office. People can still walk in and pay. 
That person would be able to open service tickets. The Hillsborough office can set the parameters of when an 
unhappy customer should be passed back to a town employee. She added for the customer service piece, the 
town can get out of it if desired. 
 
Commissioner Lloyd asked how many employees the town has now for this. The answer was two meter readers, 
a billing and collections supervisor, a person who does billing, two full-time customer service reps, and two part-
time reps. Ms. Lamay added that two of those positions would no longer be in that structure. One of the meter 
readers is very close to retirement. One of the full-time clerk positions would go away but there’s a similar 
position opening in finance. She left positions in for FY 2017 and would still operate in the black. Commissioner 
Lloyd emphasized wanting to have a person in the office. 
 
Commissioner Bell asked whether the town would still have a contract with Harris. Ms. Lamay answered yes.  
 
Mayor Stevens asked whether anyone in the audience wanted to speak. There were no comments.  
 
Ms. Lamay asked the board for permission to put out the RFP for financing for it. There isn’t another company 
that does this bundled service. She’s worked with Mr. Hornik and checked statutes on sole service providers. 
She needs to do a financing RFP to go to BB&T for financing, and the second request is to be able to start 
negotiating a contract with FATHOM.  
 
7:52:39 PM Commissioner Ferguson moved to authorize Ms. Lamay to issue an RFP for financing and 
permission to start negotiating a contract with FATHOM. Commissioner Bell seconded. The motion carried 
upon a unanimous vote of 5-0.  
 
8. CRITICAL COMMITTEE REPORTS 
Commissioner Ferguson reported that the Partnership for Homelessness has a new coordinator with 
communications experience. Community Home Trust hosted their open house. There is a bus tour at the end of 
the month to see the properties and meet homeowners. TJCOG is really participating in Smart Cities. There will 
be a presentation Friday that coincides with tours going on Friday. She acknowledged some residents from the 
Fairview neighborhood were present this evening. She commended Chief Hampton for the third Latino 
community summit. The conversation has been fruitful. Great trust is being built in the community, she said.  

 
Commissioner Lowen reported he has several meetings coming up. 
 
Commissioner Lloyd reported the fire department is discussing the budget. She attended the Citizens Academy on 
the police and fire department and it was very interesting. She met three new fire fighters.  
 
Mayor Stevens reported that several were present at the Chapel Hill/Orange Chamber “State of the Community” 
event.  
 
Commissioner Bell reported he and Commissioner Lowen attended the county water/sewer advisory board. 
Orange County has a 67 percent reduction in solid waste. There is conversation of new technology to burn certain 
waste products to create energy, and they are just starting to talk about whether this is an option. UNC burns a lot 
of coal, and it would be great if this could be an energy substitute for UNC.  
 
9. REPORT FROM THE TOWN MANAGER 

April 11, 2016 
Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting 

Approved: ____________________ 
Page 3 of 12

tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Board&nbsp;of&nbsp;Commissioners&quot;?datetime=&quot;20160411195239&quot;?Data=&quot;808c04e4&quot;


D
R
A
FT

 
 

No report 
 
10. DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS 
Chief Hampton added an update about an entry level cadet. He is mildly optimistic that they may be able to 
identify a candidate for May, but it may be August.  
 
11. ITEMS FOR DECISION — CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Minutes of the Board of Commissioners Feb. 27, 2016 Annual Budget Planning Retreat, Minutes of the 
Board of Commissioners March 14, 2016 Regular Meeting, Minutes of the Board of Commissioners 
March 14, 2016 Regular Meeting Closed Session, and Minutes of the Board of Commissioners March 
28, 2016 State of the Town Address 

B. Miscellaneous Budget Amendments and Transfers 
C. Digital submittal requirements for water/sewer/stormwater projects 
D. Revisions to the checklist for approval and acceptance of utilities projects 
E. Sexual Assault Awareness Month Proclamation 
F. Authorize application submittal to designate Riverwalk as part of the state trail system 
G. Acceptance of water and sewer facilities at Waterstone Terraces townhomes, Phase 2, and start of 1-year 

warranty period 

7:59:32 PM Commissioner Lowen moved to approve the items on the consent agenda. Commissioner Weaver 
seconded. The motion carried upon a unanimous vote of 5-0.  
 
12. ITEMS FOR DECISION — REGULAR AGENDA 

A. Resolution Opposing HB2 and supporting passing protections against LGBT discrimination 

Mayor Stevens made a statement in opposition to HB2.  
 
Frank Cohen, a citizen, made a statement opposing HB2. He said he found the language in the law offensive and 
he is concerned that it erodes the authority of localities. He asked Town Attorney Bob Hornik whether there are 
legal options. Mr. Hornik answered there are. Mr. Cohen is interested in partnering with other municipalities in a 
class action lawsuit.  
 
8:11:32 PM Nancy Taylor, a citizen, said she supports everything that has been said. She has made calls to 
Raleigh and sent emails. She is asking the Town Board to speak out for all of us against it. 
 
Mayor Stevens asked if anyone else would like to speak. No one else in the audience wished to speak.  
 
Commissioner Bell said he goes on the record to say it is discriminatory toward classes of people, wages, and the 
authority of local government.  
 
Commissioner Weaver said she supports all the comments so far and they are thoughtful. She cited a book she 
read recently and how this piece of legislation harkens back to Jim Crow. She emphasized this is not a bathroom 
bill.  
 
Commissioner Ferguson said I am not a big fan of resolutions but this is one I immediately wanted to act on. I 
am a military wife, 27 years. My husband has been shot, tortured for the right of citizen redress, for the right of 
equal protection, and this bill is an affront to that. This bill is an affront to local control. For a state that rails 
against Washington, this is being hypocritical. It makes a mockery of our system. I have seen Jim Crow. This is 
Jim Crow. It just has a little bit of a different costume to it. Jim Crow was not acceptable then, and it is not 
acceptable now.  
 
Commissioner Lloyd said I don’t have anything to add but agree with what’s been said.  

April 11, 2016 
Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting 

Approved: ____________________ 
Page 4 of 12

tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Board&nbsp;of&nbsp;Commissioners&quot;?datetime=&quot;20160411195932&quot;?Data=&quot;0ae79fb3&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Board&nbsp;of&nbsp;Commissioners&quot;?datetime=&quot;20160411201132&quot;?Data=&quot;31213b36&quot;


D
R
A
FT

 
 

 
Commissioner Lowen said for the past couple of weeks I have gone to bed wondering do I really want to still be 
here in NC. It’s racism and discrimination. It makes me wonder where are we going as a nation. You’ve been 
discriminated against at your job, and you don’t have a right to complain about it. We have to join hands. We 
have to go in November and turn the legislature out. Our community is doing the right thing saying this is 
wrong.  
 
8:23:41 PM Commissioner Weaver made a motion to approve the resolution. Commissioner Ferguson seconded. 
The motion carried upon a unanimous vote of 5-0.  
 

B. Receive request to close an unimproved portion of Piney Lane 

Ms. Hauth reviewed the request from three residents who shared what would be a property line. State law spells 
out it must be advertised and then a public hearing may be called four weeks or more from now. The engineer 
contacted her to say no water/sewer lines are under it so the town doesn’t need to reserve easements for utility 
lines.  
 
Commissioner Lowen said it makes sense and the likelihood of cutting a road through there is slim to none.  
 
8:26:47 PM Commissioner Lowen moved to adopt the resolution of intent. Commissioner Ferguson seconded. 

 
Mayor Stevens asked whether the town has any interest in retaining it. Ms. Hauth said West Hillsborough has 
ample opportunity to move around. This is not a place where we want to put a road someday. Ms. Hauth added 
that closing it midblock rather than completely closing it is more desirable. And it gives the neighbors 
opportunities to put additions on their houses.  
 
8:30:36 PM Patricia L. Weigant, a property owner, said the road becomes steep. Commissioner Lowen said the 
portion that is already paved becomes a private driveway that we’re maintaining. He asked if we can split that in 
half so we’re not maintaining what’s essentially a private driveway. Ms. Hauth said it would compel the two 
property owners on West Hill to agree to it. If it’s closed, they could say we don’t want these people driving 
through our backyard.  
 
8:32:07 PM Vote: The motion carried upon a unanimous vote of 5-0.  
 

C. Discussion of proposals to provide pre-development services if the town acquires 153 W. King Street 
(former Colonial Inn) 

Ms. Hauth reviewed that  in December the Town Board received DFI’s proposal, and the board asked in due 
diligence if there is anybody else who wants to do this for us. The town is much in the same place as we were in 
December. We have information from Preservation North Carolina about what that group usually does. 
 
Mayor Stevens said he spoke with Christy Raulli of DFI earlier this afternoon and he thinks this is valuable. I am 
feeling a little uncomfortable moving forward because we’re still in the acquisition process. I am also worried 
that maybe the acquisition will go quickly and we will wish we’d done things a little more in advance. I also 
have concerns would any of this duplicate what a developer might provide or do. And, I think it’s important to 
have a third party so I think we’ll work with them, but maybe I have concerns about the scope. He’d like to sit 
down with DFI and Mr. Hornik and go through the scope; maybe kick this around a little more until we’re 
further down the acquisition process. There was agreement.  
 

D. Discuss formation of Intergovernmental Work Group relating to affordable housing 

Commissioner Ferguson said last year we had to do a comprehensive plan as a county for HUD home funds. 

April 11, 2016 
Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting 

Approved: ____________________ 
Page 5 of 12

tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Board&nbsp;of&nbsp;Commissioners&quot;?datetime=&quot;20160411202341&quot;?Data=&quot;9783181e&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Board&nbsp;of&nbsp;Commissioners&quot;?datetime=&quot;20160411202647&quot;?Data=&quot;fa0849a6&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Board&nbsp;of&nbsp;Commissioners&quot;?datetime=&quot;20160411203036&quot;?Data=&quot;761c7cc2&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Board&nbsp;of&nbsp;Commissioners&quot;?datetime=&quot;20160411203207&quot;?Data=&quot;0a116e74&quot;


D
R
A
FT

 
 

This year we have to create a strategic five-year plan. Orange County Commissioner Pelissier is asking for 
representatives from each municipality. It would be similar to SWAG.  
 
Once the three municipalities have submitted their petitions of support to the Orange County Board of 
Commissioners, then the BOCC will formally vote to form this group. 
 
8:39:19 PM Commissioner Ferguson moved to petition. Commissioner Weaver seconded.. The motion carried 
upon a unanimous vote of 5-0.  
 

E. Update to the traffic calming policy 

Mr. Hines said last year there was a traffic calming request and it was voted at that time not to install traffic 
calming devices. When he looked at it, he compared what Hillsborough does compared to other cities. We need 
to do what works best here in Hillsborough. He reviewed the changes he’d like to make. He thanked Jen Della 
Valle for assistance in putting it together.  
 
He explained his suggested changes to the criteria. The town now owns two radar type traffic counters instead of 
tubes which should make it easier to do a traffic study. If speed tables were approved, it comes down to funding. 
We now have $15,000 a year for traffic calming to support installing some speed tables. Chief Hampton said 
traffic calming isn’t an enforcement issue for us.  
 
Commissioner Bell asked what the reasoning for 25 mph or less is. He asked if we have speeding on streets with 
35 mph. Mr. Hines said the roads with 35 mph are state roads and we’re not allowed to install speed tables. 
Commissioner Bell mentioned cars driving 40 and 45 mph on W. King St., which is a state road.  
 
Mr. Hines went on to explain the policy would require 500 vehicles per day average for traffic volume. That’s 
his opinion of what fits in Hillsborough.  

 
He asked the board’s opinion on who can sign a petition – property owners and/or residents. The board agreed 
residents should be allowed to sign, even if renting.  
 
Mr. Hines would like this on the May consent agenda. The board thanked Mr. Hines and Ms. Della Valle for 
their work.  
 

F. Discussion of traffic study preparation for development proposals 

8:52:27 PM Ms. Hauth told the board that the engineer that had worked with Volkert took a new job and Volkert 
no longer wishes to do traffic studies. We tried that out for three years where the town had a contract with a firm 
and we worked on their scope and it was our consultant who was working with us. That’s not very common 
throughout the Triangle. Municipalities either have several lined up and take turns using each or let applicants 
hire who they want and someone on staff reviews the plan. We’re at a crossroads here. We don’t have pending 
applications. I need some guidance from you, she said. 
 
She explained the first firm that comes to mind for her is most likely to be hired by the applicant and therefore 
won’t be the town’s. She doesn’t need a response tonight.  
 
Commissioner Ferguson asked do you have another firm or a pool of firms in mind. Ms. Hauth said it’s not that 
easy, it’s a specialty. Private sector probably pays more. They’re not particularly interested in responding.  
 
Mayor Stevens said that anybody can do a study but having local knowledge matters.  
 
Ms. Hauth said it might be reasonable to try for a year or two years to let folks bring in who they want and see if 

April 11, 2016 
Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting 

Approved: ____________________ 
Page 6 of 12

tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Board&nbsp;of&nbsp;Commissioners&quot;?datetime=&quot;20160411203919&quot;?Data=&quot;7cf8d6b4&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Board&nbsp;of&nbsp;Commissioners&quot;?datetime=&quot;20160411205227&quot;?Data=&quot;4ac7bf38&quot;


D
R
A
FT

 
 

we get the results and responsiveness that we need. Mayor Stevens said can we make it an option if it’s a bigger 
project that we can bring in our own engineer. Ms. Hauth agreed that would give us time.  
 
Commissioner Lloyd asked who the county uses. Ms. Hauth said the county used to use Volkert but may not 
have been recently.  
 
Ms. Hauth will need to talk with other municipalities to find out other firms we can contact. The fee is passed on 
to the developers.  
 
Mayor Stevens said he recalled talking about how a traffic study is done, whether it’s level of service or traffic 
time. Ms. Hauth said it has to be done to DOT standards which is level of service. We could also ask for travel 
time. Mayor Stevens said having that information is something important to include. Ms. Hauth said we’ll have 
to help folks to define travel time from where to where. That’s going to be different for every project.  
 
Ms. Hauth said to handle the interim, we’ve allowed Waterstone to go back to the firm that did their original big 
study which may also apply if Collins Ridge submits a SUP before we have somebody on track to do the 
reviews. Commissioner Lloyd doesn’t want it to be developers’ choice.  
 
Ms. Hauth will bring it back next month with more information on who prepared the county’s comments.  
 
Commissioner Ferguson said I like having ours. I like knowing plan B is if we don’t have a plan A. We need to 
have an option if it’s not viable.  
 

G. Discuss Hot Topics for April 25, 2016 Work Session 

Mr. Peterson said it would include the annual review of the Balanced Score Cards. Construction project for 
downtown is also needed, Ms. Hauth added. Commissioner Ferguson asked about code enforcement in Fairview. 
Mr. Peterson said if town staff hears about any properties, code enforcement can go out.  
 
9:05:09 PM Commissioner Bell moved to go into Closed Session. Commissioner Ferguson seconded. The motion 
carried upon a unanimous vote of 5-0.  
 
13. CLOSED SESSION 

A. Closed Session as authorized by North Carolina General Statute Section 143-318.11(a)(5) to discuss and 
give direction to staff regarding negotiating terms for the possible acquisition of real property (the 
former Colonial Inn, 153 W. King St.) 

B. Closed Session as authorized by North Carolina General Statute Section 143-318.11(a)(3) to consult 
with the Town Attorney in order to preserve the attorney-client privilege (potential litigation) 

9:34:01 PM Commissioner Ferguson moved to authorize our attorney to explore litigation seeking repeal of 
HB2. Commissioner Lowen seconded. The motion carried upon a unanimous vote of 5-0.  

 
14. ADJOURN 
9:34:43 PM Commissioner Lowen moved to adjourn the meeting. Commissioner Weaver seconded. The 
motion carried upon a unanimous vote of 5-0.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Katherine M. Cathey 
Town Clerk 

April 11, 2016 
Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting 

Approved: ____________________ 
Page 7 of 12

tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Board&nbsp;of&nbsp;Commissioners&quot;?datetime=&quot;20160411210509&quot;?Data=&quot;9099e732&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Board&nbsp;of&nbsp;Commissioners&quot;?datetime=&quot;20160411213401&quot;?Data=&quot;72b07440&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Board&nbsp;of&nbsp;Commissioners&quot;?datetime=&quot;20160411213443&quot;?Data=&quot;4328fedd&quot;


D
R
A
FT

April 11, 2016 
Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting 

Approved: ____________________ 
Page 8 of 12



D
R
A
FT

April 11, 2016 
Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting 

Approved: ____________________ 
Page 9 of 12



D
R
A
FT

April 11, 2016 
Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting 

Approved: ____________________ 
Page 10 of 12



D
R
A
FT

April 11, 2016 
Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting 

Approved: ____________________ 
Page 11 of 12



D
R
A
FT

April 11, 2016 
Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting 

Approved: ____________________ 
Page 12 of 12



D
R
A
FT

Hillsborough Board of Commissioners Monthly Work Session Minutes 
7 p.m. April 25, 2016 
Town Barn, 101 E. Orange St. 

PRESENT:  Mayor Tom Stevens, Commissioners Mark Bell, Kathleen Ferguson, Jenn Weaver, Evelyn 
Lloyd and Brian Lowen 

ABSENT: None 

STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT:  Town Manager Eric Peterson, Planning Director Margaret Hauth, 
Finance Director Heidi Lamay, Town Engineer/Utilities Director Kenny Keel, Police Chief Duane 
Hampton, Human Resources Director/Town Clerk Katherine Cathey, Management Analyst/Assistant PIO 
Jen Della Valle, Public Information Officer Catherine Wright, Fleet Maintenance Supervisor David 
Wisely, Stormwater Program Manager Terry Hackett, Assistant Utilities Director Will Baker, Wastewater 
Plant Superintendent Jeff Mahagan, Water Plant Supervisor Russell Bateman, Fire Marshal/Emergency 
Management Coordinator Jerry Wagner, and Town Attorney Bob Hornik  

1. Open the Workshop
7:00:24 PM Mayor Stevens opened the workshop.

2. Agenda Changes & Agenda Approval
No changes.

3. Committee Updates and Reports
Commissioner Bell had nothing to report. Mayor Stevens said Commissioner Lloyd would be running
late. Commissioner Weaver reported that there are several bills that may have some interesting local
effects, as far as water quality goes. Commissioner Lowen said he went to the Durham TAC meeting, and
it was very brief.

Commissioner Ferguson said according to the Home Trust quarterly report, there are now a total of three 
lenders. The will be a broadband infrastructure seminar at TJCOG. There will be others that go along with 
Smart Cities initiative. Folks are welcome to attend and to stay for the delegates meeting on May 25 at 4 
p.m. in RTP. There’s a chamber event tomorrow. Mayor Stevens said he will not be there because he will
be on the WCHL forum with the other mayors. Mayor Stevens commended Ms. Della Valle and others
who worked on the Citizens Academy. It has wrapped up and was a remarkably well done program.

4. Public Hearing – Installment purchase financing for the purchase of the Advanced Meter Reading
infrastructure

Mayor Stevens opened up the public hearing on this item. Ms. Hauth informed the board that no one had 
signed up to speak on this matter. Ms. Lamay said the public hearing is required for financing. Mayor 
Stevens asked whether anyone wanted to speak. No one did. Mayor Stevens closed the public hearing. 

7:05:24 PM Commissioner Lowen moved to approve the installment purchase financing. 
Commissioner Ferguson seconded. The motion carried upon a unanimous vote of 4-0 (Commissioner 
Lloyd had not yet arrived).  

April 25, 2016 
Board of Commissioners Monthly Work Session 

Approved: ____________________ 
Page 1 of 12

tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Board&nbsp;of&nbsp;Commissioners&quot;?datetime=&quot;20160425190024&quot;?Data=&quot;23015240&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Board&nbsp;of&nbsp;Commissioners&quot;?datetime=&quot;20160425190524&quot;?Data=&quot;6be15c24&quot;


D
R
A
FT

5. Presentation of the FATHOM contract to replace existing AMR drive by meter reading system with 
AMI technology, provide the infrastructure installation and bundled customer service 

 
Ms. Lamay told the board she put the RFP out for financing and got two proposals back. One is with the 
group that FATHOM works with, but our local BB&T branch came back with a lower proposal – 2.4 
percent for 15 years. That’s a good rate for that amount of time. It’s about $5,000 less per payment than 
the higher rate. She recommends going forward with BB&T. 
 
7:06:58 PM Commissioner Ferguson moved to authorize the town manager to sign the contract. 
Commissioner Lowen seconded. Mayor Stevens and the board thanked the Water/Sewer Advisory Board 
for their work on this. Mr. Hornik said the contract they have is the one that, after all the vetting, has all 
the language we’d asked for. Ms. Lamay said Mr. Hornik is a tough negotiator. Ms. Lamay said that 
FATHOM projected revenues using a super conservative number. When we get 2 percent, we’re in the 
black. She acknowledged the two FATHOM representatives who were in the audience. The motion 
carried upon a unanimous vote of 4-0 (Commissioner Lloyd had not yet arrived). 
 
Ms. Lamay and Mr. Hornik agreed there was a need for a motion for financing.  
7:10:15 PM Commissioner Ferguson moved approval of the installment purchasing contract with 
BB&T. Commissioner Lowen seconded. The motion carried upon a unanimous vote of 4-0 
(Commissioner Lloyd had not yet arrived). 
 
Ms. Lamay reminded the board the next vote would be for the LGC application to have financing 
approved.  
7:10:37 PM Commissioner Ferguson moved approval of the LGC application. Commissioner Weaver 
seconded. The motion carried upon a unanimous vote of 4-0 (Commissioner Lloyd had not yet arrived). 

 
6. Miscellaneous budget amendments and transfers 
Mayor Stevens asked for questions. There were none. 

 
7:11:13 PM Commissioner Lowen moved to approve as presented in the packet. Commissioner 
Ferguson seconded. The motion carried upon a unanimous vote of 4-0 (Commissioner Lloyd had not yet 
arrived). 

 
7. Request from the Hillsborough Arts Council for Sponsorship and Increase in Funding for FY17 
Ms. Della Valle reviewed that the Hillsborough Arts Council was asking for an additional $500 and an 
additional $5,000 for platinum sponsorship. They already had a line item budgeted but with us moving 
away from the nonprofit grants process, the Arts Council is bringing forward this request. The Board had 
said come to forward with requests that specifically tie back to the town’s strategic objectives. Neil 
Stutzer from the Arts Council was in the audience if the board had questions. 

 
Mayor Stevens said he’s had several conversations with Mr. Stutzer about this. This seems more in line 
with how we want to do business. Commissioner Ferguson, addressing Mr. Stutzer, said at a Tourism 
Board meeting you’ve raised challenges of booking a band for Last Fridays. She asked if this funding 
would address that. Mr. Stutzer answered no. the Tourism Board asked for an RFP for expanding Last 
Fridays into West Hillsborough. Mr. Stutzer said this is for budgeting and marketing and for the 
Handmade Parade. It’s to continue our growth and to expand because of the needs of the community. 
Mayor Stevens said I like to think it leverages you to get the funding that you need. Mayor Stevens asked 
for questions from the board. There were none. He commended the Arts Council for the work they do. 

 
Mr. Stutzer said I gave you a large packet to explain what we’re doing and where we want to go. He then 

April 25, 2016 
Board of Commissioners Monthly Work Session 

Approved: ____________________ 
Page 2 of 12

tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Board&nbsp;of&nbsp;Commissioners&quot;?datetime=&quot;20160425190658&quot;?Data=&quot;b2bdd4c7&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Board&nbsp;of&nbsp;Commissioners&quot;?datetime=&quot;20160425191015&quot;?Data=&quot;f2eb2cb5&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Board&nbsp;of&nbsp;Commissioners&quot;?datetime=&quot;20160425191037&quot;?Data=&quot;152a4535&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Board&nbsp;of&nbsp;Commissioners&quot;?datetime=&quot;20160425191113&quot;?Data=&quot;1b2a73f7&quot;


D
R
A
FT

reviewed what was in the packet with many details on what the Hillsborough Arts Council does. He 
encouraged capitalizing on the many artists of all types (visual artists, chefs, educators, etc.) who live in 
Hillsborough.  
 
7:29:41 PM Commissioner Ferguson moved approval of the additional $500 for the line item and 
$5,000 bonus funding. Commissioner Bell seconded. The motion carried upon a unanimous vote of 5-0.  
 
Ms. Della Valle asked for future years, would the Board want to hear this again or include it 
automatically. 
 
Mayor Stevens said it’s a good way to move forward. It’s good to have an informal chat with a staff 
member or board member instead of just showing up at a meeting. I think it is probably a pretty good 
model if someone has a clear partnership. Ms. Della Valle asked whether to include them within the 
budget for future years. Commissioner Ferguson said I’d like them to come every year because there’s 
always going to be an evolution, and it keeps the communication and accountability in place.  
 
8. Review, discuss and provide direction to staff regarding the proposed departmental balanced 

scorecards and strategy maps that are part of the FY17-19 budget and financial plan 
Mr. Peterson said we have two weeks to reduce deficits, and get the management team to tighten things 
up. We may need to defer things if budgets aren’t tightened sufficiently.  
 
Mayor Stevens said the presentation/chart is very helpful. Ms. Della Valle and departments get credit for 
that, Mr. Peterson said. 
 
Mr. Peterson went through the Score Card by department asking for comments, questions, and 
suggestions.  
 
Commissioner Ferguson asked under Planning hadn’t we talked about how to incorporate affordable 
housing. Mr. Peterson said we’ve been struggling to find a good metric for two years. Ms. Hauth said she 
has been looking for a benchmark and hasn’t found one. Commissioner Ferguson said she understands 
but she wouldn’t mind us choosing a metric. She’d like it to stay on the radar. Commissioner Lloyd added 
she is thinking we’re doing better except that we don’t have anyone to build the affordable units at 
Waterstone but with all the infrastructure we need, she doesn’t want Ms. Hauth spending time on it now. 
She sees us getting to it.  
 
Under Police, Commissioner Weaver said in seeing the news about the new misdemeanor diversion 
program the county has, she is wondering if we have that. Chief Hampton answered we’re a part of that.  
 
Mr. Peterson added that our property and liability insurance renewal is the best we can possibly get. Our 
modifier is below the lowest you can get. We had a couple of big years of workers compensation.  
 
Under Water, Mr. Keel added we’re trying to track how frequently and how much water lines we need to 
replace in any given year over a 5-year period to have a replacement plan. It’s going to be a work in 
progress. We’ve added it as a measure as well as the percent of water mains with good pressure. We also 
added a couple of items about sewer lines and sludge treatment and cost of chemicals and are trying to get 
a feel for them and how they track. We are currently looking for comparison measures from other places. 
Commissioner Ferguson asked regarding the cost of chemicals, how you distinguish chemical cost 
increases versus usage increases. Mr. Keel said we might just have to put an asterisk by it to explain.  

 
Mr. Peterson said he’s pleased with how the Score Card is improving and being used by departments.  

 

April 25, 2016 
Board of Commissioners Monthly Work Session 

Approved: ____________________ 
Page 3 of 12

tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Board&nbsp;of&nbsp;Commissioners&quot;?datetime=&quot;20160425192941&quot;?Data=&quot;d93c8a79&quot;


D
R
A
FT

9. Review and provide direction to staff regarding the “Top 3” Board Priorities and each department’s 
Top Priority  

Ms. Cathey reviewed that the Human Resources’ main goal is to develop a skilled and diverse workforce. 
 
This will be achieved through employee learning and development (with categories of safety, intro 
courses for town employees such as customer service, workplace harassment, also advanced level courses 
such as to expand skills like process improvement, writing, learning about the budget, and plan 
incorporate classes into employee evaluation). 
 
The next way of achieving the goal is Hillsborough University and Emerging Leaders Academy for 
current supervisors and aspiring supervisors, probably once every other week for 9 months with some 
outside work involved, including a mentoring program and a special project to gain additional skills and 
knowledge. 
 
The third is diversity and inclusion including recruitment efforts and the way we’re structuring positions 
(create internships, apprenticeships). We will look at policies and see if any updates could be made to 
eliminate barriers and look at our branding and presenting the town as a desirable place to work. The 
training for the learning/development program is also an aspect of this to move people up. 
 
The fourth component is succession planning which will be looked at more formally in year 2 or 3. 
Succession planning efforts will also focus on preparing employees to move into future vacancies.  
 
Commissioner Lloyd asked do you think you can do this in 3 years. Ms. Cathey answered it’s ambitious 
because it’s been awhile since the town has focused on internal employee training. She and Human 
Resources Analyst Sherri Ingersoll have conducted employee training in the past. Ms. Wright is going to 
teach a writing course. Commissioner Lloyd asked will you have enough money. Ms. Cathey said we 
built funding into the budget for some external resources. We won’t be able to do all classes in the first 
year, mainly due to time constraints.  
 
Ms. Lamay, addressing financing/meter reading, said the primary goal is to provide accurate information 
for decision making. They have defined customers into management team/supervisors, water/sewer 
customers, and business customers.  
 
On the finance side, the goal is to deliver timely expense reports to all stakeholders.  
 
Commissioner Ferguson asked for clarification that 24 hour response is business days not on a Saturday. 
Ms. Lamay said it will be clarified as being weekdays so that it can be measured accurately.  
 
Chief Hampton reported his department’s goal is a work in progress. They want to involve all the staff 
and are using it as the first piece in a strategic plan. It’s hard to get people together. We’re still getting 
feedback from supervisors. They picked four areas: relationships, problem solving, visibilities, and 
programs. For each, they identified 3-4 action items to get better in these areas. They have started 
building relationships with Spanish-speaking populations. They are also focusing on “own your zone” 
and are looking for ways to make the goals fun. The last big piece is programs, creating an inventory of 
existing ones, finding which ones are working and which ones aren’t. They are considering a score card 
for programs to measure the kind of reach they getting out of them. 
 
For Public Works, Mr. Hines reported we’re preparing for and anticipating growth in six areas within 
town. They will be modifying collection routes. The garbage truck needs to be back by 3 p.m. so that the 
automated arm can be greased and the truck can be washed. With two trucks, his staff can do 70 rollout 
carts in an hour. Commissioner Ferguson asked when we will hit capacity where we need a third truck. 

April 25, 2016 
Board of Commissioners Monthly Work Session 

Approved: ____________________ 
Page 4 of 12



D
R
A
FT

Mr. Hines answered we’ll be ok without it even with the current approved houses built out.  
 
Mr. Keel reported that the Utilities’ focus is improvements to our residuals handling at the water plant but 
this affects all utilities. We had an issue of how much built up over the years. We haven’t been able to do 
a full residual removal. This caused sediment to collect in the treatment system. For these reasons, it’s a 
priority and it’s being addressed mostly by in-house staff. It will be hauled off in a couple of months.  
 
Commissioner Lloyd commended the staff for doing this. It’s her favorite.  
 
For Planning, Ms. Hauth reported, the goals are: connectivity, economic development and affordable 
housing. The team worked on the connectivity part. She referred to Ms. Trueblood’s workshop 
presentation at a previous meeting. Connectivity is expensive and it takes time and it’s moving along. She 
cautioned that paths don’t happen quickly. Riverwalk was 20 years in the making.  
 
The other two topics are very big, amorphous topics that you didn’t give us a lot of direction on, and I 
don’t know what you want to accomplish under those headings. Regarding economic development, the 
Town Board and Orange County Board of Commissioners talked at the joint meeting about getting 
utilities under I-40. Her thought is if the county wants to pay us to run utilities under the interstate, I’m 
sure we’d be happy to do that. Also under this topic, we’ve made a lot of choices about purchasing 
property and selling some downtown properties. We need to think about how we want to offer those 
properties for sale and not just put signs out and take the highest bidder. Also, what we do here has a 
catalytic effect on the north side of town. We don’t have expertise on staff to do this. Luckily, we have 
time. It is something on the to-do list and probably falls on a three-year horizon.  
 
Commissioner Ferguson said she likes some of the planning we have in place and asked how we bring 
existing plans into fruition. We’ve got a good framework. I’m thrilled to see water/sewer south of I-40. 
Mayor Stevens said seeing the three stages is helpful. I’m hearing a creative tension we’re having as there 
are things we’d like to do for economic development and these things are connected – what happens 
downtown to what happens to town hall and the rail station and Daniel Boone Village. One thing budget 
wise is we’re really having to hold back on investing in new building.  
 
Ms. Hauth added that regarding affordable housing, we talk to our partners and we talk to each applicant 
who comes in. Commissioner Ferguson thinks when the inter-local group gets up and running it will help 
us. Ms. Hauth said I thought you wanted us to have our own policy. Commissioner Ferguson wants both. 
She thinks it won’t take that group long to come up with a policy.  
 
Mayor Stevens said the policy for the scale and scope of Hillsborough maybe doesn’t have to be that 
elaborate. The policy could be we’re going to think about it every time we do development. A percentage 
might not be appropriate. Articulating that we are looking to have a variety of housing stock helps. 
Commissioner Ferguson said with the approval of Collins Ridge, there is no big housing development to 
which to apply a policy.  
 
Ms. Hauth passed out a handout. She said the number one goal is to manage growth that has already been 
approved. There isn’t time to manage the other three goals. Nine years ago, I had four full-time people. I 
don’t have four full-time people now. There was brief discussion about her calculations on the number of 
hours her full-time staff works in a year (1,896) versus the standard of 1,624 that Commissioner Ferguson 
uses. Commissioner Ferguson expressed concern about the high estimate. Ms. Hauth added that nine 
years ago there were 40 houses a year being built. Now it’s 80 and it might go faster. We do need to be 
doing more construction site management. She said she had to ask for more staff. Commissioner 
Ferguson said the handout and information was incredibly helpful and valuable.  
 

April 25, 2016 
Board of Commissioners Monthly Work Session 

Approved: ____________________ 
Page 5 of 12



D
R
A
FT

Mr. Peterson was asked for comment. Mr. Peterson said all departments are dealing with something 
similar and we are looking at budget deficits and we’ve got difficult decisions to make.  
 
Commissioner Ferguson asked if it’s realistic to not have a tax increase. Mr. Peterson said we will not 
have a tax increase. I just need some more time to figure it out.  
 
Mayor Stevens said I’m agreeing that we live within the taxes we’ve got.  
 
Mr. Peterson said from looking at the model, he has already pushed the public safety building out a year 
and may need to push it out another year. Having a building is helpful but it’s more helpful to get the 
people the tools they need.  
 
10. Other Business 
9:19:37 PM Commissioner Lowen moved to adjourn. Commissioner Weaver seconded. The motion 
carried upon a unanimous vote of 5-0. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Katherine M. Cathey 
Town Clerk 

April 25, 2016 
Board of Commissioners Monthly Work Session 

Approved: ____________________ 
Page 6 of 12

tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Board&nbsp;of&nbsp;Commissioners&quot;?datetime=&quot;20160425211937&quot;?Data=&quot;70080d3b&quot;


D
R
A
FT

April 25, 2016 
Board of Commissioners Monthly Work Session 

Approved: ____________________ 
Page 7 of 12



D
R
A
FT

Resolution #20160425-Sc 

RESOLUTION 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE FILING OF AN APPLICATION FOR 
APPROVAL OF A FINANCING AGREEMENT AUTHORIZED BY NORTH 
CAROLINA GENERAL STATUTE 160A-20 

WHEREAS, the Town of Hillsborough, North Carolina desires to replace their Automatic Meter 
Reading meter reading system with and Advanced Meter Reading Technology (the "Project") to better 

serve the citizens of the Town of Hillsborough; and 

WHEREAS, The Town of Hillsborough desires to finance the Project by the use of an installment 
contract authorized under North Carolina General Statute 160A, Article 3, Section 20; and 

WHEREAS, findings of fact by this governing body must be presented to enable the North 
Carolina Local Government Commission to make its findings of fact set forth in North Carolina 
General Statute 159, Article 8, Section 151 prior to approval of the proposed contract; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of the Town of 
Hillsborough, North Carolina, meeting in regular session on the 25th day of April, 2016, make the 
following findings of fact: 

1. The proposed contract is necessary or expedient because the new technology will provide a

greater degree of accuracy and eliminate the need for additional resources, thereby reducing
costs and increasing revenues. The proposed contract would make the project feasible while

ensuring proper debt management.

2. The proposed contract is preferable to a bond issue for the same purpose because the Town can

purchase the consulting, equipment, installation, and maintenance in a timely manner while
taking advantage of current purchase costs and practicing proper debt management. The Town
can also service the debt on this project and keep a healthy fund balance without increasing
the current water and sewer rates.

3. The cost of financing under the proposed contract is less than the cost of issuing general
obligation bonds.

4. The sums to fall due under the contract are adequate and not excessive for the proposed
purpose because they are equal to the agreed upon contract to provide these services.

5. The Town of Hillsborough's debt management procedures and policies are good, as verified by

the Town's Finance Director and through annual audits. The Town is in compliance with all
applicable laws and will continue to manage debt in such a manner.

6. No increase in taxes or user fees is necessary to meet the sums to fall due under the proposed

contract.

7. The Town of Hillsborough is not in default in any of its debt service obligations.

8. The attorney for the Town of Hillsborough has rendered an opinion that the proposed Project
is authorized by law and is a purpose for which public funds may be expended pursuant to the
Constitution and laws of North Carolina.

April 25, 2016 
Board of Commissioners Monthly Work Session 

Approved: ____________________ 
Page 8 of 12



D
R
A
FT

Resolution #20160425-Sc 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Finance Director is hereby 
authorized to act on behalf of the Town of Hillsborough in filing an application with the North Carolina 
Local Government Commission for approval of the Project and the proposed financing contract and 

other actions not inconsistent with this resolution. 

This resolution is effective upon its adoption this 25th day of April, 2016. 

The motion to adopt this resolution was made by Commissioner Kathleen Ferguson seconded by 
Commissioner Jenn Weaver and passed by a vote of 1 to Q. 

ATTEST: 

Tom Stevens · Mayor 

April 25, 2016 
Board of Commissioners Monthly Work Session 

Approved: ____________________ 
Page 9 of 12



D
R
A
FT

BUDGET CHANGES REPORT
TOWN OF HILLSBOROUGH

FY 2015-2016
DATES: 04/25/2016 TO 04/25/2016

REFERENCE NUMBER DATE BUDGET CHANGE BUDGET 
ORIGINAL BUDGET AMENDEDCHANGE

USER

10-00-3900-3900-000 FUND BALANCE APPROPRIATION
04/25/2016 1,252,029.00 37,000.00To cover Fairview substation paving proje 2831 1,708,114.51JDELLAVAL

10-10-5000-5300-150 MAINTENANCE - BUILDINGS
04/25/2016 30,500.00 3,500.00To cover remaining cleaning & pest contr 2862 51,402.25JDELLAVAL

10-10-5000-5300-154 MAINTENANCE - GROUNDS
04/25/2016 9,200.00 -3,500.00To cover remaining cleaning & pest contr 2861 5,700.00JDELLAVAL

10-20-5100-5300-080 TRAINING/CONF./CONV.
04/25/2016 13,000.00 3,000.00Cover remaining training expenses 2841 11,000.00JDELLAVAL
04/25/2016 13,000.00 1,000.00To cover costs for online training series 2884 12,000.00JDELLAVAL
04/25/2016 13,000.00 2,000.00To cover AOMP costs 2889 14,000.00JDELLAVAL

10-20-5100-5300-110 TELEPHONE/INTERNET
04/25/2016 13,630.00 -800.00Cover overages in supplies-data processin 2840 12,830.00JDELLAVAL
04/25/2016 13,630.00 -400.00To cover overages in Uniforms & Clothin 2876 12,430.00JDELLAVAL

10-20-5100-5300-113 LICENSE FEES
04/25/2016 300.00 675.00To cover overage in Admin - License Fee 2858 975.00JDELLAVAL

10-20-5100-5300-130 UTILITIES
04/25/2016 13,200.00 -1,000.00Cover driver safety training overage 2844 12,200.00JDELLAVAL

10-20-5100-5300-150 BUILDING MAINT/REPAIRS
04/25/2016 7,585.00 1,000.00Carpet & paint project in Building Maint./ 2860 18,725.00JDELLAVAL
04/25/2016 7,585.00 3,000.00To cover Admin HQ carpet/paint project 2875 21,725.00JDELLAVAL
04/25/2016 7,585.00 5,000.00Paint & carpet project in Admin - bldg/ma 2880 26,725.00JDELLAVAL
04/25/2016 7,585.00 3,000.00Admin - carpet & paint project in maint./r 2886 29,725.00JDELLAVAL

10-20-5100-5300-160 EQUIPMENT REPAIR
04/25/2016 500.00 -500.00To cover overage in Driver Safety Trainin 2864 0.00JDELLAVAL

10-20-5100-5300-310 GASOLINE
04/25/2016 4,400.00 -2,000.00Anticipated expenses due to scholarship p 2845 2,400.00JDELLAVAL

10-20-5100-5300-338 SUPPLIES - DATA PROCESSING
04/25/2016 0.00 800.00Cover overages in supplies-data processin 2839 800.00JDELLAVAL

10-20-5100-5300-360 UNIFORMS & CLOTHING
04/25/2016 500.00 400.00To cover overages in Uniforms & Clothin 2863 900.00JDELLAVAL

10-20-5100-5300-460 C.S./DRIVER SAFTEY TRAINING
04/25/2016 1,500.00 1,000.00Cover driver safety training overage 2843 2,500.00JDELLAVAL
04/25/2016 1,500.00 500.00To cover overage in Driver Safety Trainin 2865 3,000.00JDELLAVAL

10-20-5100-5300-470 HIRING SELECTION PROCESS
04/25/2016 750.00 2,000.00Anticipated expenses due to scholarship p 2846 2,750.00JDELLAVAL

10-20-5100-5300-472 FITNESS INCENTIVE PROGRAM
04/25/2016 3,000.00 -3,000.00Cover remaining training expenses 2842 2,970.00JDELLAVAL

10-20-5100-5300-573 MISC.-AUTO TAGS/TAX
04/25/2016 1,500.00 -1,000.00To cover costs for online training series 2883 500.00JDELLAVAL

10-20-5110-5100-010 OVERTIME COMPENSATION
04/25/2016 35,000.00 -3,200.00To cover overage in Miscellaneous 2867 31,800.00JDELLAVAL

10-20-5110-5300-080 TRAINING/CONF./CONV.
04/25/2016 6,000.00 2,500.00Cover overage and remaining training exp 2848 13,850.00JDELLAVAL

JDELLAVALLE  8:45:50AM04/20/2016
fl142r03

Page 1 of 3

Fund Balance

Ruffin-Roulhac

Ruffin-Roulhac

Police - Admin

Police - Admin

Police - Admin

Police - Admin

Police - Admin

Police - Admin

Police - Admin

Police - Admin

Police - Admin

Police - Admin

Police - Admin

Police - Admin

Police - Admin

Police - Patrol

Police - Patrol

April 25, 2016 
Board of Commissioners Monthly Work Session 

Approved: ____________________ 
Page 10 of 12



D
R
A
FT

BUDGET CHANGES REPORT
TOWN OF HILLSBOROUGH

FY 2015-2016
DATES: 04/25/2016 TO 04/25/2016

REFERENCE NUMBER DATE BUDGET CHANGE BUDGET 
ORIGINAL BUDGET AMENDEDCHANGE

USER

10-20-5110-5300-110 TELEPHONE & INTERNET
04/25/2016 5,120.00 1,000.00To cover overage in Patrol - Telephone & 2871 6,120.00JDELLAVAL

10-20-5110-5300-113 LICENSE FEES
04/25/2016 150.00 260.00To cover overage in Patrol - License Fees 2872 410.00JDELLAVAL

10-20-5110-5300-310 GASOLINE
04/25/2016 40,000.00 -2,500.00Cover overage and remaining training exp 2847 37,500.00JDELLAVAL
04/25/2016 40,000.00 -6,000.00To cover overage in Uniforms 2868 31,500.00JDELLAVAL
04/25/2016 40,000.00 -3,200.00To cover overage in Misc.-Police Dog 2878 28,300.00JDELLAVAL

10-20-5110-5300-330 DEPARTMENTAL SUPPLIES
04/25/2016 16,200.00 1,800.00Equipment purchases assoc. w/ recruitmen 2882 18,444.94JDELLAVAL
04/25/2016 16,200.00 1,000.00Equip. purchases assoc. w/ recruitment pro 2888 19,444.94JDELLAVAL
04/25/2016 16,200.00 1,500.00Equip. purchases for recruitment program 2893 20,944.94JDELLAVAL

10-20-5110-5300-338 SUPPLIES - DATA PROCESSING
04/25/2016 16,000.00 230.00Data Processing overage from Computerb 2850 16,230.00JDELLAVAL
04/25/2016 16,000.00 0.002891 16,230.00JDELLAVAL

10-20-5110-5300-350 UNIFORMS
04/25/2016 5,100.00 6,000.00To cover overage in Uniforms 2869 14,231.55JDELLAVAL

10-20-5110-5300-570 MISCELLANEOUS
04/25/2016 500.00 500.00To cover overage in Admin - Misc. 2852 1,000.00JDELLAVAL
04/25/2016 500.00 3,200.00To cover overage in Miscellaneous 2866 4,200.00JDELLAVAL

10-20-5110-5300-574 MISC.-POLICE DOG
04/25/2016 3,500.00 3,200.00To cover overage in Misc.-Police Dog 2877 6,700.00JDELLAVAL

10-20-5120-5100-010 OVERTIME COMPENSATION
04/25/2016 5,000.00 -1,500.00Equip. purchases for recruitment program 2892 3,500.00JDELLAVAL

10-20-5120-5100-021 PERSONNEL ADDITIONS-INVESTIGATOR
04/25/2016 28,519.00 -500.00To cover overage in Admin - Misc. 2851 28,019.00JDELLAVAL
04/25/2016 28,519.00 -1,000.00To cover overage in Patrol - Telephone & 2870 27,019.00JDELLAVAL
04/25/2016 28,519.00 -5,000.00Paint & carpet project in Admin - bldg/ma 2879 22,019.00JDELLAVAL
04/25/2016 28,519.00 -2,000.00To cover AOMP costs 2890 20,019.00JDELLAVAL

10-20-5120-5300-110 TELEPHONE/INTERNET
04/25/2016 12,360.00 -230.00Data Processing overage from Computerb 2849 12,130.00JDELLAVAL
04/25/2016 12,360.00 -1,000.00Equip. purchases assoc. w/ recruitment pro 2887 11,130.00JDELLAVAL

10-20-5120-5300-310 GASOLINE
04/25/2016 14,000.00 -675.00To cover overage in Admin - License Fee 2857 13,325.00JDELLAVAL
04/25/2016 14,000.00 -260.00To cover overage in Patrol - License Fees 2873 13,065.00JDELLAVAL
04/25/2016 14,000.00 -3,000.00Admin - carpet & paint project in maint./r 2885 10,065.00JDELLAVAL

10-20-5120-5300-330 DEPARTMENTAL SUPPLIES
04/25/2016 4,000.00 -1,800.00Equipment purchases assoc. w/ recruitmen 2881 1,841.00JDELLAVAL

10-20-5120-5300-333 SUPPLIES-SPECIAL RESPONSE TEAM
04/25/2016 1,000.00 -1,000.00To cover overage in Supplies - Data Proce 2853 0.00JDELLAVAL

10-20-5120-5300-338 SUPPLIES - DATA PROCESSING
04/25/2016 1,500.00 1,000.00To cover overage in Supplies - Data Proce 2854 2,500.00JDELLAVAL

10-20-5120-5300-451 C.S. - NCSBI-DCI
04/25/2016 1,400.00 900.00To cover overage in C.S.- NCSBI-DCI 2856 2,300.00JDELLAVAL

JDELLAVALLE  8:45:50AM04/20/2016
fl142r03

Page 2 of 3

Police - Patrol

Police - Patrol

Police - Patrol

Police - Patrol

Police - Patrol

Police - Patrol

Police - Patrol

Police - Patrol

Police - Inves.

Police - Inves.

Police - Inves.

Police - Inves.

Police - Inves.

Police - Inves.

Police - Inves.

Police - Inves.

April 25, 2016 
Board of Commissioners Monthly Work Session 

Approved: ____________________ 
Page 11 of 12



D
R
A
FT

BUDGET CHANGES REPORT
TOWN OF HILLSBOROUGH

FY 2015-2016
DATES: 04/25/2016 TO 04/25/2016

REFERENCE NUMBER DATE BUDGET CHANGE BUDGET 
ORIGINAL BUDGET AMENDEDCHANGE

USER

10-20-5120-5300-600 PERSONNEL EXPANSION- OPERATING COST
04/25/2016 4,300.00 -900.00To cover overage in C.S.- NCSBI-DCI 2855 3,400.00JDELLAVAL
04/25/2016 4,300.00 -3,000.00To cover Admin HQ carpet/paint project 2874 400.00JDELLAVAL

10-20-5120-5300-730 DRUG ENFORCEMENT OPERATIONS
04/25/2016 20,000.00 -1,000.00Carpet & paint project in Building Maint./ 2859 19,000.00JDELLAVAL

10-20-5120-5700-735 CAPITAL BLDG.& IMPROVEMENTS
04/25/2016 14,750.00 37,000.00To cover Fairview substation paving proje 2832 51,750.00JDELLAVAL

10-60-6900-5300-150 MUSEUM MAINTENANCE
04/25/2016 8,000.00 700.00To cover A/C replc. and other yr-end expe 2827 11,114.95JDELLAVAL

10-60-6900-5300-570 MISCELLANEOUS
04/25/2016 50,000.00 -700.00To cover A/C replc. and other yr-end expe 2828 74,300.00JDELLAVAL

30-70-3870-3872-002 TRANSFER FROM CAP RESERVE-WTR TANK
04/25/2016 50,750.00 50,720.00To cover tank loan payment due May 2835 101,470.00JDELLAVAL

30-80-3500-3524-000 WATER METER FEE
04/25/2016 30,000.00 17,000.00Increase to match higher than anticipated r 2830 117,277.00JDELLAVAL

30-80-7240-5300-331 DEPT SUPP-METER READING
04/25/2016 45,000.00 17,000.00To cover higher than anticipated # meter p 2829 132,277.00JDELLAVAL

30-80-8120-5300-150 PLANT & EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE/REPAI
04/25/2016 47,200.00 3,000.00To cover sludge improvements project ov 2833 37,600.00JDELLAVAL
04/25/2016 47,200.00 2,000.00To cover overage for replacement gear bo 2837 39,600.00JDELLAVAL

30-80-8120-5300-550 ALUM SLUDGE REMOVAL
04/25/2016 17,000.00 -3,000.00To cover sludge improvements project ov 2834 70,183.00JDELLAVAL
04/25/2016 17,000.00 -2,000.00To cover overage for replacement gear bo 2838 68,183.00JDELLAVAL

30-80-8140-5400-911 DEBT/WATER SYS UPGRADES
04/25/2016 74,983.00 50,720.00To cover tank loan payment due May 2836 125,703.00JDELLAVAL

209,440.00

JDELLAVALLE  8:45:50AM04/20/2016
fl142r03

Page 3 of 3

Police - Inves.

Police - Inves.

Police - Inves.

Special Appr.

Special Appr.

Transfer from 
Utilties Cap.

Water Meter 
Revenue 

Billing & 
Collections

Water 
Treatment 
Plant

Water 
Treatment 
Plant

Water 
Distribution

APPROVED:  5-0
On:                  April 25, 2016

VERIFIED: 
                        _________________________

April 25, 2016 
Board of Commissioners Monthly Work Session 

Approved: ____________________ 
Page 12 of 12



 
 

Board of Commissioners 
Agenda Abstract Form 

 

Meeting Date:   _May 9, 2016 ____________ 
 

Department:   __Administration/Budget______ 
 

Public Hearing:    Yes    No 
 

Date of Public Hearing:   __________________________ 

  
For Clerk’s Use Only 

AGENDA ITEM # 
 

 
    10.B 
 

 
      

 
      

Consent 
Agenda 

Regular 
Agenda 

Closed 
Session 

 

 

PRESENTER/INFORMATION CONTACT:    Management Analyst Jen Della Valle 
 

ITEM TO BE CONSIDERED 
Subject:    
Miscellaneous budget amendments and transfers. 

 
Attachment(s):   
Description and explanation for budget amendments and transfers. 

 
Brief Summary:   
To adjust budgeted revenues and expenditures where needed due to changes that have occurred since budget 
adoption. 

 
Action Requested:   
Consider approving budget amendments and transfers. 

 
ISSUE OVERVIEW 

Background Information & Issue Summary:   
 

 
Financial Impacts:   
As indicated by each budget amendment. 

 
Staff Recommendations/Comments:   
To approve the attached list of budget amendments. 

 
 



BUDGET CHANGES REPORT
TOWN OF HILLSBOROUGH

FY 2015-2016
DATES: 05/09/2016 TO 05/09/2016

REFERENCE NUMBER DATE BUDGET CHANGE BUDGET 
ORIGINAL BUDGET AMENDEDCHANGE

USER

10-10-4300-5300-330 DEPT. SUPPLIES
05/09/2016 1,000.00 1,618.00To puchase video camera & camera equip 2919 2,618.00JDELLAVAL

10-10-4300-5300-338 DATA  PROCESSING SUPPLIES
05/09/2016 0.00 635.00Two routers for PEG channel 2913 635.00JDELLAVAL

10-10-4300-5300-458 DATA PROCESSING SERVICES
05/09/2016 4,800.00 92.00Service support for PEG channel equipme 2925 4,892.00JDELLAVAL

10-10-4300-5300-570 MISCELLANEOUS
05/09/2016 12,649.00 -635.00Two routers for PEG channel 2912 11,014.00JDELLAVAL
05/09/2016 12,649.00 -1,618.00To puchase video camera & camera equip 2918 9,396.00JDELLAVAL
05/09/2016 12,649.00 -92.00Service support for PEG channel equipme 2924 9,304.00JDELLAVAL

10-10-6200-5300-153 MAINT./KINGS HIGHWAY PARK
05/09/2016 100.00 2,000.00Wildlife-proof trash & recycling container 2931 6,600.00JDELLAVAL

10-10-6200-5300-156 MAINT./GOLD PARK
05/09/2016 8,700.00 1,500.00To cover janitorial maint. & overage in Go 2909 19,585.00JDELLAVAL

10-10-6200-5300-157 MAINT./CATES CREEK
05/09/2016 4,500.00 1,400.00Building/janitorial maintenance and overa 2901 10,900.00JDELLAVAL

10-10-6200-5300-158 MAINT./RIVERWALK
05/09/2016 25,500.00 -1,400.00Building/janitorial maintenance and overa 2900 19,100.00JDELLAVAL
05/09/2016 25,500.00 -1,500.00To cover janitorial maint. & overage in Go 2908 17,600.00JDELLAVAL

10-10-6200-5300-570 MISCELLANEOUS
05/09/2016 12,000.00 -2,000.00Wildlife-proof trash & recycling container 2930 7,350.00JDELLAVAL

10-10-6600-5300-080 TRAINING/CONF./CONV.
05/09/2016 9,720.00 8,500.00To cover first aid and CPR training 2911 19,685.84JDELLAVAL

10-10-6600-5300-577 WELLNESS PROGRAM ACTIVITIES
05/09/2016 16,000.00 -8,500.00To cover first aid and CPR training 2910 14,545.95JDELLAVAL

10-30-5550-5300-113 LICENSE FEES
05/09/2016 3,905.00 -749.00To cover overages in Supplies/Data Proce 2923 3,156.00JDELLAVAL

10-30-5550-5300-202 FIRE INSP VEHICLE REPAIR
05/09/2016 400.00 256.00To cover unexpected repair & overages 2917 656.00JDELLAVAL

10-30-5550-5300-330 DEPARTMENTAL SUPPLIES
05/09/2016 23,000.00 -830.00Software support charge 2914 22,170.00JDELLAVAL
05/09/2016 23,000.00 -256.00To cover unexpected repair & overages 2916 21,914.00JDELLAVAL

10-30-5550-5300-338 SUPPLIES/DATA PROCESSING
05/09/2016 750.00 830.00Software support charge 2915 1,580.00JDELLAVAL
05/09/2016 750.00 749.00To cover overages in Supplies/Data Proce 2922 2,329.00JDELLAVAL

10-30-5600-5300-113 LICENSE FEES
05/09/2016 205.00 350.00To cover overage in License Fees 2905 555.00JDELLAVAL

10-30-5600-5300-151 BUILDING REPAIR/MAINTENANCE
05/09/2016 500.00 300.00To cover Building Maintenance overage 2907 1,800.00JDELLAVAL

10-30-5600-5300-154 MAINTENANCE - GROUNDS
05/09/2016 24,150.00 -350.00To cover overage in License Fees 2904 22,800.00JDELLAVAL
05/09/2016 24,150.00 -300.00To cover Building Maintenance overage 2906 22,500.00JDELLAVAL
05/09/2016 24,150.00 -5,000.00Street sign supplies & other yr-end expend 2926 17,500.00JDELLAVAL

JDELLAVALLE  5:56:50PM05/02/2016
fl142r03

Page 1 of 2

PEG

PEG

PEG

PEG

Parks & Rec

Parks & Rec

Parks & Rec

Parks & Rec

Parks & Rec

Safety & 
Wellness

Safety & 
Wellness

Fleet 
Maint.

Fleet 
Maint.

Fleet 
Maint.

Fleet 
Maint.

Street

Street

Street



BUDGET CHANGES REPORT
TOWN OF HILLSBOROUGH

FY 2015-2016
DATES: 05/09/2016 TO 05/09/2016

REFERENCE NUMBER DATE BUDGET CHANGE BUDGET 
ORIGINAL BUDGET AMENDEDCHANGE

USER

10-30-5600-5300-330 DEPARTMENTAL SUPPLIES
05/09/2016 25,000.00 5,000.00Street sign supplies & other yr-end expend 2927 41,376.00JDELLAVAL

10-30-5800-5300-455 C.S./CARDBOARD CONTAINER
05/09/2016 1,500.00 -42.00To cover overage in Dues & Subscriptions 2902 1,458.00JDELLAVAL

10-30-5800-5300-530 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS
05/09/2016 500.00 42.00To cover overage in Dues & Subscriptions 2903 542.00JDELLAVAL

10-30-5900-5300-165 MAINTENANCE - INFRASTRUCTURE
05/09/2016 48,000.00 -6,400.00Cover udpate of stormwater mapping for G 2894 41,600.00JDELLAVAL

10-30-5900-5300-472 C.S.STORMWATER/FOG ENFORCEMENT
05/09/2016 8,000.00 6,400.00Cover udpate of stormwater mapping for G 2895 15,857.25JDELLAVAL

10-40-6400-5300-165 MAINTENANCE INFRASTRUCTURE
05/09/2016 14,000.00 1,800.00Additional repairs to cemetery rock wall 2897 15,800.00JDELLAVAL

10-40-6400-5300-771 MARGARET LANE CEMETERY
05/09/2016 2,000.00 -1,800.00Additional repairs to cemetery rock wall 2896 1,300.00JDELLAVAL

10-60-6900-5300-130 UTILITIES
05/09/2016 2,000.00 500.00To cover yr-end utilities expenditures 2929 2,500.00JDELLAVAL

10-60-6900-5300-151 MAINTENANCE-BUILDINGS
05/09/2016 3,000.00 -1,500.00To remove trees from right-of-way 2920 1,500.00JDELLAVAL

10-60-6900-5300-910 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
05/09/2016 6,000.00 -500.00To cover yr-end utilities expenditures 2928 5,500.00JDELLAVAL

10-60-6900-5700-921 TREE MAINTENANCE
05/09/2016 5,000.00 1,500.00To remove trees from right-of-way 2921 9,530.00JDELLAVAL

30-80-8120-5300-150 PLANT & EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE/REPAI
05/09/2016 47,200.00 3,000.00Pump station repair project 2899 42,600.00JDELLAVAL

30-80-8120-5300-550 ALUM SLUDGE REMOVAL
05/09/2016 17,000.00 -3,000.00Pump station repair project 2898 65,183.00JDELLAVAL

0.00

JDELLAVALLE  5:56:50PM05/02/2016
fl142r03

Page 2 of 2

Street

Solid Waste

Solid Waste

Stormwater

Stormwater

Cemetery

Cemetery

Special Approp.

Special Approp.

Special Approp.

Special Approp.

WTP

WTP



 
 

Board of Commissioners 
Agenda Abstract Form 

 

Meeting Date:   ___May 9, 2016____________________ 
 

Department:   ___Planning___________________________ 
 

Public Hearing:    Yes    No 
 

Date of Public Hearing:   ___ _______________________ 

  
For Clerk’s Use Only 

AGENDA ITEM # 
 

 
  10.C 
 

 
      

 
      

Consent 
Agenda 

Regular 
Agenda 

Closed 
Session 

 

 

PRESENTER/INFORMATION CONTACT:    Margaret Hauth, Planning Director  
 

ITEM TO BE CONSIDERED 
Subject:    
Receive report from the Schools Adequate Public Facilities Ordinance Technical Advisory Committee regarding 
school projections and data 
 
Attachment(s):   
Executive summary 
Orange County Schools projection sheet 

 
Brief Summary:   
Annually the staff members of the parties to the Schools Adequate Public Facilities ordinance get together and 
update the projections and data.  This report is circulated among the members for comment before the BOCC 
endorses it.  No schools are projected to be needed in the planning horizon for the Orange County system. 
 
The projection spreadsheets are the same as the ones shared during the Collins Ridge project review. 
 
The following link will take you to file sharing software to viewing the entire 
document.  https://www.dropbox.com/sh/ir7aflzkljejl1l/AAALo269mhgIxt_9KIwgWOyRa?dl=0 
 
Action Requested:   
Receive report and offer any comments. 

 
ISSUE OVERVIEW 

Background Information & Issue Summary:   
 
 
Financial Impacts:   
 
 
Staff Recommendations/Comments:   
 

 

https://www.dropbox.com/sh/ir7aflzkljejl1l/AAALo269mhgIxt_9KIwgWOyRa?dl=0


  

i 

 

2016 SAPFOTAC Executive Summary 
 

 

I. Base Memorandum of Understanding 

A. Level of Service ....................................................................(No Change) ........Pg. 1 

 
 Chapel Hill/Carrboro 

School District 

Orange County 

School District 

Elementary 105% 105% 

Middle 107% 107% 

High 110% 110% 
             

B. Building Capacity and Membership ..................................(Change) ..............Pg. 2 
 

 Chapel Hill/Carrboro 

School District 

Orange County 

School District 

 Capacity Membership Increase from 

Prior Year 

Capacity Membership Increase from 

Prior Year 

Elementary 5829 5501 (40) 3694 3318 59 

Middle 2944 2844 (17) 2166 1739 (23) 

High 3875 3701 (29) 2439 2469 (33) 

             

C. Membership Date – November 15 .......................................(No Change) ........Pg.17 

 

II. Annual Update to SAPFO System 

A. Capital Investment Plan (CIP) ...........................................(No Change) ........Pg. 18 

 

B. Student Membership Projection Methodology .................(No Change) ........Pg. 19 
The average of 3, 5, and 10 year history/cohort survival, linear and arithmetic projection models.  
 

C. Student Membership Projections .......................................(Change) ..............Pg. 30 

 

 

Analysis of 5 Years of Projections for 2015-16 School Year – Chapel Hill/Carrboro City Schools 

 
(The first column for each year includes the student membership projection made for 2015-2016 in that given year. The second column 

for each year includes the number of students the projection was off compared to actual membership. An “L” indicates the projection 

was low compared to the actual, whereas an “H” indicates the projection was high compared to the actual.) 

 Year Projection Made for 2015-16 Membership 

 Actual 2015 

Membership 
2010-2011 2011-2012 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 

Elementary 5501 5752 H251 5921 H420 5764 H263 5748 H247 5606 H105 

Middle 2844 2951 H107 2949 H105 2972 H128 2947 H103 2895 H51 

High 3701 3911 H210 3937 H236 3910 H209 3825 H124 3742 H41 

 

 
 

 



  

ii 

 

Analysis of 5 Years of Projections for 2015-16 School Year – Orange County Schools 

 
(The first column for each year includes the student membership projection made for 2015-2016 in that given year. The second column 

for each year includes the number of students the projection was off compared to actual membership. An “L” indicates the projection 

was low compared to the actual, whereas an “H” indicates the projection was high compared to the actual.) 

  

Year Projection Made for 2015-16 Membership 

 

 Actual 2015 

Membership 
2010-2011 2011-2012 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 

Elementary 3318 3617 H299 3649 H331 3574 H256 3555 H237 3285 L33 

Middle 1739 1846 H107 1829 H90 1777 H38 1805 H66 1751 H12 

High 2469 2375 L94 2379 L90 2359 L110 2411 L58 2510 H41 

 

D. Student Membership Growth Rate ....................................(Change) ..............Pg. 40 

 
Projected Average Annual Growth Rate over Next 10 Years 

 Chapel Hill/Carrboro 

School District 

Orange County 

School District 

Year 

Projection 

Made: 

2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 

Elementary 1.59% 1.18% 1.44% 1.11% 0.92% 1.6% 1.31% 1.30% 0.55% 0.80% 

Middle 1.94% 1.59% 1.58% 1.15% 0.82% 2.01% 1.64% 1.42% 0.09% 0.67% 

High 1.73% 1.60% 1.27% 1.22% 0.93% 1.61% 1.43% 1.35% 0.39% 0.56% 

 

E.  Student / Housing Generation Rate ..................................(No Change) ........Pg. 43 

 

 

SCHOOL ADEQUATE PUBLIC FACILITIES ORDINANCE STATUS 
(based on future year Student Membership Projections) 

 

CHAPEL HILL/CARRBORO SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

Elementary School Level 

A. Does not currently exceed 105% LOS standard (current LOS is 94.4%). 

B. The projected growth rate at this level is expected to decrease over the next 10 years, 

but remain positive (average ~0.92% per year compared to 1.7% over the past 10 

years). 

C. Projections are not showing a need for an additional elementary school in the 10 year 

projection period. Last year’s projections showed a need in 2023-24.  

 

Middle School Level 

A. Does not currently exceed 107% LOS standard (current LOS is 96.6%). 

B. The projected growth rate at this level is expected to decrease over the next 10 years, but 

remain positive (average ~0.82% compared to an average of 1.4% over the past 10 years). 

C. Projections are not showing a need for an additional middle school in the 10 year 

projection period. Last year’s projections showed a need in 2023-24.  

 

 

 

 



  

iii 

 

High School Level 

A. Does not currently exceed the 110% LOS standard (current LOS is 95.5%).  

B. The projected growth rate at this level is expected to increase over the next 10 years 

(average ~0.93% compared to 0.79% over the past 10 years). 

C. Similar to last year, projections are not showing a need to expand Carrboro High 

School from the initial capacity of 800 students to the ultimate capacity of 1,200 

students in the 10 year projection period.   

 

ORANGE COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

Elementary School Level 

A. Does not currently exceed 105% LOS standard (current LOS is 89.8%). 

B. The projected growth rate at this level is expected remain the same over the next 10 years 

(average ~0.80% compared to 0.80% over the past 10 years). 

C. Similar to last year, projections are not showing a need for an additional Elementary 

School in the 10 year projection period.  

 

Middle School Level  

A. Does not currently exceed 107% LOS standard (current LOS is 80.3%). 

B. The projected growth rate at this level is expected to decrease, but remain positive over 

the next 10 years (average ~0.67% compared to 1.04% over the past 10 years). 

C. Similar to last year, projections are not showing a need for an additional Middle School 

in the 10 year projection period.  

 

High School Level 

A. Does not currently exceed 110% LOS standard (current LOS is 101.2%). 

B. The projected growth rate at this level is expected to decrease, but remain positive over 

the next 10 years (average ~0.56% compared to 1.99% over the past 10 years). 

C. Projections are not showing a need to expand Cedar Ridge High School from the initial 

capacity of 1,000 students to 1,500 students in the ten year projection period. Last year’s 

projections showed a need in 2022-23. 

 

Changes in CAPS (Certificate of Adequate Public Schools) System 

 

As a result of a North Carolina Supreme Court ruling in August 2012, the local governments that 

are party to the SAPFO considered modification of their development regulations as they pertain 

to CAPS in 2013.   However, at this time the local governments have not pursued revisions to 

existing standards contained within the CAPS system or SAPFO MOUs.  



REVISED 12/15/2015

OCS Student Projections (1) (4)

Elementary
School Year 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26

Actual 2,893 2,901 2,945 3,016 3,006 3,072 3,158 3,165 3,211 3,285 3,348 3,403 3,433 3,259 3,318
Tischler (2) 3,366 3,413 3,461 3,508 3,556 3,603 3,651 3,698 3,746 3,793
OC Planning 3,376 3,438 3,491 3,546 3,602 3,657 3,712 3,767 3,822 3,886
10 Year Growth 3,306 3,250 3,242 3,234 3,299 3,332 3,365 3,399 3,433 3,467
5 Year Growth 3,289 3,221 3,203 3,191 3,252 3,285 3,318 3,351 3,384 3,418
3 Year Growth 3,288 3,218 3,199 3,181 3,240 3,273 3,305 3,338 3,372 3,406
Average 3,325 3,308 3,319 3,332 3,390 3,430 3,470 3,511 3,551 3,594
Annual Change - Increase (Decrease) in Actual & Projected Membership) (185) 8 44 71 (10) 66 86 7 46 74 63 55 30 (174) 59 7 (17) 11 13 58 40 40 40 41 43
Capacity - 100% Level of Service 3,820 3,820 3,820 3,820 3,920 3,920 3,920 3,694 3,694 3,694 3,694 3,694 3,694 3,694 3,694 3,694 3,694 3,694 3,694 3,694 3,694 3,694 3,694 3,694 3,694
Number of Students, Actual and Projected, Over (Under) 100% LOS (927) (919) (875) (804) (914) (848) (762) (529) (483) (409) (346) (291) (261) (435) (376) (369) (386) (375) (362) (304) (264) (224) (183) (143) (100)
105% Level of Service 4,011 4,011 4,011 4,011 4,116 4,116 4,116 3,879 3,879 3,879 3,879 3,879 3,879 3,879 3,879 3,879 3,879 3,879 3,879 3,879 3,879 3,879 3,879 3,879 3,879
Number of Students, Actual and Projected, Over (Under) 105% LOS (1,118) (1,110) (1,066) (995) (1,110) (1,044) (958) (714) (668) (594) (531) (476) (446) (620) (561) (554) (571) (560) (547) (489) (449) (409) (368) (327) (285)
Actual - % Level of Service 75.7% 75.9% 77.1% 79.0% 76.7% 78.4% 80.6% 85.7% 86.9% 88.9% 90.6% 92.1% 92.9% 88.2% 89.8%
Average - % Level of Service 90.0% 89.5% 89.9% 90.2% 91.8% 92.9% 93.9% 95.0% 96.1% 97.3%
Annual Student Growth Rate (3) -6.01% 0.28% 1.52% 2.41% -0.33% 2.20% 2.80% 0.22% 1.45% 2.30% 1.92% 1.64% 0.88% -5.07% 1.81% 0.21% -0.52% 0.34% 0.39% 1.73% 1.18% 1.18% 1.17% 1.16% 1.20%

indicates when district surpasses Schools APFO recommended Level of Service

OCS Student Projections(1)

Middle
School Year 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26
Actual 1,527 1,631 1,671 1,593 1,590 1,580 1,637 1,601 1,665 1,698 1,704 1,684 1,747 1,762 1,739
Tischler (2) 1,764 1,789 1,814 1,839 1,864 1,888 1,913 1,938 1,963 1,988
OC Planning 1,769 1,806 1,844 1,884 1,924 1,964 2,004 2,027 2,051 2,073
10 Year Growth 1,733 1,780 1,858 1,870 1,761 1,735 1,709 1,761 1,779 1,796
5 Year Growth 1,726 1,756 1,821 1,822 1,705 1,670 1,638 1,686 1,703 1,720
3 Year Growth 1,724 1,751 1,812 1,815 1,699 1,663 1,627 1,672 1,688 1,705
Average 1,743 1,776 1,830 1,846 1,790 1,784 1,778 1,817 1,837 1,857
Annual Change - Increase (Decrease) in Actual & Projected Membership) 23 104 40 (78) (3) (10) 57 (36) 64 33 6 (20) 63 15 (23) 4 33 53 16 (56) (6) (6) 39 20 20
Capacity - 100% Level of Service 1,466 1,466 1,466 1,466 1,466 2,166 2,166 2,166 2,166 2,166 2,166 2,166 2,166 2,166 2,166 2,166 2,166 2,166 2,166 2,166 2,166 2,166 2,166 2,166 2,166
Number of Students, Actual and Projected, Over (Under) 100% LOS 61 165 205 127 124 (586) (529) (565) (501) (468) (462) (482) (419) (404) (427) (423) (390) (336) (320) (376) (382) (388) (349) (329) (309)
107% Level of Service 1,569 1,569 1,569 1,569 1,569 2,318 2,318 2,318 2,318 2,318 2,318 2,318 2,318 2,318 2,318 2,318 2,318 2,318 2,318 2,318 2,318 2,318 2,318 2,318 2,318
Number of Students, Actual and Projected, Over (Under) 107% LOS (42) 62 102 24 21 (738) (681) (717) (653) (620) (614) (634) (571) (556) (579) (574) (541) (488) (472) (527) (534) (539) (501) (481) (461)
Actual - % Level of Service 104.2% 111.3% 114.0% 108.7% 108.5% 72.9% 75.6% 73.9% 76.9% 78.4% 78.7% 77.7% 80.7% 81.3% 80.3%
Average - % Level of Service 80.5% 82.0% 84.5% 85.2% 82.7% 82.4% 82.1% 83.9% 84.8% 85.7%
Annual Student Growth Rate (3) 1.53% 6.81% 2.45% -4.67% -0.19% -0.63% 3.61% -2.20% 4.00% 1.98% 0.35% -1.17% 3.74% 0.86% -1.31% 0.24% 1.91% 3.00% 0.90% -3.02% -0.36% -0.33% 2.18% 1.09% 1.08%

indicates when district surpasses Schools APFO recommended Level of Service

OCS Student Projections (1)

High
School Year 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26
Actual 1,753 1,828 1,887 2,057 2,124 2,184 2,201 2,242 2,217 2,222 2,283 2,315 2,421 2,502 2,469
Tischler (2) 2,504 2,540 2,575 2,610 2,646 2,681 2,716 2,752 2,787 2,823
OC Planning 2,511 2,542 2,581 2,621 2,660 2,700 2,740 2,796 2,853 2,902
10 Year Growth 2,478 2,491 2,422 2,478 2,540 2,548 2,621 2,541 2,478 2,461
5 Year Growth 2,506 2,549 2,487 2,523 2,566 2,557 2,616 2,524 2,444 2,414
3 Year Growth 2,519 2,574 2,522 2,564 2,605 2,593 2,653 2,560 2,477 2,444
Average 2,504 2,539 2,517 2,559 2,604 2,616 2,669 2,635 2,608 2,609
Annual Change - Increase (Decrease) in Actual & Projected Membership) 81 75 59 170 67 60 17 41 (25) 5 61 32 106 81 (33) 35 35 (22) 42 44 12 53 (35) (27) 1
Capacity - 100% Level of Service 1,518 2,518 2,518 2,518 2,518 2,533 2,533 2,558 2,558 2,558 2,558 2,439 2,439 2,439 2,439 2,439 2,439 2,439 2,439 2,439 2,439 2,439 2,439 2,439 2,439
Number of Students, Actual and Projected, Over (Under) 100% LOS 235 (690) (631) (461) (394) (349) (332) (316) (341) (336) (275) (124) (18) 63 30 65 100 78 120 165 177 230 196 169 170
110% Level of Service 1,670 2,770 2,770 2,770 2,770 2,786 2,786 2,814 2,814 2,814 2,814 2,683 2,683 2,683 2,683 2,683 2,683 2,683 2,683 2,683 2,683 2,683 2,683 2,683 2,683
Number of Students, Actual and Projected, Over (Under) 110% LOS 83 (942) (883) (713) (646) (602) (585) (572) (597) (592) (531) (368) (262) (181) (214) (179) (144) (166) (124) (79) (67) (14) (48) (75) (74)
Actual - % Level of Service 115.5% 72.6% 74.9% 81.7% 84.4% 86.2% 86.9% 87.6% 86.7% 86.9% 89.2% 94.9% 99.3% 102.6% 101.2%
Average - % Level of Service 102.6% 104.1% 103.2% 104.9% 106.7% 107.2% 109.4% 108.0% 106.9% 107.0%
Annual Student Growth Rate (3) 4.84% 4.28% 3.23% 9.01% 3.26% 2.82% 0.78% 1.86% -1.12% 0.23% 2.75% 1.40% 4.58% 3.35% -1.32% 1.40% 1.42% -0.86% 1.67% 1.73% 0.47% 2.05% -1.30% -1.01% 0.03%

indicates when district surpasses Schools APFO recommended Level of Service

(1)  It is important to note that this reflects the November 15, 2015 date of membership as outlined in by the Schools Adequate Public Facilities Ordinance. 

(2)  The Tischler Model provides for the "Linear Method" of projections for both CHCCS and OCS.  Original projections used in prior years projection models included the "Linear Extrapolation Method" for CHCCS.

(3)  Annual growth rate calculated using actual membership for years 2001-02 through 2015-16 and average membership for years 2016-17 through 2025-26

(4)  Class sizes for grades K-3 = 1:23 for school years 2000 through 2007-08.  In accordance with 2005 School Collaboration Work Group direction, effective the 2008-2009 school year with the opening of CHCCS Elementary #10, K-3 class sizes are 1:21 as directed by past State legislative action. 

(1)  It is important to note that this reflects the November 15, 2015 date of membership as outlined in by the Schools Adequate Public Facilities Ordinance. 

(2)  The Tischler Model provides for the "Linear Method" of projections for both CHCCS and OCS.  Original projections used in prior years projection models included the "Linear Extrapolation Method" for CHCCS.

(3)  Annual growth rate calculated using actual membership for years 2001-02 through 2015-16 and average membership for years 2016-17 through 2025-26

(3)  Annual growth rate calculated using actual membership for years 2001-02 through 2015-16 and average membership for years 2016-17 through 2025-26

(1)  It is important to note that this reflects the November 15, 2015 date of membership as outlined in by the Schools Adequate Public Facilities Ordinance.  

(2)  The Tischler Model provides for the "Linear Method" of projections for both CHCCS and OCS.  Original projections used in prior years projection models included the "Linear Extrapolation Method" for CHCCS.

Additional 100 new seats at Hillsborough Elementary School
Important Note:  Per 2005 recommendation of School Collaboration Work Group and approved by BOCC 
with approval of 2008-09 Membership & Capacity numbers and certification of 2009 SAPFOTAC report of 
May 5, 2009, Grades K-3 class size reduced from 1:23 to 1:21 with opening of CHCCS Elementary #10-
Morris Grove (to allow for prior legislative action re: reduced class size)

Middle School #3 opens in fall 2006  with 700 additional seats

Partnership Academy Alternative School capacity added
Partnership Academy Alternative School relocated - capacity added

Orange High capacity decreased, per DPI study



 
 

Board of Commissioners 
Agenda Abstract Form 

 

Meeting Date:   __May 9, 2016_______________ 
 

Department:   _Planning__________________ 
 

Public Hearing:    Yes    No 
 

Date of Public Hearing:   __________________________ 

  
For Clerk’s Use Only 

AGENDA ITEM # 
 

 
   10.D 
 

 
      

 
      

Consent 
Agenda 

Regular 
Agenda 

Closed 
Session 

 

 

PRESENTER/INFORMATION CONTACT:    Margaret Hauth, Planning Director 
 
ITEM TO BE CONSIDERED 

Subject:    
Interlocal agreement regarding funding and responsibilities related to the Community Home Trust 

 
Attachment(s):   
Draft agreement 

 
Brief Summary:   
The draft agreement was adopted last year for the first time and provides a mechanism to formalize the long-standing 
relationship between the jurisdictions and the Trust.  It formalizes the expectations and provides a mechanism to 
annually fund the Trust separate from the various non-profit/agency funding systems used by the jurisdictions.  Since 
the governments created this entity in the 1990s to provide affordable housing, it is different from non-profit entities 
seeking support from the government. The only change in the draft is to specify FY17 as the approval period. 

 
Action Requested:   
Approve the draft agreement 

 
ISSUE OVERVIEW 

Background Information & Issue Summary:   
This agreement helps clarify the responsibilities of all entities and specifies how annual funding will be addressed.  
This agreement will have to be renewed annually due to the financial component and potential for inventory change 
throughout the year.  Next year, the parties may suggest a multi-year approval. 

 
Financial Impacts:   
Entering into this agreement has no impact financially on the town until the Trust develops units within the town.  
Annual funding was previously budgeted through the non-profit system and it has been moved to a set annual 
expense in the special appropriations budget beginning in FY17. 

 
Staff Recommendations/Comments:   
 

 
 



 

 4 

NORTH CAROLINA 
ORANGE COUNTY 
 

Inter-Local Agreement for the Community Home Trust 
 
 
THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into by and among the County of Orange (hereinafter 
“County”), the Town of Carrboro, the Town of Chapel Hill, and the Town of Hillsborough 
(hereinafter “Towns”), each being a general local governmental unit of the State of North Carolina, 
and is made pursuant to North Carolina Statutes, Article 20 of Chapter 160A. 
 
WHEREAS, County and Towns agree that it is desirable and in the interests of their citizens to 
provide affordable housing to low and moderate income individuals and families, to ensure that 
such housing remains affordable in perpetuity and to have much of that housing administered and 
managed by a non-governmental entity; 
  
WHEREAS, County and Towns were responsible for the creation of the predecessor organization 
to the Community Home Trust (CHT) in 1990; and  
 
WHEREAS, CHT revised its organizational structure and model for providing affordable housing 
in 1999 at the behest of County and the Towns; and 
 
WHEREAS County and the Towns are committed to creating successful affordable housing 
opportunities in Orange County; 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, the County, the Towns and CHT agree as follows: 
 
Section I.  Definitions 
  

A. Low Income means households that earn 80% or less of the Area Median Income (AMI) 
in the Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA) in which Orange County resides, as published 
by HUD. 

B. Moderate Income means households that earn more than 80% AMI but not more than 115% 
of the Area Median Income in the Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA) in which Orange 
County resides, as published by HUD. 

C. HUD means the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development.  
D. Inclusionary housing refers to local policies and ordinances of Towns and County that 

require or incentivize the inclusion of housing that is deemed affordable for purchase by 
low and moderate income households within market-rate housing developments.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 5 

NOW, THEREFORE, the County and the Towns agree as follows: 
 
Section II. Purpose 
 
The purpose of this Agreement is to confirm the County and the Town’s affordable housing goals 
for homeownership throughout Orange County. Since all of CHT’s homes are in Orange County, 
and since virtually all of CHT’s work is driven by inclusionary housing policies that are supported 
by County and Towns, this Agreement is intended to establish a shared set of expectations as to 
what affordable housing functions CHT will provide to County and Towns.  The County and 
Towns recognize that a shared and agreed upon set of expectations and responsibilities will reduce 
uncertainties and allow County and Towns to best utilize the expertise and experience of CHT.   
 
Section III. Agreement. 
 

A. Term of Agreement - The term of this Agreement begins on July 1, 2016 and may be 
renewed annually.  

 

B. CHT Board Representation by County and Towns – The governing bodies of the 
County and Towns are entitled to appoint a representative to the board of directors of 
CHT.  According to the CHT bylaws, one-third of the board of directors will be CHT 
homeowners, one-third will be appointed persons (by County, Towns and the University 
of North Carolina at Chapel Hill (hereinafter UNC), and one-third of the directors will 
be members of the community who support the work of CHT.  County and Towns’ 
appointees to the board of directors enable County and Towns to remain informed of the 
work of CHT and in fact, to exert influence over that work. 

 
C. CHT Responsibilities  

It is agreed that CHT’s responsibilities include the following:   
1. Create and maintain homes that are affordable for purchase by low and moderate 

income households earning up to 115% of AMI;   
2. The CHT Board of Directors is responsible for the financial health and well-being of 

the organization to ensure the organization is well managed and able to meet the 
expectations of County and Towns; 

3. CHT agrees to generate a portion of its own funding each year.  The principal sources 
of this revenue are fees from sales of new homes added to the portfolio, re-sales of 
homes already in the portfolio, ground lease fees and fundraising efforts. 

4. The CHT Board of Directors will hire, periodically evaluate and, as necessary, replace 
the organization’s Executive Director; 

5. Sell homes using the community land trust (CLT) model, wherein homes are conveyed 
to buyers using a 99-year ground lease.  The CLT model enables homes to remain 
affordable to future generations of low and moderate income households.  CHT will 
be expected to continually revise its model to meet changing circumstances and to 
reflect best practices. 

6. Advocate for affordable housing policies at the local, state and national levels. 
7. Create affordable housing opportunities, whether through purchase and rehab, or 

otherwise, that is outside the inclusionary housing realm.    



 

 6 

8. Implement and manage inclusionary housing programs as requested by Towns and 
County.   

 
D. Responsibilities of the Towns and County 
 

1. Annual Funding 
 
The County and Towns agree that their annual funding of CHT will gradually grow and 
annually be adjusted, starting in fiscal 2015-16, from the fiscal 2014-15 levels (Orange County 
$149,000, Town of Chapel Hill $200,000, Town of Carrboro $35,000 and Town of 
Hillsborough $2,500) to allow CHT to maintain a minimum required operating cash balance.  
CHT’s minimum required operating cash balance will be the sum of the industry-standard six 
months of operating expenses ($350,000 as of July 1, 2014) plus special project reserves 
necessary for CHT to safeguard its portfolio of homes ($550,000 as of July 1, 2014).  Each 
year, CHT will re-determine these amounts and include them in its budget proposal. 
 
Funding payments from County and Towns to CHT will be made quarter-annually in equal 
amounts on or about July 1, October 1, January 1 and April 1. 

 
2. CHT Staff Compensation 
 
County and Towns agree that the CHT budget will include CHT staff compensation based 
upon compensation paid by County and Town.  
  
3. Funding Formula 
 
Although it is recognized that each local government will vote independently to approve this 
Agreement, it is expected that each jurisdiction will approve the same funding formula.  
Furthermore it is agreed that funding will be determined as follows: 

 
a. The sharing of the County and Towns portion of the annual funding will be 

determined by a two tier formula.  First, the County will provide 33% of the total and 
the Towns will provide 67% of the total.  Second, the Towns will share their 67% 
portion based on the ratio of CHT homes within each town to the total number of 
CHT homes.  The number of homes will be determined as of January 1 prior to each 
fiscal year.  

b. For example, if CHT’s  budget  is $800,000 and the  number of homes in the CHT 
portfolio on the prior January 1st is 250, with 200 of those homes  in Chapel Hill, 50 
of those homes in Carrboro and none of those homes in Hillsborough, and CHT 
budgets providing $200,000 of revenue itself,  Orange County will be required to pay 
33% of $600,000 ($800,000 less $200,000), or $198,000, Chapel Hill will be required 
to pay 67% of $600,000 multiplied by 200/250,  or $321,600; Carrboro will be 
required to pay 67% of $600,000 multiplied by 50/250, or $80,400 and Hillsborough 
will be required to pay 67% of $600,000 multiplied by 0/250, or $0. 

4. Portfolio Management 
 



 

 7 

a. The Towns and the County agree to consult with the CHT staff when new 
developments are proposed that would include homes that would become a part of 
the CHT portfolio. CHT staff will provide input on any affordable housing 
proposals or options if requested by the Towns or County. 

b. The County and the Towns agree to consult with the CHT staff to prior to 
implementing policies or regulations that will impact CHT’s work. 

 
5. Operating Guidelines 

 
a. Fee Simple Deed of Trust 

 
The Towns and the County agree to allow use of a fee simple deed of trust on CHT 
properties to facilitate greater lending options to CHT buyers. If a CHT home is 
foreclosed upon, the Towns and County agree to cancel all affordability restrictions 
recorded against the property and the home would be sold by the lien holder on the 
open market. 
 
b.  Resale of CHT homes 

  
A CHT home subsidized by local or Community Development Block Grant funds 
may be resold to households earning up to 115% of the AMI without a requirement 
of repaying local funds. Homes sold to households earning up to 115% of AMI will 
continue to be required to maintain the affordability requirements consistent with 
the elected bodies at that time.  

 
CHT will notify the appropriate jurisdiction prior to exercising this provision and 
will report the resale in its quarterly reports.  

 
  c. Selling CHT homes out of the affordable housing inventory 
 

The Towns and the County acknowledge that there could be properties that the 
CHT would want to sell from its inventory. Prior to selling a home out of its 
inventory, the CHT would consult with the appropriate jurisdiction(s) to discuss the 
challenges of the property and options for consideration (i.e. subsidy repayment, 
legal implications with Special/Conditional Use Permits The Towns and County 
agree that the Managers shall have the authority to approve sale of homes outside 
of the affordable housing inventory and will notify its elected officials.   

 
Section IV. Execution 
 
A. The County and Towns have signed this Agreement, and all governing boards have duly 

approved this Agreement and pursuant to such approval and the proper officials having 
signed this Agreement, the parties hereto agree to be bound by the provisions herein set 
forth.  The terms and provisions of this Agreement are authorized by applicable laws and 
regulations. 

(signature pages removed for brevity) 



 
 

Board of Commissioners 
Agenda Abstract Form 

 

Meeting Date: May 9, 2016 
  

Department: Public Works 
  

Public Hearing:   Yes    No 
  

Date of Public Hearing:  
 

  
For Clerk’s Use Only 

AGENDA ITEM # 
 

 
  10.E 
 

 
      

 
      

Consent 
Agenda 

Regular 
Agenda 

Closed 
Session 

 

 

PRESENTER/INFORMATION CONTACT:    Ken Hines, Public Works Director 
 
ITEM TO BE CONSIDERED 

Subject:    
Traffic Calming Policy revisions 

 
Attachment(s):   
Revised Traffic Calming Policy 

 
Brief Summary:   
At the April 11, 2015 Town Board meeting, town staff presented to the Board an updated Traffic Calming Policy that 
would be more appropriate for the streets in Hillsborough.  

 
Action Requested:   
Approve Traffic Calming Policy  

 
ISSUE OVERVIEW 

Background Information & Issue Summary:   
At the April Town Board Meeting the commissioners provided guidance to town staff revising the Traffic Calming 
Policy.  Some of the changes to the current policy include: 

1.  Evaluation criteria of the updated traffic calming policy for the measured 85th percentile speed must be more 
than 7 mph over the posted speed limit. For example,  if the posted speed limit is 20 mph then the 85th 
percentile speed of vehicles would need to be 28 mph to meet the criteria 

2. The number of valid signatures for or against installation of a traffic calming device must meet or exceed 
75%. 

Other additions to the policy include different ways a request may be made for a traffic calming study and the 
procedures to be followed.  In a neighborhood with a homeowner’s association, the HOA must make the traffic 
calming request. 

 
Financial Impacts:   
New policy may increase the number of traffic calming devices due to the lowering of the 85th percentile. 

 
Staff Recommendations/Comments:   
None 

 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

TRAFFIC CALMING POLICY 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



2 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 
 
 

POLICY STATEMENT....................................................3 
 
REQUEST FOR EVALUATION……………………………………..3 

 
 

EVALUATION CRITERIA FOR STREETS..........................3 
 

 

PROCEDURE FOR OBTAINING APPROVAL.......................4 
 
 

PETITION REQUIREMENTS...........................................4 
 
 

FUNDING ......................................................................5 
 
 

TRAFFIC CALMING MEASURES......................................5 
 
 

TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES.........................................9 
 
 

PETITION: TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES......................15 
 
 

SUFFICIENCY OF PETITION FORM..............................16 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



3 
 

TOWN OF HILLSBOROUGH:  RESIDENTIAL TRAFFIC CONTROL POLICY 
 

Policy Statement 
 
 
The Town of Hillsborough wishes to have a procedure that outlines the process to incorporate traffic calming 
devices and systems in order to alleviate speeding, excessive traffic volume, dangerous intersections or other 
conditions that are of a public safety nature. 

 
The purpose of this document is to present ways in which the town and its residents can find solutions to 
residential traffic problems as approved by the Hillsborough Board of Commissioners.  Consideration is given 
to a variety of residential traffic concerns and to the characteristics of these concerns on a case-by-case basis.  
Each situation is reviewed with respect to the available traffic control measures that have been, or could be, 
found effective in alleviating the neighborhood traffic concern. 

 
The following  outlines  these  guidelines  and  procedures  which  can be used to develop  the optimum  
solution  or solutions  to each particular situation.  There are many factors taken into consideration when 
reviewing residential traffic concerns to determine the most feasible traffic control measure.   These factors 
include the surrounding roadway network, resident access, speeds and/or volume of traffic, accident history, 
neighborhood response and budget considerations. 

 
Note:  Public health and safety concerns are always the overriding consideration when installing or 
removing traffic control devices. 
 

Request for Evaluation 
 

A street segment can be added to the list of streets to be studied for potential traffic calming in a number of 
ways: 
 
1. A citizen or group of citizens contacts the Public Works Department directly to express their concerns 

about speeding traffic or excessive volumes of traffic on their street.  
2. A recommendation to study is made by the Board of Commissioners or the Planning Board. This 

recommendation may follow a request to one of these public bodies from a citizen or group of citizens; or 
the concern may surface during the regular business of these public bodies;  

3. The Hillsborough Police Department recommends the addition of a street to be studied based on their 
enforcement efforts and/or citizen concerns;  

4. The Public Works Department initiates a study based on field observations. 
 

Evaluation Criteria for Streets 

 
1. The street must be classified as a two-lane residential street. 
2. The street must be a municipality maintained roadway that receives Powell Bill funding.   State 

roadways are excluded under this policy. 
3. The posted speed limit on the affected length of the street must be 25 miles per hour or less. 
4. The measured 85th percentile speed must be more than 7 mph higher than the posted speed 

limit. 
5 .  Traffic volume must exceed 500 vehicles per day.  Actual traffic volume will be based  on  traffic  

counts  conducted  by the  Town  of  Hillsborough  Public  Works  staff  or  its designee.   



4 
 

6 .  A positive recommendation for installation must be received from Police, Fire, and EMS. 
 

 
Procedure for Obtaining Approval 

 
1. The process is initiated when the Public Works Director receives a request for installation of a 

traffic control device through one of the methods outlined in the Street Evaluation section above.    
2. Demonstration of Support 

a. If Initiated by Resident(s) 
i. A preliminary investigation into the first five qualifying criteria will be completed.  If 

these criteria are met, the Public Works Director or his designee will conduct a field 
investigation of the impacted area.  A petition package containing the Town of 
Hillsborough Traffic Calming Policy and a Petition Form will be mailed to the 
requesting party. See the petition requirements outlined in the section below. 

ii. The requesting party is responsible for obtaining signatures on the petition form 
and returning it to Town Hall. If the number of valid signatures equals or 
exceeds 75% of the total number of residents in the impacted area, Police, Fire, 
and EMS will be contacted for recommendations.  

b. If Initiated by Other Method  
i. The Public Works Department will send a questionnaire to residents in the impacted 

area asking whether they approve the installation of a traffic calming device. No 
petition is required. 

ii. If the number of valid signatures indicating approval of the installation equals 
or exceeds 75% of the total number of residents in the impacted area, Police, 
Fire, and EMS will be contacted for recommendations. 

3. Traffic monitoring devices will be used to determine average daily traffic, vehicle speeds, and vehicle 
types. 

4. When all  qualifying  criteria  are  met, a report  will  be prepared  for  the Board  of  Commissioners  
outlining  all relevant information and any extenuating circumstances concerning the characteristics 
of a requested street. 

5.  The Board of Commissioners will approve or disapprove installations for the requested street based on 
the "finding of fact" report provided by the Public Works Director. 

Petition Requirements 

 
1. Those parties requesting the installation of a Traffic Calming Device must demonstrate sufficient support 

for the installation of the device in the affected area; support shall be shown by signatures obtained on the 
standard Petition for Traffic Control Devices provided by the Town. 

2. Only one signature per household can be obtained. 
3. Signatures must be of the current residents within the defined study area. 
4. Residents must provide their address in space allotted. 
5. Signatures will be checked by Town Hall staff using property records. 
6. Signatures that do not adhere to these requirements will be considered invalid. 
7. The number of valid signatures either for or against installation must meet or exceed 75% of the total 



5 
 

number of residents of the impacted area.  
8. If the street is located in a neighborhood with a homeowner association (HOA), the traffic calming 

request must originate from the HOA.  

Funding 
 

The Town of Hillsborough has a budgeted amount of funding for traffic calming projects. Other funding options 
available are special assessments, operating funds, and private funding. The Town of Hillsborough Board of 
Commissioners will determine the appropriate funding mechanism for the installation of traffic calming devices 
on a case-by-case basis.  
 
Assessments: 
Installation of traffic calming devices is considered a street improvement and is eligible for special assessments in 
accordance with North Carolina General Statute § 160A-216 (1).  
 
Powell Bill (Operating Budget)/General Fund (Operating Budget): 
The Town of Hillsborough will cover the cost of activities associated with the development, construction and 
installation of traffic calming devices dependent upon the availability of funding.  
 
Private Funding: 
Residents of an existing neighborhood wishing to accelerate the process may choose to fund all or part of the 
development, construction and installation of their requested traffic calming device.  

 
General Fund/Powell Bill (Operating Budget)/Private Funding: 
The Town of Hillsborough and residents of an existing neighborhood will share in the cost of activities associated 
with the development, construction and installation of traffic calming devices. The Town’s participation in any 
cost sharing venture is dependent on the availability of funding.           
 

Traffic Calming Measures 
 

 
Non-Physical Traffic Calming Measures 
1. Speed Enforcement  ̶  Temporary targeted speed limit enforcement in areas where residents are 

concerned. 
2. Radar Trailers  ̶   A radar trailer can be placed adjacent to a roadway to measure and display a passing 

vehicle’s speed. Providing the posted speed limit on the device reminds drivers to slow down if they are 
traveling too fast.  

3. Lane Striping  ̶   Lane striping can be used to visually narrow travel lanes in a given area. By using 
highly visible stripes, vehicles are encouraged to slow down.  

4. Signage  ̶   Placing appropriate warning and information signs and additional regulatory signs 
reminds motorists of the various roadway conditions and hazards of the area.                                         

5. Pavement Marking Legends  ̶   The speed limit or other driver information can be painted onto 
the street to remind drivers of the speed limit or other area conditions that warrant special attention. 

6. High Visibility Crosswalk  ̶   High intensity paint or plastic can be used in a dense pattern to 
clearly delineate a crosswalk. Crosswalk should be accompanied by appropriate signage. 

7. On-Street Parking  ̶   Designates area along a street to store vehicles.  On-street parking may be 
used along one or both sides of the street.  May also be a revenue generator through permit, meter, 
or other methods. 



6 
 

8. Raised Pavement Markers  ̶   Raised pavement markers are plastic reflectors installed in the 
pavement that, when installed in series, alert the driver when they are deviating from the travel lane.  
They can be installed on the centerline and edgeline of a  roadway or across a roadway to function 
as a rumble strip.  They are often used on curves. 

9. Streetscaping  ̶   Streetscaping can incorporate many different ideas and approaches. Typically, 
streetscaping includes planting street trees and other landscaping along the roadway. Streetscaping 
also usually involves establishing a planting area between the street and the sidewalk. 

10. Multi-Way Stops  ̶   Multi-way stops involve placing stop signs on all approaches to an intersection. 
Considerations for multi-way stops should follow guidelines as described in the Manual on Uniform 
Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD). 

11. Turn Prohibitions and Other Restrictions – Turn prohibition signs are posted to restrict movement 
through a given area and to limit travel in certain directions.   Other restrictions, such as "No 
Trucks," can also help reduce cut-through traffic.   Speed limit reductions can be used in areas 
where existing speed limits are higher than desired; however, speed limit changes alone are   
generally not effective in significantly reducing travel speeds on local residential streets. 

12. Gateways/Entryways  ̶   Gateways  include  decorative  signing  and/or  landscaping  to  visually  
identify  the  entrance  to  a  neighborhood or commercial  district.  This measure helps to make the 
area appear as a destination rather than a connection to another area.  Gateways are often 
incorporated into a median island. 

13. Colored Pavements  ̶   Pavement can be installed with many colors and patterns.  These unique 
properties can slow drivers by forcing them to process different patterns as they approach an area.  
Colored pavement can also help delineate the separation between a travel lane and lanes that 
accommodate other modes of transportation 

 
Vertical Traffic Calming Measures 
14. Textured Pavement  ̶   Textured pavements can alert motorists to special conditions through sound 

and/or vibration.  Rumble strips are a typical example of how textured pavement can produce a sound 
to warn a driver approaching a hazardous condition. Textured pavements combined with colored 
pavements can delineate a special area, such as a historic district.  Brick pavers are a form of textured 
pavement. 

15. Speed Humps  ̶   Raised hump (pavement undulation) in the roadway with a parabolic top which 
exceeds across the road at right angles to the direction of traffic flow.  Most effective if used in a 
series; spaced 300'-500' apart 

16. Speed Lumps  ̶   Speed lumps are a variation of speed humps that add two cut-outs for tires of larger 
vehicles.  The cut-outs are designed so that wider vehicles, such as emergency vehicles, can fit through 
with little slowing but a standard vehicle must pass at least one side of its wheels over the hump. 

17. Speed  Tables  ̶   Speed  tables  are elongated speed humps with flat tops that  usually  allow  for the 
entire  wheel  base of a standard vehicle to be on the top flat part   Usually, a textured pavement or 
alternative  design is used to distinguish the speed table from the rest of the roadway. 

18. Raised Crosswalks  ̶   Raised crosswalks are equivalent to speed tables with crosswalk markings.  
Should be accompanied by appropriate signage. 

19.   Raised Intersections  ̶   Raised intersections are equivalent to speed tables, only they are applied 
over the entire intersection with ramps on all sides.  They are normally at or near the same elevation 
as the sidewalk.  Often include textured and/or colored pavements. 

Horizontal Traffic Calming Measures 
20. Traffic Circles  ̶   Provides circular, counter clockwise operations at intersections by 

placing a raised island in the middle of the intersection. Vehicles  on  the  “thru” street  
must  change  their  travel  path  to  maneuver  around  the circle.  Entry into the 



7 
 

intersection is often controlled by Yield signs on all approaches. 
21. Roundabouts  ̶   Similar to traffic circles but larger and with "splitter" islands on each 

approach that flare entry into the circle. They are more typically used as a substitute 
for a traffic signal.  Traffic on the approaches must yield to vehicles within the 
circle. 

22. Curb Extensions  ̶   Used to make pedestrian crossing movements shorter and easier.  
Used to narrow the roadway cross- section at particular points (intersection, mid-block, 
etc.) but still maintains separate lanes for opposing traffic flows.   Often used in 
combination with a raised crosswalk. 

23. Chicanes  ̶  Physical constriction built at the curbside of the roadway to create bends 
in a formerly straight road. Vehicles are forced to negotiate the narrowed street in a 
serpentine fashion.  Retrofitting an existing street typically allows one lane through the 
chicane so that opposing traffic must alternate passage through the constraints. 

24. Lateral Shifts  ̶   A lateral shift is a curb extension which shifts the roadway horizontally.   
A second shift downstream may move the roadway back to the original alignment.  These 
are also frequently called two-lane chicanes. 

25. Neckdowns  ̶   Neckdowns are used to make streets more pedestrian-friendly by shortening the 
crossing distance and reduce speed by narrowing the travel lanes. 

26. Realigned  Intersections  ̶   Realigned  intersections are changes in  alignment  that  cover  T-
intersections with straight approaches into curving streets that meet at right angles.  A former "straight-
through movement” along the top of the T becomes a turning movement.  This is one of the few traffic 
calming measures available for T-intersections. 

27. Bulbouts  ̶   Similar to curb extensions at intersections. Used to narrow the street width to help facilitate 
pedestrian movements and reduce speeds on one or more approaches. 

28. Two-Lane Chokers – Two-lane chokers are used at mid-block points to reduce the overall cross 
section of the street providing a natural slow down point. 

29. One-Lane Chokers  ̶   Curb extensions toward the center of the roadway that reduce the street 
from two lanes to one lane. This requires vehicles to come to a stop and yield to oncoming traffic. 

30. Center Island Narrowing – Narrowing of the roadway with a raised center island, typically 
planted, between the travel lanes. They also provide a pedestrian refuge thereby allowing pedestrians 
to cross one travel lane at a time. 

31. Medians – Used to separate lane movements and provide a visual cue along the roadway.  Medians 
can be especially effective along curves.  Medians can also be used as a diversion device by restricting 
access at intersections and to adjacent properties. 

 
Diversion Traffic Calming Measures 
32. Street Closures  ̶   Barrier or pavement removal intended to block all vehicle access on a street. 

Pedestrian and bicycle access is typically maintained.  Often designed to allow emergency vehicles to 
“break-through” the closure.  Cul-de-sacs are a common form of this measure. 

33. Diagonal   Diverters  ̶   Diagonal diverters bisect an intersection diagonally, disconnecting the legs 
of the intersection and creating two separate roadways.   This can be accomplished with a simple 
barrier such as guardrail or through pavement removal and landscaping.  Pedestrian and bicycle access 
is typically maintained.  Can be designed to allow emergency vehicles to “break-through” the barrier. 

34. Semi-diverters  ̶   A semi-diverter is a barrier, usually a landscaped island, on one side of a street 
at an intersection that permits traffic on the opposite direction to pass through; thereby creating a 
one-way street at the intersection but maintaining two-way traffic for  the rest of the block. 

 



8 

Speed Control 
Devices 

Advantages Disadvantages Estimated Cost 

Speed Enforcement • May be implemented immediately
with little planning

• No impact to emergency response
times.

• Secondary benefits include reduced
crime and higher sense of security

• Expensive to maintain for an
extended period of time

• May only be effective for a short
time

• May only be effective for short
distances

• Varies

Radar Trailers • In the long-term, less expensive
than police enforcement

• May be implemented immediately
with little planning

• No impact to emergency response
times

• Effective for reducing speeds in
short span

• Only effective for one direction of
travel at a time

• May only be effective for a short
time

• May only be effective for short
distances

• Varies

Lane Striping • Inexpensive
• May be implemented quickly with

little planning
• No impact to emergency response

times

• Increases maintenance costs • $0.15-$1.00 per lineal
foot (paint)

• $1-$5 per lineal foot
(plastic)

Signage • Inexpensive
• No impact to emergency response

times

• Increases maintenance costs
• Signs typically considered

unsightly – most people do not
want them in their yard

• $50-$100 per sign

Pavement Marking 
Legends 

• Inexpensive
• May be implemented immediately

with little planning
• No impact to emergency response

times

• Increases maintenance costs
• Has not been proven to reduce

speeds

• $25-$50 per letter or
number

• $100-$200 per symbol

High Visibility Crosswalk • Inexpensive
• No impact to emergency response

vehicles
• Helps collect and distribute

pedestrians along the street
• Increases visibility of pedestrians

• Requires more maintenance than
normal crosswalk

• May provide pedestrians with false
sense of security, especially when
used at mid-block locations or
uncontrolled approaches to an
intersection

• $200 per crosswalk
per lane

On-Street Parking • Provides more vehicle storage
• Narrows street width to encourage

slower vehicular traffic
• Shortens pedestrian crossing

distance
• Encourages pedestrian activity in

an area

• May be ineffective if parking is not
adequately utilized

• May reduce sight distance for both
drivers and pedestrians

• May increase certain types of
vehicular crashes

• May restrict bicycle movements
• Traffic volumes may increase,

especially in areas in high demand
and low availability of off-street
parking

• May impede emergency response
vehicles and solid waste collection

• Dependent on
frequency of spaces;
enforcement costs, etc.

Traffic Control Devices 



9 

Raised Pavement Markers • Inexpensive
• May be implemented immediately

with little planning
• No impact to emergency response

times
• Secondary benefits include

increased delineation and roadway
safety

• Noise
• May be unintentionally removed

during snow removal
• Increased maintenance costs

• $2-$7 per marker

Streetscaping • May reduce speeds and volumes
• Positive aesthetic effect
• Good functionality
• Increases pedestrian activity
• Improves quality of life and

neighborhood
• No impact to emergency response

times

• Can create vehicular hazards
• Can create poor visibility

conditions if installed too dense
• Possibly increased maintenance

costs

• Varies depending on
materials, length and
width of application
area, and availability
of right-of-way

Multi-Way Stops • If traffic signals are warranted, can
be used as temporary measure

• Can reduce intersection collisions
• Little impact to emergency

response times
• May be implemented quickly with

little planning
• May provide a safer crossing for

pedestrians

• Speeds between intersections often
increase

• Increases noise and air pollution
• Can cause rear-end accidents
• Requires enforcement
• If stop signs are warranted,

disregard for measure can create
dangerous situations

• $300-$600 per
intersection

Turn Prohibitions and 
Other Restrictions 

• Inexpensive to install
• No impact to emergency response

times
• May increase pedestrian safety
• Transit and school buses can be

exempted
• Restrictions can be “part-time”

• Deliberate violation could create a
hazard

• May divert problem onto another
street

• Requires enforcement
• Requires approval of an enabling

ordinance
• Not effective for reducing speeds

• $100-$200 and
enforcement costs

Gateways/Entryways • May reduce volumes
• Positive aesthetic effect
• Good functionality
• Improves quality of life for

neighborhood
• No impact to emergency response

times

• Can create vehicular hazards
• Can create poor visibility

conditions
• Can be expensive

• Varies depending on
materials, length and
width of application
area

Colored Pavements • May reduce speeds and volumes
• Positive aesthetic effect
• Good functionality
• Increases pedestrian safety
• Improves quality of life for

neighborhood
• No impact to emergency response

times

• Can create vehicular hazards
• Can make roadway features

difficult to see if installed too
densely

• Increased maintenance
• Surface can be slick – hazardous to

pedestrians and cyclists

• Varies depending on
materials, length and
width of application
area



10 

Textured Pavement • May reduce vehicle speeds
• May add aesthetic value
• If used at an intersection, can calm

two streets at once
• Little or no impact to emergency

response times

• Textured materials are expensive
• Increased noise
• Difficult for physically challenged

individuals to maneuver
• Increases maintenance costs

• Varies with material
and area of installation

Speed Humps • Effective in reducing speeds
• Compatible with pedestrian and

bicycle movements
• May also decrease cut-through

traffic by increasing travel time
• Inexpensive

• Increases noise when vehicles
travel over them

• Increased maintenance costs
• Slows emergency vehicles and

buses
• Aesthetics
• Can be very uncomfortable to

vehicle occupants with certain
disabilities

• $1,500-$2,000

Speed Lumps • Effective in reducing speeds
• Maintains rapid response time
• Inexpensive
• Relatively easy for bicyclists to

cross if installed correctly

• Aesthetics
• Private vehicles with large wheel

bases can avoid the lumps
• Increased noise
• Increases maintenance costs
• Can be very uncomfortable to

vehicle occupants with certain
disabilities

• $1,800-$2,000

Speed Tables • Smoother than humps for larger
vehicles

• Effective in reducing speeds
• Compatible with pedestrian and

bicycle movements
• May also decrease cut-through

traffic by increasing travel time

• Aesthetics, if decorative surface
material is not used

• Decorative materials are expensive
• Increased noise
• Increased maintenance costs
• Slows emergency vehicles and

buses
• Can be very uncomfortable to

vehicle occupants with certain
disabilities

• $ 4,500-$6,5000 each
(depending on
materials)

Raised Crosswalks • Smoother than humps for larger
vehicles

• Effective in reducing speeds
• Increases visibility for pedestrians
• Slows vehicular traffic at conflict

point with pedestrians
• Better than a simple crosswalk for

visually impaired pedestrians
• May also decrease cut-through

traffic by increasing travel time

• Aesthetics, if decorative surface
material is not used

• Decorative materials are expensive
• Increased noise
• Increased maintenance costs
• Slows emergency vehicles and

buses
• Can be very uncomfortable to

vehicle occupants with certain
disabilities

• $1,800-$4,000
(depending on
materials)



11 

Raised Intersections • Smoother than humps for larger
vehicles

• Effective in reducing speeds
• Increases visibility for pedestrians
• Slows vehicular traffic at conflict

point with pedestrians
• May also decrease cut-through

traffic by increasing travel time

• Aesthetics, if decorative surface
material is not used

• Decorative materials are expensive
• Increased noise
• Increases maintenance costs
• Slows emergency vehicles and

buses
• Can be very uncomfortable to

vehicle occupants with certain
disabilities

• Varies by material
used and intersection
size

Traffic Circles • May significantly reduce speeds on
“thru” street

• Reduces intersection collisions
• Provides additional street aesthetics
• May be used as a volume control

device without limiting access

• May require the removal of parking
near intersection

• May cause sight distance problems
for vehicles

• Depending on size and location,
may have high installation costs

• May impact emergency response
times

• May impede larger vehicles

• $5,000-$10,000

Roundabouts • Reduces vehicle speeds
• Eliminates typical left-turn

conflicts
• In the long run, more economical

to maintain than a traffic signal
• Adds to street aesthetics
• Reduces crash severity at

intersections

• Often requires a large amount of
right of way

• May require additional lighting to
lessen driver confusion at night

• Not a typical traffic calming
measure for local streets (used for
collectors and minor
thoroughfares)

• Initial costs are high

• Single lane
roundabout $20,000-
$120,000 (depending
on Right-of-Way
requirements)

Curb Extensions • Narrows street width to encourage
slower vehicle traffic at specific
points

• Shortens pedestrian crossing
distance and makes pedestrians
more visible

• May facilitate more on-street
parking spaces

• Intended to reduce vehicle speeds

• Conflicts with flow of bicycle lanes
• Requires removal of some on-street

parking

• $7,000-$10,000

Chicanes • Typically results in lower speeds
• One lane chichanes can

significantly reduce cut-through
traffic

• Can be aesthetically pleasing

• May lead to an increase in head-on
collisions

• Higher maintenance costs
• Can severely impact emergency

response vehicles
• Should not be used in areas with

frequent driveways
• Loss of on-street parking

• $4,000-$8,000
(depends on length of
road affected)

Lateral Shifts • Is an effective tool for slowing
traffic on high volume streets

• Easy functionality for larger
vehicles

• Less effective for reducing speeds
than a one lane chicane

• Proper design is crucial to avoid
lane changing by vehicles

• Loss of on-street parking
• May require additional right-of-

way

• Varies by length,
width and shift
distance



12 

Neckdowns • Increased pedestrian safety and
range

• Reduces speeds

• May require bicyclists to merge
with traffic

• May slow emergency vehicles
• Loss of on-street parking

• $4,000-$6,000

Realigned Intersections • Reduces speeds at T-intersections
• Can reduce cut-through traffic by

reassigning right-of-way at an
intersection

• Typically requires additional right-
of-way on one corner

• Construction can be costly
• May have minor impacts on

emergency response times

• Varies with magnitude
of the project

Bulbouts • Reduces vehicle speeds near
intersection

• Makes pedestrian crossing safer
and easier

• Improve sight line between vehicle
and pedestrians

• May accommodate pedestrians with
disabilities

• May facilitate more on-street
parking

• Does not accommodate bicycle
paths

• May affect turning movements
(especially for larger trucks)

• $4,000-$5,000 per
corner

Tow-Lane Chokers • May reduce speeds
• May reduce volumes
• Positive aesthetic effect
• Good functionality
• Provides safer pedestrian crossings
• May encourage more use of on-

street parking
• No impact to emergency response

times

• No vertical and little or no
horizontal deflection

• Loss of on-street parking
• Bicyclists may have to merge with

traffic

• $7,000-$10,000

One-Lane Chokers • Reduces speeds and volumes
• Positive aesthetic effect
• Good functionality
• Safer pedestrian crossings

• Loss of on-street parking
• Bicyclists may have to merge with

traffic
• Opposing vehicles trying to use

same space
• Can significantly delay emergency

vehicles

• $7,000-$10,000

Center Island Narrowing • May reduce speeds and volumes
• Positive aesthetic effect
• Good functionality
• Increases pedestrian safety

• Loss of on-street parking
• Can impact emergency response

vehicles if lanes are made too
narrow

• Should not be used in areas with
frequent driveways

• Varies depending on
size and material



13 

Medians • Prevents any passing maneuvers
along roadway

• Provide area for street landscaping
• Reduces vehicle speeds, along a

curve
• Provides pedestrian refuge area and

aids crossing maneuvers
• Can be used to restrict movements

at intersections

• May require parking removal
• Can be costly
• May limit access depending on

length of median section
• May reduce sight distance

depending on roadway alignment,
size of median

• May impact emergency response
times

• Varies depending on
size and material

Street Closures • Eliminates through traffic
• Reduces speeds
• Improves safety for all modes of

transportation

• Limits access
• Creates problems for emergency

vehicles
• Often need to construct turn-

arounds or cul-de-sacs near the
closure point

• $20,000 (depending
on size)

Diagonal Diverters • Reduces speeds and volumes
• Can enhance aesthetics
• Good functionality
• Increase pedestrian safety
• Improves quality of life for

neighborhood

• Can create vehicular hazards
• Can create poor visibility

conditions
• Can be expensive
• Potentially severe impacts on

emergency response times

• Varies depending on
size and materials

Semi-Diverters • Reduces volume
• Positive aesthetic effect
• Increases pedestrian safety
• Improves quality of life for

neighborhood
• Limits cut-through traffic

• Can create vehicular hazards
• Restricts access at all times – not

just during peak periods
• Can create poor visibility

conditions
• Can be expensive
• Does not controls speed
• May impact emergency response

times

• Varies with
application size



14 

TOWN OF HILLSBOROUGH 

WE, THE UNDERSIGNED RESIDENTS, HEREBY PETITION THE BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS TO APPROVE THE TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES DESCRIBED BELOW 
UPON INDICATED STREET OR PART THEREOF. 

THE STREET OR PART THEREOF DESIRED TO BE AMENDED IS: 

THAT PART OF __________________________________________ STREET FROM 

_________________________________________________________STREET TO 

_________________________________________________________STREET. 

WITH RESPECT TO THE TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICE PETITIONED FOR, WE REQUEST: 

_______________________________________________________________________________ 

_______________________________________________________________________________ 

_______________________________________________________________________________ 

PLEASE NOTE: A MAXIMUM OF 3 TRAFFIC CALMING DEVICES MAY BE REQUESTED 

  PETITION: TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES  



15 

*THE ADDRESSES OF PROPERTIES WILL BE DIRECTLY AFFECTED BY THE PROPOSED CHANGE
HAVE BEEN DETERMINED BY THE TOWN OF HILLSBOROUGH PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT. BY
POLICY, THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS HAS STATED THAT IT WOULD PREFER TO ENTERTAIN
REQUEST FOR CHANGES IN STREET REGULATIONS PROPOSED BY CITIZENS ONLY WHERE 75%
OF THE OCCUPANTS OF THE PROPERTIES DIRECTLY AFFECTED BY THE PROPOSED CHANGE
HAVE SIGNED A PETITION REQUESTING THE CHANGES.

PLEASE MAKE ADDITIONAL COPIES OF THIS FORM IF NEEDED 

Resident Signature Print Name Lot Mailing Address Phone Number 

SIGNATURES OF PETITIONERS*



Board of Commissioners 
Agenda Abstract Form 

Meeting Date:   __May 9, 2016_______________ 
 

Department:   _Planning__________________ 
 

Public Hearing:    Yes    No 
 

Date of Public Hearing:   __________________________ 

For Clerk’s Use Only 
AGENDA ITEM # 

10.F

Consent 
Agenda 

Regular 
Agenda 

Closed 
Session 

 

PRESENTER/INFORMATION CONTACT:    Margaret Hauth, Planning Director 

ITEM TO BE CONSIDERED 
Subject:   
Approve letter of support for the agreement between the Occoneechee Band of the Saponi Nation and Orange 
County to re-establish a village site in Hillsborough 

Attachment(s):  
Draft letter of support 
Draft Proposal 

Brief Summary:  
Local entities have been working to re-establish a village site near River Park for the Occoneechee Band of the 
Saponi Nation.  The Alliance for Historic Hillsborough has asked for a letter of support from the town and from the 
Tourism Board. A draft letter is attached and can be modified as desired by the board members. 

Action Requested:  
Authorize the Mayor to sign and send a letter of support to the Board of Orange County Commissioners 

ISSUE OVERVIEW 
Background Information & Issue Summary:  

Financial Impacts:  

Staff Recommendations/Comments:  



101 East Orange Street  •  P. O. Box 429  •  Hillsborough, North Carolina 27278 
919-732-1270   •   Fax 919-644-2390 

 

 
 
May 9, 2016 
 
Mr. Earl McKee, Chair,  
Orange County Board of Commissioners 
P.O. Box 8181 
Hillsborough, NC 27278 
 
Chairman McKee,  
 
On Monday, May 9th the Hillsborough Town Board of Commissioners reviewed the proposal to restore 
the Occaneechi Village Replica. The restoration of the Occaneechi Village Replica would be an added 
draw for visitors already interested in our town and provide a wonderful resource and opportunity for the 
entire community to learn about the town’s diverse heritage. 
   
As such, the Board would like to express our formal support of the restoration of the Occaneechi Village 
Replica, so long as a Memorandum of Agreement can be reached by the governmental entities and 
associated non-profits involved. 
 
A restored Occaneechi Replica Village will be a benefit to all of Hillsborough and a true asset to the 
community. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Tom Stevens 
Mayor 



Draft 9/15/15 

A Proposal for 
 

Restoring the Occaneechi Village Replica in River Park 

Orange County is planning Phase II of its River Park, located behind the County Courthouse and 
Link Government Services Center in downtown Hillsborough.  As part of that project, the County 
hopes to work with partners to re-establish a replica of the historic Occaneechi Village at its former 
location within the park.  Potential project partners include the Occaneechi Band of the Saponi 
Nation, the Alliance for Historic Hillsborough, the Town of Hillsborough, UNC Research 
Laboratories of Archaeology (RLA), the local Boy Scouts, and the Office of the Duke Forest. 

The former replica village was constructed in 1997-98 under the direction of John “Chief 
Blackfeather” Jeffries and other members of the Occaneechi Band of the Saponi Nation (OSBN).  It 
was located on County-owned land along the Eno River, just a few hundred yards upstream from 
the site of the actual Occaneechi village in the late 17th and early 18th centuries.1  From 1998 – 
2005 the replica village was a highly popular site for cultural education and local tourism.  It was 
host to cultural demonstrations and “living history” days, featuring outdoor cooking, storytelling, 
tribal dance, and methods of hunting and fishing.  The site was also included in the annual Pow-
wows that the OBSN hosted on the adjacent area each June.    

The village infrastructure was removed in 2005 when the OBSN purchased a portion of its ancestral 
land in Alamance County.  The OBSN created a master plan for the 25-acre property, which includes 
a ceremonial ground, fruit orchards, tribal museum, nature trails, and a 1701 Occaneechi Village.  
Development of the complex is a work in progress; in the meantime OSBN hosts school groups, 
Pow-wows, and other cultural/educational activities for Tribal members and the general public.    

Orange County will ask the OBSN to consider whether it would allow/support the reconstruction of 
an Occaneechi village replica site in Hillsborough, and for OBSN to be a lead partner in the 
development and operation of the village.  For most of the year the village site would be open for 
visitor self-education through interpretive signage; at other times there would be scheduled 
outings and events that would require active participation by OBSN and its designated agents.   

The village site should not duplicate the experience offered by the larger OBSN facility in Alamance 
County, but would serve as an introduction to the Occaneechi history and culture in a highly-visible 
setting in River Park and along the Hillsborough Riverwalk.  The village might also help advertise 
upcoming OBSN events to be held at the OBSN Alamance County facility.   

The proposed village would be designed in accordance with the specifications of the 1701 village 
that was documented by the Dr. Steve Davis and his colleagues at UNC RLA.  The village would be 
encircled by a “palisade” comprised of about 400 cedar posts, within which there will be three or 
four small dwellings, one larger dwelling, and three shelters.  Most of the construction would be of 
natural materials (tree trunks and saplings, leather ties, etc.) except for structural reinforcements 
that would be hidden from view.   See attached rendering and photos of the former village site. 

                                                           
1 The UNC Research Laboratories of Archaeology has conducted several archaeology field school “digs” at this 
location since the 1930s.  The most recent one occurred in the summer of 2015 led by Dr. Steve Davis.   



Draft 9/15/15 

[OVER] 

Funding for the palisade and interior structures would come from $20,000 earmarked for this 
replica village site from an allotment of County funds for River Park in FY 2015-16.  The County 
would purchase the materials and hire a contractor to work under the guidance of John Jeffries and 
coordinate volunteer assistance from the local Boy Scouts and other members of the community.    

The project partners would develop a Memorandum of Agreement that would address the various 
roles and responsibilities of each partner such as funding, construction, operation, maintenance, 
allowed uses, fees, and insurance. 

The proposed Occaneechi Village Replica is expected to be a popular destination for residents and 
visitors to Hillsborough, including field trips for area school children.  The site will help fill a gap in 
the education and understanding of our local history and the role of Native American people in 
shaping and enriching this community.   It would complement the larger OBSN facility in nearby 
Alamance County, and together they would be one of only a few sites in the Southeast for this kind 
of cultural experience; others include Clarksville, VA, Montgomery County, NC  and Cherokee, NC.  

 

 

Artist’s conjectural reconstruction of the former Occaneechi 
village at the Fredricks site at Hillsborough  
(Research Laboratories of Archaeology, UNC) 



 
 

Board of Commissioners 
Agenda Abstract Form 

 

Meeting Date:   ___May 9, 2016____________________ 
 

Department:   ___Planning___________________________ 
 

Public Hearing:    Yes    No 
 

Date of Public Hearing:   ___ _______________________ 

  
For Clerk’s Use Only 

AGENDA ITEM # 
 

 
  10.G 

 
      

 
      

Consent 
Agenda 

Regular 
Agenda 

Closed 
Session 

 

 

PRESENTER/INFORMATION CONTACT:    Margaret Hauth, Planning Director  
 

ITEM TO BE CONSIDERED 
Subject:    
Approve resolution authorizing the Orange County FY 2016-2017 HOME program design 
 
Attachment(s):   
Draft resolution 

 
Brief Summary:   
Annually, the HOME consortium receives requests for funding from local non-profit housing entities.  The HOME 
Council reviews the proposals and recommends funding based on the estimated funding that will be available from 
HUD.  This year, the Council received requests for less funds than were available, so it recommended funding the 
county’s rehabilitation program with the remaining funds. The funding includes funds from HUD along with 
reallocations and program income. 
 
Action Requested:   
Adopt the draft resolution 

 
ISSUE OVERVIEW 

Background Information & Issue Summary:   
 
 
Financial Impacts:   
 
 
Staff Recommendations/Comments:   
 

 



101 East Orange Street  •  P. O. Box 429  •  Hillsborough, North Carolina 27278 
919-732-1270   •   Fax 919-644-2390 

 

 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING 
THE ORANGE COUNTY FY 2016 - 2017 HOME PROGRAM DESIGN 

 
 

 BE IT RESOLVED, by the Hillsborough Town Board of Commissioners as a member of the 
Orange County HOME Consortium approves the following activities for the 2016 - 2017 HOME Program. 

 
Name of Applicant Activity/Other Recommendations 

Habitat for Humanity Second Mortgage Assistance 
 

285,000 
 

Rebuilding Together of 
the Triangle 

Homeowner Repairs 50,000 
 

Orange County  Housing Rehabilitation 114,655 
 TOTAL $449,655 

 
                                                             

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Town Manager is hereby designated as the authorized 
representative of the town to act in connection with the submission of this plan and to provide such 
additional information as may be required by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
 
This the 9th day of May 2016. 
 
 

_________________________________________________   
Tom Stevens 
Mayor 

 



 
 

Board of Commissioners 
Agenda Abstract Form 

 

Meeting Date: May 9, 2016 
  

Department: Administration 
  

Public Hearing:   Yes    No 
  

Date of Public Hearing:  
 

  
For Clerk’s Use Only 

AGENDA ITEM # 
 

 
  10.H 

 
   

 
      

Consent 
Agenda 

Regular 
Agenda 

Closed 
Session 

 

 

PRESENTER/INFORMATION CONTACT:  Katherine Cathey, Human Resources Director/Town Clerk    
 
ITEM TO BE CONSIDERED 

Subject:    
Mental Health Awareness Month Proclamation 

 
Attachment(s):   
Proclamation 

 
Brief Summary:   
The National Alliance on Mental Illness (NAMI) - Orange County requests the Town proclaim May 2016 as “Mental 
Health Awareness Month”.  

 
Action Requested:   
Proclaim May 2016 as “Mental Health Awareness Month”. 

 
ISSUE OVERVIEW 

Background Information & Issue Summary:   
 

 
Financial Impacts:   
 

 
Staff Recommendations/Comments:   
 

 
 



Proclamation  
Mental Health Awareness Month  

 
WHEREAS, Mental Health Awareness Month is part of a nationwide effort 

in the month of May to reduce the stigma and discrimination surrounding mental 
health challenges and to increase awareness of tools and resources to prevent such 
challenges and reduce the symptoms; and,  

 
WHEREAS, one in four adults experiences mental health problems in any 

given year and one in 16 adults experiences serious mental illness; and,  
 

WHEREAS, mental health is part of overall health and helps to sustain an 
individual’s thought processes, relationships, productivity and ability to adapt to 
change or face adversity, yet we too often think about mental health differently 
from other health issues; and, 

 
WHEREAS, like other diseases, mental illnesses can be successfully 

treated and thus we must build an open dialogue that encourages support and 
respect for those struggling with mental illness; and, 
 

WHEREAS, a combination of medications, therapy, and recovery 
supports are highly effective, allowing people to maintain their quality of life and 
their involvement with their families and communities; and,  

 
WHEREAS, NAMI NC, through its local affiliate NAMI Orange County, 

serves individuals and families living with mental illness and has requested that 
the city of Hillsborough, NC make this designation. For more information on how 
you can get involved, please visit www.naminc.org; and, 
 
THEREFORE, I, TOM STEVENS, Mayor of Hillsborough, NC do hereby 
proclaim May 2016 to be National Mental Health Awareness Month in the town of 
Hillsborough, NC.  As the Mayor, I call upon all Hillsborough citizens to recommit 
our community to increase awareness and understanding of mental illness, to 
improve the array of mental health services for consumers of all ages, to expand 
the supply of affordable housing for people living with mental illness, and to ensure 
that those who are struggling know they are not alone.  
 
This the 9th day of May 2016. 
 
 

___________________________ 
                   Tom Stevens, Mayor 

http://www.naminc.org/


 
 

Board of Commissioners 
Agenda Abstract Form 

 

Meeting Date:   _____May 9, 2016_______________________ 
 

Department:   ______________Utilities________________ 
 

Public Hearing:    Yes    No 
 

Date of Public Hearing:   __________________________ 

  
For Clerk’s Use Only 

AGENDA ITEM # 
 

 
  10.I 
 

 
      

 
      

Consent 
Agenda 

Regular 
Agenda 

Closed 
Session 

 

 

PRESENTER/INFORMATION CONTACT:    Kenny Keel, PE, Town Engineer / Utilities Director 
 

ITEM TO BE CONSIDERED 
Subject:    
Consider Professional Services Agreement with EMA Resources, Inc. for Water Plant residuals removal 

 
Attachment(s):   
Professional Services Agreement with EMA Resources, Inc. 

 
Brief Summary:   
The Water Plant is in need of having its residuals storage ponds cleaned out and the residuals removed from the site.  
Permitting, testing, removal, transport and land application of the residuals is included in this contract. 

 
Action Requested:   
Approve contract 

 
ISSUE OVERVIEW 

Background Information & Issue Summary:   
The Water Plant produces a waste product (residuals) as a result of water treatment.  It is non-hazardous and is 
mostly mud, but it requires specific handling and permitting to remove from the site and dispose of it.  We consulted 
with two companies that do this work, and received proposals from each.  EMA Resources provided the best 
proposal at the most economical cost.  They are based in Mocksville, NC and have been in operation for 16 years. 
 
The contract is initially intended to clean out both ponds almost completely.  However, the contract can remain open 
for on-call services, so we can continue to remove residuals as needed in the future, if desired. 

 
Financial Impacts:   
Approximately $68,000 is currently available in the Water Plant budget for “Alum Sludge Removal”.  An additional 
$62,000 is budgeted for FY17.  This amount of funding will enable us to remove up to 2.96 million gallons of 
residuals, which will be the vast majority of sludge currently in the ponds.  We plan to begin removal operations in 
late June, and continue into July with FY17 funds. 

 
Staff Recommendations/Comments:   
Approve contract 

 
 



Professional Services Agreement 
 
 
 This Service Agreement (hereinafter called the AGREEMENT) made and entered into 
this 9th day of May 2016, (EFFECTIVE DATE), by and between the Town of Hillsborough, 
NC, (hereinafter called CUSTOMER), and EMA Resources Inc., (hereinafter called 
CONTRACTOR).  
 

WITNESSETH: 
 
In consideration of the following covenants and AGREEMENTS, the CUSTOMER and the 
CONTRACTOR hereby mutually agree as follows: 
 
1. SCOPE 
 

1.1 The CONTRACTOR shall provide residuals management services that include 
mixing, removal, transportation, and land application in accordance with the terms of this 
AGREEMENT (hereinafter called SERVICES) of the CUSTOMER’S Water Treatment 
Plant Residuals (hereinafter called PLANT and hereinafter called RESIDUALS). 
 
 

2. CONTRACTOR OBLIGATIONS 
 
 The CONTRACTOR shall: 
 

2.1.  Provide all labor, equipment, and materials to mix, remove, transport and land apply 
water plant residuals with quantity to authorized by the town based upon available 
funds. 

 
2.2.  Coordinate all sampling for the required nutrient and metal analysis, annual TCLP 

analysis and annual agronomic soil analysis. 
 

2.3.  Compile and Submit to CUSTOMER complete monthly and annual monitoring 
reports as required for compliance with Federal and State regulations. 

 
2.4.  Provide initial permitting of facility residuals. 

 
2.5.  Provide communication with the landowners and/or lessees in the program as well as 

the PLANT personnel to schedule land application events and overall management of 
the program. 

 
2.6.  Provide all technical and public relations support for the land application     program. 

 
2.7.  Provide proof of liability insurance and worker compensation insurance. 

 
2.8.  Indemnify, CUSTOMER, and hold harmless CUSTOMER, its subsidiaries, 

affiliates, successors and assigns and their respective directors, officers, employees, 
shareholders, representatives and agents (hereinafter referred to collectively in this 
section as CUSTOMER INDEMNITEES) from and against of any and all claims, 
liabilities, lawsuits, and causes of action, together with reasonable costs, expenses, 
and attorneys’ fees associated therewith and all amount paid in defense or settlement 
of the foregoing, which may be imposed upon or incurred by CUSTOMER 
INDEMNITEES or asserted against CUSTOMER INDEMNITEES by any other 
person or persons (including GOVERNMENTAL AUTHORITIES), to the extent 



caused by CONTRACTOR’S breach of it obligations under this AGREEMENT or 
violation of applicable LEGAL REQUIREMENTS. 

 
2.9.  Provide the CUSTOMER with an accounting of gallons of RESIDUALS removed 

from the CUSTOMER’S PLANT.  The CUSTOMER will be provided with truck 
reports and/or other supporting documentation for all loads removed by the 
CONTRACTOR. 

 
2.10.  Submit invoices once each month for SERVICES provided by CONTRACTOR, 

using rates and amounts agreed in Article 6 of this AGREEMENT.  
 
 
3. CUSTOMER OBLIGATIONS 
 

The CUSTOMER shall: 
 

3.1.  Provide a residuals which is non-toxic, non-hazardous and suitable for land 
application in accordance with Federal Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and 
North Carolina Department of Environment and Natural Resources (NCDENR), and 
all applicable local, state and national environmental laws and requirements. 

 
3.2.  Provide reasonable and safe access to PLANT Storage Lagoons for 

CONTRACTORS removal and transportation equipment. 
 

3.3.  Submit appropriate application fees with Initial Non-Discharge Permit Application 
submittal. 

 
3.4.  Provide consistent communication with EMA Resources Inc. project management 

personnel as to removal needs and any changes in the process which will affect the 
land application programs. 

 
3.5.  To the extent permitted by law, Indemnify, CONTRACTOR, and hold harmless 

CONTRACTOR, its subsidiaries, affiliates, successors and assigns and their 
respective directors, officers, employees, shareholders, representatives and agents 
(hereinafter referred to collectively in this section as CONTRACTOR 
INDEMNITEES) from and against of any and all claims, liabilities, lawsuits, and 
causes of action, together with reasonable costs, expenses, and attorneys’ fees 
associated therewith and all amount paid in defense or settlement of the foregoing, 
which may be imposed upon or incurred by CONTRACTOR INDEMNITEES or 
asserted against CONTRACTOR INDEMNITEES by any other person or persons 
(including GOVERNMENTAL AUTHORITIES), to the extent caused by 
CUSTOMER’S breach of it obligations under this AGREEMENT or violation of 
applicable LEGAL REQUIREMENTS, or any discrepancy in the character or 
composition of the RESIDUALS from the PLANTS compared to analytical results, 
certifications or other information provided by CUSTOMER to CONTRACTOR. 

 
3.6.  Compensate CONTRACTOR in accordance with the price schedule listed in Article 

6 of this AGREEMENT. 
 

3.7.  Pay all invoices within 30 days after receipt of the invoice. 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
4. NOTICES 
 

Except as otherwise provided herein, any notice, demand or other communication shall 
be in writing and shall be personally served, sent by commercial courier service or 
prepaid registered or certified mail, or sent by telephonic facsimile delivery with 
confirmation thereof.  Any such notice shall be deemed communicated upon receipt. 
 
4.1. The following address is hereby designated as the legal address of the 
CONTRACTOR.  Such address may be changed at any time by notice in writing 
delivered to CUSTOMER. 
 
EMA Resources Inc. 
755 Yadkinville Road 
Mocksville, NC 27028 
Office: 336-751-1441 
Fax: 336-751-1442 
Attention: Erik Blankenship, President 
 
4.2. The following address is hereby designated as the legal address of the CUSTOMER.  
Such address may be changed at any time by notice in writing delivered to 
CONTRACTOR. 
 
Town of Hillsborough, NC 
101 E. Orange St. 
Hillsborough, NC 27278 
Office: 919-732-1270 Ext. 75 
Fax: 919-644-2390  
Attention: Kenny Keel, Utilities Director 
 
 

5. TERM 
 

This AGREEMENT shall be effective from the EFFECTIVE DATE until December 31, 2016 
(the INITIAL TERM) and will automatically renew for one year extensions upon completion 
of the INITIAL TERM.  Either party may cancel the contract for convenience on the 
anniversary after the initial term, with 60 days written notice.  Either party may terminate this 
AGREEMENT and shall have no further obligations to the other under this AGREEMENT if 
(a) the other party fails to observe or perform any material covenant or agreement contained 
in this agreement for ten (10) business days after written notice has been given to such other 
party or (b) at any time upon the insolvency of the other party, or the institution by the 
appointment of a receiver or trustee or for an assignment for the benefit of creditors. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



6. PRICE 
 
 SCHEDULE OF FEES      
         Rate/Gallon 
 Mix, Removal, Transportation & Land Application   $0.0425/Gallon 
 
 Fuel Surcharge 
 $/gallon of diesel      $/load (6500 gallons) 
 $2.51 - $2.60       $2.00/load 
 $2.61 - $2.70       $4.00/load 
 $2.71 - $2.80       $6.00/load 

 
Each subsequent $0.10/gallon increase in diesel will increase the fuel surcharge 
$2.00/load (6500 gallons) 
 
*The price per gallon of diesel will be determined by the Department of Energy-Retail 
On-Highway Diesel Price Index for the Lower Atlantic Region. 
 
Ancillary Services:      
 
Mobilization/Demobilization     $2,400.00 per event 
 
Initial Permit Preparation/Submittal    $1,800.00 Lump Sum  
 
Residuals Sampling & Analysis     Cost Plus 15% 
 
Agricultural Lime:      Cost Plus 15% 
 
The unit rates may be adjusted annually on the anniversary of the EFFECTIVE DATE in 
accordance with increases or decreases in the Consumer Price Index (CPI) for the South 
Urban (all items). 
 
  

7. AMENDMENTS 
 This Agreement may be amended from time to time only by an instrument in writing 
signed by the parties to this AGREEMENT. 
 
 

8. INCORPORATED DOCUMENT 
This AGREEMENT incorporates CONTRACTOR’S proposal dated February 4, 2016 
and attached as Attachment 1 and the Iran Divestment Act Certification Form attached as 
Attachment 2. 

 
 
9. ENTIRE AGREEMENT AND MODIFICATION 

This AGREEMENT and any other document incorporated herein by reference, embody 
the entire understanding of the parties and cannot be changed or modified orally but only 
by an instrument in writing signed by a duly authorized representative of the party against 
which enforcement of any waiver, change, modification or discharge is sought.  The 
AGREEMENT replaces, supersedes and nullifies any agreement of the same subject 
matter, whether oral or written, what the parties have had.  In the event a conflict occurs 
between the terms in this AGREEMENT and the terms of any other document 
specifically incorporated herein by reference, the terms of this AGREEMENT shall 
control. 



 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties of the AGREEMENT have hereunto set their hands and 
seals, dated as of the day and year first herein written. 
 
Town of Hillsborough, NC (CUSTOMER) 
 
 
By:_______________________________ ATTEST:____________________________ 
 
 
Name:_____________________________ Name:______________________________ 
 
 
Title:______________________________ Title:_______________________________ 
 
 
 
EMA Resources Inc. (CONTRACTOR) 
 
 
By:_______________________________ ATTEST:____________________________ 
 
 
Name:_____________________________ Name:______________________________ 
 
 
Title:______________________________ Title:_______________________________ 
 
 
This Instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget 
and Fiscal Control Act. 
 



 
 

Board of Commissioners 
Agenda Abstract Form 

 

Meeting Date:   _____May 9, 2016_______________________ 
 

Department:   ______________Utilities________________ 
 

Public Hearing:    Yes    No 
 

Date of Public Hearing:   __________________________ 

  
For Clerk’s Use Only 

AGENDA ITEM # 
 

 
   10.J 
 

 
      

 
      

Consent 
Agenda 

Regular 
Agenda 

Closed 
Session 

 

 

PRESENTER/INFORMATION CONTACT:    Kenny Keel, PE, Town Engineer / Utilities Director 
 

ITEM TO BE CONSIDERED 
Subject:    
Consider acceptance of water & sewer facilities at Waterstone Estates subdivision, Phase 2, and start of 1-year 
warranty period 

 
Attachment(s):   
None 

 
Brief Summary:   
The Waterstone Estates subdivision project, Phase 2 water & sewer utilities have been installed according to Town 
specifications.  The facilities have a one-year minimum warranty, which will begin upon acceptance. 

 
Action Requested:   
Accept facilities 

 
ISSUE OVERVIEW 

Background Information & Issue Summary:   
The Waterstone Estates subdivision project, Phase 2, water & sewer utilities have been properly installed (final 
phase).  The infrastructure is now ready for official acceptance by the Town.  Water & sewer service has now been 
extended into Phase 2 of the development adjacent to Cates Creek Parkway.  The required documentation has been 
supplied by the developer. 

 
Financial Impacts:   
Upon acceptance, the Town will own the water & sewer facilities and be responsible for their operation, maintenance, 
and repair.  The warranty will protect the Town from the costs of repairs for the initial year.  Costs to the Town should 
be completely offset by the monthly water & sewer fees to be charged to the future customers in the development. 

 
Staff Recommendations/Comments:   
Accept facilities 

 
 



 
 

Board of Commissioners 
Agenda Abstract Form 

 

Meeting Date:   _____May 9, 2016_______________________ 
 

Department:   _________Utilities________________ 
 

Public Hearing:    Yes    No 
 

Date of Public Hearing:   __________________________ 

  
For Clerk’s Use Only 

AGENDA ITEM # 
 

 
   10.K 
 

 
      

 
      

Consent 
Agenda 

Regular 
Agenda 

Closed 
Session 

 

 

PRESENTER/INFORMATION CONTACT:    Kenny Keel, PE, Town Engineer / Utilities Director 
 

ITEM TO BE CONSIDERED 
Subject:    
Consider changing the name of the Old Water Plant facility to the "Adron F. Thompson Water/Sewer Facility" 

 
Attachment(s):   
Excerpt from Town Employee Newsletter, Issue 42, marking Adron’s retirement in November 2014 

 
Brief Summary:   
Utilities staff request that the Old Water Plant be named in honor of Adron Thompson, who served 25 years as our 
Utility System Supervisor 

 
Action Requested:   
Approve new facility name 

 
ISSUE OVERVIEW 

Background Information & Issue Summary:   
Adron Forrest Thompson served as Utility System Supervisor for 25 years before retiring in November 2014.  He had 
also previously served another 4 years as an Equipment Operator several years before returning as supervisor.  He 
developed most of the current staff in Water Distribution & Wastewater Collection, including his successor, and 
constructed/upgraded/repaired countless water and sewer facilities in Hillsborough during his tenure.  He is also 
responsible for the many bluebird houses installed around town (mostly on signposts).  He was extremely well 
respected by utilities staff, who wanted this action taken to honor Adron’s memory.  Adron passed away on March 23, 
2016, at the age of 73, with many current employees serving as honorary pallbearers. 
 
Past precedent for honoring former long-time employees who made significant contributions include the driveway at 
the WWTP (S.V. Brown Trail), the road to the South Water Tank (Ernest Lineberry Lane), and we have a portrait of 
Clarence Rosemond just inside the door of the Water Plant, which was commissioned by former Mayor Fred Cates. 

 
Financial Impacts:   
A new sign will be made to mark the facility.  Exact costs are unknown at this time, but are anticipated to be less than 
$500.  Existing funds are available. 

 
Staff Recommendations/Comments:   
Approve new facility name 

  



 
 
Excerpt from Issue 42 of Talk of the Town: A newsletter for town employees, Winter 2015 
 

 
 

 
Retirement 
 

 
Utility System Supervisor Adron Thompson has retired after 25 years with the town. Adron’s first 
position with the town was equipment operator, but he quickly transitioned into supervisory roles. 
His last day was Nov. 28. 
 

 
“Adron was the typical ‘company man,’ ” Assistant Utilities Director Will Baker said. “He was 
dedicated to trying to fix old water and sewer system problems and looking ahead for what he 
thought would be needed improvements. He always worked after hours when needed and never 
hesitated when it came to helping others.” 
 
“Despite Adron’s retirement, his dedication to the community can be seen on a daily basis through 
the bluebird houses that he has placed around town! How many of them can you find?“ 

 
 

 
 



 
 

Board of Commissioners 
Agenda Abstract Form 

 

Meeting Date: May 9, 2016 
  

Department: Public Works 
  

Public Hearing:   Yes    No 
  

  
 

  
For Clerk’s Use Only 

AGENDA ITEM # 
 

 
   10.L 
 

 
      

 
      

Consent 
Agenda 

Regular 
Agenda 

Closed 
Session 

 

 

PRESENTER/INFORMATION CONTACT:    Ken Hines, Public Works Director 
 
ITEM TO BE CONSIDERED 

Subject:    
Encroachment agreement request for 125 Bonaparte Drive 

 
Attachment(s):   
Encroachment Agreement 
Exhibit A map  
Photo of existing parking pad 

 
Brief Summary:   
The Cornwallis Hills Property Owners Association is requesting an encroachment agreement for 125 Bonaparte Drive 
to repave a pre-existing parking pad approximately 8 feet wide by 167 feet long adjacent to the Cornwallis Hills 
Community Park within the town right-of-way. The parking pad will connect to the existing road surface. 

 
Action Requested:   
Consider approval of the encroachment agreement 

 
ISSUE OVERVIEW 

Background Information & Issue Summary:   
The existing asphalt parking pad has deteriorated and is in extremely poor condition (see photo).  The repaving of the 
parking pad is in compliance with Town Code Ordinance Section 6-29, item (c) which states that pre-existing parking 
pads may remain as long as vehicles can park completely off the improved road surface.  The parking pad is in 
compliance with the Town Ordinance. 

 
Financial Impacts:   
None 

 
Staff Recommendations/Comments:   
Staff recommends approval of the encroachment agreement. 

 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by Robert E. Hornik, Jr. 
& Return to: The Brough Law Firm 
  1526 E. Franklin Street 
  Suite 200 
  Chapel Hill, NC  27514 
 
ORANGE COUNTY 
NORTH CAROLINA 

ENCROACHMENT AGREEMENT 
FOR A STRUCTURE OTHER THAN A SIGN 

 
 

The Town of Hillsborough (the “Town”), owner of a municipal roadway known as Bonaparte Drive (the 
“Property”), and Cornwallis Hills Property Owners Association, Inc. (“CHPOA”), a North Carolina not for profit 
corporation, the record owner of property located at 125 Bonaparte Drive (the “Adjacent Owners”), pursuant to a deed or 
other instrument of conveyance recorded in Book 726, Page 636 in the Orange County Register of Deeds and identified by 
PIN Number 9863-95-0513 (the “Adjacent Property”), hereby agree as follows: 
 
The Town hereby grants a license to the Adjacent Owner to install and maintain one asphalt parking pad (but no other use 
or improvements) on the Property, as is depicted on Exhibit A attached hereto.  No further license for any other 
encroachment is granted. 
 
_____________, represents to the Town that he/she is the ________________  of the Cornwallis Hills Property Owners 
Association, Inc. (the “Adjacent Owner”) and that he has been authorized to execute this Encroachment Agreement on 
behalf of the CHPOA, intending the said CHPOA to be bound by the terms hereof.  
 
The parties further agree that: 
 
(i) the license granted herein does not confer or pass any title, interest or estate in the Property; 
(ii) the Town may require the Adjacent Owner to modify or remove the improvements made pursuant to this 

Agreement if the Town, in its sole discretion, determines that the improvements negatively affect 
stormwater drainage on Bonaparte Drive; 

Commented [RH1]: It should be the President or some 
other officer of the POA 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
  
(iii) that the license granted herein may be revoked at any time by the Town by giving written notice to the 

Adjacent Owners; 
(iv) upon such revocation, the Adjacent Owner agrees to remove and discontinue use of the asphalt parking pad 

authorized herein within thirty (30) days after receipt of the Town’s written notice;  
(v) any expenses arising from the revocation of the license granted herein or the removal and discontinuation 

of use of the asphalt parking pad are to be paid by the Adjacent Owner; 
(vi) if the asphalt parking pads are not removed and discontinued as provided in (iv), the Town is authorized to 

remove the parking pad and other objects on the Property without any liability therefore and without the 
necessity of a hearing or other judicial intervention, with expenses to be paid by the Adjacent Owner, and 
if not paid, the expenses of removal and discontinuance of use, including any attorney’s fees associated 
with the removal and assertion of the Town’s interest, shall be a lien upon the Adjacent Property and shall 
be collected as unpaid taxes. 

 
The parties further agree that this Encroachment Agreement will be recorded in the registers of deeds 

office in the chain of title for the Adjacent Property so that any successor in title to the Property has record notice 
of the privileges and obligations associated with this license.  The parties also agree that the fees associated with 
recording the Encroachment Agreement will be paid by the Adjacent Owner. 

 
So agreed this ______ day of May, 2016. 
 
                                                                                               Cornwallis Hills Property Owners Association, Inc. 
                                                                                                                         Adjacent Owner 
 
       BY:    ______________________________ 
                 ___________________________  
 
         
ORANGE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 

 
I, _________________________, a Notary Public for said County and State, do hereby certify that 

_______________, for the Cornwallis Hills Property Owners Association, Inc., Adjacent Owner, personally 
appeared before me this day and acknowledged the due execution of the foregoing instrument on behalf of the 
CHPOA and in his/her capacity as ________________. 
 

Witness my hand and official seal, this the ____ day of May, 2016. 
 
 
(Official Seal/Stamp)        _________________________________ 
                  Notary Public 
 
My commission expires:______________ 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
  
 
*********************************************************************************** 

 
 
 
TOWN OF HILLSBOROUGH 
 
 
      By:___________________________________  
       Eric Peterson, Town Manager 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________                                      (SEAL) 
Katherine Cathey, Town Clerk 

 
 

 
**********************************************************************************************  
 
Orange County, North Carolina 
 

I, _________________________, a Notary Public for said County and State, do hereby certify that Eric 
Peterson, Hillsborough Town Manager, personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged the due 
execution of the foregoing instrument. 
 
 Witness my hand and official seal, this the ____ day of May, 2016. 
 
 
(Official Seal/Stamp)    ______________________________________ 
                  Notary Public 
 
My commission expires:______________ 
 







 
 

Board of Commissioners 
Agenda Abstract Form 

 

Meeting Date: May 9, 2016 
  

Department: Finance 
  

Public Hearing:   Yes  X  No 
  

Date of Public Hearing:  
 

  
For Clerk’s Use Only 

AGENDA ITEM # 
 

 
   10.M 
 

 
      

 
      

Consent 
Agenda 

Regular 
Agenda 

Closed 
Session 

 

 

PRESENTER/INFORMATION CONTACT:    Heidi Lamay, Finance Director 
 
ITEM TO BE CONSIDERED 

Subject:    
Interlocal Agreement for Orange County to administer collection of stormwater fees and charges to be levied against 
and charged to properties located within the town 

 
Attachment(s): 
Draft Agreement 

 
Brief Summary:   
If the board approves the new stormwater fee as part of the FY 17 budget, it is our intent to have Orange County 
administer the collection of this fee by including it on the annual property tax bills. 

 
Action Requested:   
Staff requests that the board give the town manager permission to sign an interlocal agreement with Orange County 
to administer the stormwater fee collection. 

 
ISSUE OVERVIEW 

Background Information & Issue Summary:   
Several options for collection were considered, including adding the charge to monthly water and sewer bills.  
Ultimately, contracting with Orange Country to do the collection was the best choice and their administration fee is 
also lower than the cost of other options at this time. 

 
Financial Impacts:   
Orange County will charge their standard 3% collection fee for this service. The cost has been factored into the 
proposed Stormwater Fee.  

 
Staff Recommendations/Comments:   
Staff recommends that the board give the town manager permission to sign the interlocal agreement as presented. 

 
 



 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN ORANGE COUNTY 
AND THE TOWN OF HILLSBOROUGH REGARDING ADMINISTRATION OF THE 

TOWN OF HILLSBOROUGH STORMWATER UTILITY FEE BILLING AND 
COLLECTION 

 
 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this ____ day of _____________, 
2016 between the Town of Hillsborough, North Carolina, a North Carolina municipal 
corporation, located in Orange County, North Carolina (hereinafter referred to as the 
“Town”); and Orange County, a body politic and political subdivision of the State of North 
Carolina (hereinafter referred to as the “County”), for the administration of the Town’s 
Stormwater Utility Fee Billing and Collection (the “Stormwater Utility Fee”). 
 

WITNESSETH 
 

WHEREAS, the County and Town are public bodies, politic and corporate, under 
the laws of the State of North Carolina and are vested pursuant to Article 20 of North 
Carolina General Statutes Chapter 160A with the power and authority to enter into this 
Interlocal Agreement (hereinafter referred to as the “Agreement”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town is authorized and empowered by Article 16 of Chapter 160A 

of the North Carolina General Statutes to establish and operate a stormwater utility as a 
“public enterprise”, and to establish, fix and enforce rates, fees, charges and penalties for 
the stormwater utility; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town has proposed to establish a stormwater utility and to charge 

to properties located within the Town limits certain fees for stormwater management 
programs and structural and natural stormwater and drainage system service; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Town desires that the County administer collection of fees and 
charges to be levied against and charged to properties located within the Town; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County has broad tax collection and administration authority and 

staff in place to carry out that authority and is willing, subject to certain conditions, to 
provide administration and collection of stormwater utility fees and charges in the Town. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and on mutual promises 

and obligations set forth herein, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby 
acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 
 

1. TERM  
 

a. This Agreement shall commence July 1, 2016 and shall continue each 
fiscal year thereafter through June 30, 2026.   

b. This Agreement may be renewed beyond June 30, 2026 upon written 
agreement of the Parties. 

  



 

2 
 

2. COSTS 
 

a. Other than direct collection costs, County shall not incur and shall not be 
responsible for any costs, including but not limited to software, hardware, 
or other upfront costs, associated with carrying out the requirements and 
duties established by this Agreement.   

b. Other than direct collection costs, any and all costs, fees, and expenses 
related to the administration of the District shall be borne by Town. 

c. On or before the 15th day of January, April, July and October of each year 
during the term of this Agreement, the County shall transmit to Town all 
stormwater utility fees and charges collected in the Town during the 
preceding three months and bill the Town an amount equal to 3% of the 
fees and charges collected during that three month period for costs of 
administration and collection.  The Town shall pay the County within 30 
days of billing.  

d. Upon a failure by Town to remit payment when due County shall provide 
Town with written notice of such default in payment and providing Town 
with ten days to cure the default.  Should Town not cure the default within 
ten days County may withhold the provision of services as contemplated 
herein.  County shall incur no fault or liability for any failure to provide 
services pursuant to the terms of this paragraph.   
 

3. COUNTY ADMINISTRATION OF DISTRICT 
 

a. County shall have the exclusive authority to determine the most 
appropriate means of administering the collection of Town stormwater 
utility fees and charges in the Town. 

b. The Town shall provide County any and all information, records, or 
materials needed by County for the effective and accurate collection of 
such fees and charges. 

 
4. ENFORCEMENT   
 

a. The Parties agree the County has no responsibility to collect unpaid or 
delinquent fees and charges.    

b. Town has the sole responsibility at Town’s cost to collect unpaid or 
delinquent fees and charges.   

c. Upon request by Town, County shall provide Town any and all records 
related to unpaid and/or delinquent stormwater utility fee accounts in order 
to allow Town a better opportunity to collect such delinquent accounts. 

 
5. REVIEW OF AGREEMENT 
 

During the initial term this Agreement shall be reviewed by staff of the County 
and Town Management each year beginning no later than October 15, 2017 in 
order to determine: The cost/benefit of the County’s administration of the 
collection of stormwater utility fees and charges in the Town; any difficulties 



 

3 
 

encountered in implementing the terms of this Agreement; any other issues that 
need to be examined.   

 
6. AMENDMENTS 
 

This Agreement may be amended by mutual written consent of the County and 
Town.  

  
7. TERMINATION 

 
This Agreement may be terminated by either Party hereto upon one year 
advance written notice to the other Party or at any time by mutual written 
agreement of the Parties.   

 
8. NOTICE 
 

Any notice required by this Agreement shall be in writing and delivered by 
certified or registered mail, return receipt requested to the following: 
 
To the County:    To the Town: 
 
Orange County    Town of Hillsborough 
County Manager    Town Manager 
P.O. Box 8181    P.O. Box 429 
Hillsborough, NC  27278  Hillsborough, NC  27278  

 
9. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

 
This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement of the parties hereto and is 

effective the date first above recorded. 
 
 
 
________________________    _________________________ 
Manager, Town of Hillsborough    Manager, Orange County 
 
 
 
ATTEST:       ATTEST: 
  
 
________________________    _________________________ 
Town Clerk       Clerk to the Board 
 



 
 

Board of Commissioners 
Agenda Abstract Form 

 

Meeting Date:   __May 9, 2016_______________ 
 

Department:   _Planning__________________ 
 

Public Hearing:    Yes    No 
 

Date of Public Hearing:   __________________________ 

  
For Clerk’s Use Only 

AGENDA ITEM # 
 

 
  10.N 
 

 
      

 
      

Consent 
Agenda 

Regular 
Agenda 

Closed 
Session 

 

 

PRESENTER/INFORMATION CONTACT:    Margaret Hauth, Planning Director 
 
ITEM TO BE CONSIDERED 

Subject:    
Authorize Manager to enter into contracts for design and survey work related to relocating town hall annex and 
conceptual design for police and fire station 

 
Attachment(s):   
none 

 
Brief Summary:   
The town released and RFQ for design firms to assist with the design of the proposed police and fire station as well 
as the renovation of the former medical building and town barn. A number of firms responded and the staff committee 
focused on four firms for a detailed assessment. Moseley Architects from Morrisville proposed a partnership with Civil 
Consultants from Durham to complete the project. 

 
Action Requested:   
1) Authorize the manager to enter into a contract with Summit Design and Engineering Services for survey work 
associated with the conceptual plan for the police and fire station on North Churton for a fee not to exceed $70,000.   
2) Authorize the manager to enter into a contract with Moseley Architects for design work to renovate the town barn 
and the former medical center for a fee not to exceed $250,000. 

 
ISSUE OVERVIEW 

Background Information & Issue Summary:   
Staff has been working with Moseley Architects to adjust the scope and fee associated with the project to meet our 
needs. These discussions are on-going, but are very close to resolution. To accelerate the start time as much as 
possible, staff is asking the board to authorize contracts with both the design team and a surveyor with not to exceed 
amounts. We believe the actual contract prices will be lower than these amounts, but ask for the flexibility to ensure 
the town gets the desired product. A survey requires a separate contract, and the town will provide that data to the 
architect. 

 
Financial Impacts:   
 
Staff Recommendations/Comments:   
 

 



 
 

Board of Commissioners 
Agenda Abstract Form 

 

Meeting Date:   __May 9, 2016_______________ 
 

Department:   _Planning__________________ 
 

Public Hearing:    Yes    No 
 

Date of Public Hearing:   __________________________ 

  
For Clerk’s Use Only 

AGENDA ITEM # 
 

 
      
 

 
   11.A 

 
      

Consent 
Agenda 

Regular 
Agenda 

Closed 
Session 

 

 

PRESENTER/INFORMATION CONTACT:    Margaret Hauth, Planning Director 
 
ITEM TO BE CONSIDERED 

Subject:    
Discussion of service impact report related to the potential annexation of Northside Mobile Home Park 

 
Attachment(s):   
Report 

 
Brief Summary:   
Staff was asked to report on potential service impacts and financial impacts of annexing this existing mobile home 
park. The primary impact is a reduction of revenue in the water and sewer fund with a small increase in the general 
fund. The police department likely has the greatest impact on general fund services in the increased mileage to 
provide routine patrol service. 

 
Action Requested:   
Direction – this request could be heard at the July public hearing if the board was interested in pursuing the request. 

 
ISSUE OVERVIEW 

Background Information & Issue Summary:   
The attached report is different than the detailed fiscal analysis usually provided since this site is developed and not 
subject to additional development. This site has an impact to the water and sewer fund in that current customers 
would see reduced water bills. The department heads and property owner have all had a chance to look over the 
report before it was included in the agenda packet. 

 
Financial Impacts:   
 

 
Staff Recommendations/Comments:   
 

 
 



101 East Orange Street  •  P. O. Box 429  •  Hillsborough, North Carolina 27278 
919-732-1270   •   Fax 919-644-2390 

 

 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Mayor Stevens and Hillsborough Town Board members 
From: Management Team 
Date: May 2, 2016 
 
RE: Service Impact study for Northside Mobile Home Park 
 
Administration 
 No specific impact is expected.  
 
Billing & Collection 
 The year to date usage reports for the existing 17 water and sewer accounts were reviewed. There 
is an 18th account, but the resident was very new, so that unit was excluded to be conservative.  Almost all 
of the accounts have had at least one late fee applied during the year and about 5 have been disconnected 
for non-payment.  The table below provides a more detailed breakdown of use and estimated reduction in 
revenues. 
  Estimated Annual 

Revenue as out of town 
customers (excluding 
penalties) 

Estimated Annual 
Revenue as in town 
customers (excluding 
penalties) 

8 accounts Average usage below the 
minimum 

$9,832 $5,042 

5 accounts Average above minimum, but 
less than 4,000 gpm (used 
3000 to estimate) 

$7,090 $3,636 

2 accounts Average above 4,000 gpm 
(used 4200 to estimate) 

$3,970 $2,036 

1 account Average about 6,400 gpm $3,025 $1,551 

1 account Average above 7,000 
consistently – likely more 
residents in dwelling (used 
7500 to estimate) 

$3,545 
 

$1,818 

Totals $27,462 $14,083 
 
Engineering 
 Provided the existing lines within the mobile home park remain the responsibility of the park to 
maintain, the Engineer has no concerns about the impact of annexation. 
 
Finance 
 No specific impact is expected. 



101 East Orange Street  •  P. O. Box 429  •  Hillsborough, North Carolina 27278 
919-732-1270   •   Fax 919-644-2390 

 

 
Planning 
 No specific impact is expected. The site is developed and expected to redevelop. 
 
Police 
 The Chief checked with 911 to see if there were significant calls for service.  None were reported. 
As the park is under a ½ mile from the current city limits, this will add mileage costs to provide standard 
patrol to the neighborhood. 
 
Public Works 
 No specific impact is expected. The streets within the park are private, so the town will not 
provide garbage pick-up or other sanitation or street services inside the development. If brush pick-up is 
allowed, it would be from the Faucette Mill Road frontage only. 
 
Property taxes 
 The site owner currently pays taxes on the property (valued at $297,490) and a number of the 
mobile homes as business personal property (valued at $81,320).  Residents who own their mobile homes 
also pay personal property tax on its value, but those values are excluded from this report as the 
information is not readily available.  
 
At the current tax levels, the combined tax bill for real estate and business property would be $2,575.91 
annually. Using our assumed collection rate of 97%, the expect revenues would be $2,498.63. The County 
will continue to receive property tax. The site will no longer pay Fire District taxes.  Annexation may 
impact the solid waste fees, but that was not calculated as the fee is paid to Orange County. 
 
The impact of personal vehicle taxes was not included in this report. The expected revenues would likely 
be less than $1,000. 
 
Stormwater 
 The site would be subject to the stormwater utility fee calculated on impervious surface. A rough 
estimate using aerial photography estimates the site impervious surface at 50,000 sf for the street, parking 
and mobile homes combined.  The annual fee would be $1,500. 
 



 
 

Board of Commissioners 
Agenda Abstract Form 

 

Meeting Date:   __May 9, 2016_______________ 
 

Department:   _Planning__________________ 
 

Public Hearing:    Yes    No 
 

Date of Public Hearing:   __________________________ 

  
For Clerk’s Use Only 

AGENDA ITEM # 
 

 
      
 

 
  11.B 

 
      

Consent 
Agenda 

Regular 
Agenda 

Closed 
Session 

 

 

PRESENTER/INFORMATION CONTACT:    Margaret Hauth, Planning Director 
 
ITEM TO BE CONSIDERED 

Subject:    
Receive request from Mystery Brewing to authorize use of Riverwalk for a “parade” on Saturday, June 18 

 
Attachment(s):   
Special event application 
Greenway use policy 

 
Brief Summary:   
The town has received a request for a “parade” along Riverwalk on Saturday, June 18. It does not meet the criteria 
for staff approval.   

 
Action Requested:   
Consideration of special event permit involving the use of Riverwalk 

 
ISSUE OVERVIEW 

Background Information & Issue Summary:   
The impact is for a short period of time, the applicant is proposing to post volunteers along the route entrances to 
encourage the public to yield for the short parade period, and the route avoids use of the railroad underpass which is 
a “pinchpoint” for sizable groups. 
 
This event is unlike many that we receive in that the participants will simply move through the Riverwalk corridor to an 
event elsewhere.  No additional services are included in the request. 
 
The greenway use policy the board approved last summer is attached for reference.  

 
Financial Impacts:   
 

 
Staff Recommendations/Comments:   
 

 
 











Greenway Special Events policy 
 

1) Staff may approve special events permits for some requests for non-exclusive & non-
competitive events. 

2) Any event that is competitive, timed, sanctioned, or requires exclusive use requires Town Board 
authorization. 

3) Any multi-day event that involves displays, performances, or sales may only be approved by the 
Town Board. 

 
Guidelines for staff approval of greenway events: 

1) The event must be non-competitive 
2) The event may only involve walking or running humans, no bicycles, toy vehicles, or pets 
3) The event must have an anticipated attendance that will not overly congest the greenway – 

generally 100 or fewer if all walkers/runners leave the start at the same time 
4) The event must be planned at a non-peak time (non-peak times are weekdays before 2 pm, 

Saturday before 10 am and Sunday before noon) 
5) If the event uses the greenway to connect users form one location to another, this is preferable 

to loop traffic.  If loop traffic is planned, the turnaround points must be within a park and not on 
the greenway itself to allow for congestion dispersal. 

6) Any event that cannot be approved by staff will be referred to the Town Board for 
consideration. 

 
 
Guidelines for Town Board consideration of greenway events: 

1) Greenways are constructed for the enjoyment of all town citizens and visitors, first and 
foremost. 

2) Scheduling the greenway to intensive or exclusive use fundamentally limits its availability to the 
general public and will only be done for special circumstances. 

3) Competitive, timed, or sanctioned events for walkers, runners, or bicyclists will only be 
considered on low-use times (ending before 10 AM).  Bicyclists will only be considered if the 
route is for through traffic, not looped (through traffic twice as part of a significantly larger loop 
may be considered if the timing of the return trip can be anticipated or accommodated). The 
Town Board will determine, based on application information and advice from staff whether the 
greenway will be closed to public use during such an event, regardless of the applicant’s 
request. 

4) The Town Board many consider any request that cannot be approved by staff and does not 
qualify as item 3 above. 

5) The Town Board may consider requests that do not meet these guidelines when proposed as 
part of a large, community wide event that the town sponsors or may have significant tourism 
benefits. 



 
 

Board of Commissioners 
Agenda Abstract Form 

 

Meeting Date:   __May 9, 2016_______________ 
 

Department:   _Planning__________________ 
 

Public Hearing:    Yes    No 
 

Date of Public Hearing:   __________________________ 

  
For Clerk’s Use Only 

AGENDA ITEM # 
 

 
      
 

 
   11.C 

 
      

Consent 
Agenda 

Regular 
Agenda 

Closed 
Session 

 

 

PRESENTER/INFORMATION CONTACT:    Margaret Hauth, Planning Director 
 
ITEM TO BE CONSIDERED 

Subject:    
Receive request from Classical American Homes Preservation Trust to install pedestrian warning and trail crossing 
signs on Elizabeth Brady Road 

 
Attachment(s):   
Request, Map, Sample signs 

 
Brief Summary:   
The Town Code defines certain crosswalk locations when they are not located at an intersection.  The NCGS 20-173 
and 174 provide that pedestrians have the right-of-way within a marked crosswalk or at an unmarked crosswalk if it is 
at a street intersection. Otherwise, the pedestrian must yield to vehicles.  Since the Mountains to Sea Trail will be 
crossing Elizabeth Brady Road, some notification to the public is needed to ensure everyone is aware of this change. 

 
Action Requested:   
Approval of mid-block street crossing and direction as to the type of crossing authorized (a Town Code amendment is 
needed for a crosswalk). 

 
ISSUE OVERVIEW 

Background Information & Issue Summary:   
Mid-block crossings are difficult to have approved on state roads.  Since Elizabeth Brady Road is a town street, the 
town board has the choice of how to proceed.  A crosswalk can instill a feeling of false security for walkers. 
Options: 
  1) The Town could amend the Town Code and define this location as a crosswalk and have public works install and 

maintain a painted crosswalk.  
2) The Town could opt to install pedestrian warning signs along with “trail crossing” or some other notification to 

draw attention that the signs warn of crossing pedestrians. Sample signs from the Manual on Uniform Traffic 
Control Devices are attached. 

Financial Impacts:   
Costs to install cross walk or signage have not been included in the budget. 
Staff Recommendations/Comments:   
 

 
 



1

Margaret Hauth

From: Bill Crowther <Bill@classicalamericanhomes.org>
Sent: Thursday, March 31, 2016 4:10 PM
To: Margaret Hauth
Subject: MST Road Crossing

Margaret,   
Could you reserve a time for me to address the Town Board for permission to mark a MST crossing on Elizabeth Brady 
Rd. I am willing to adhere to any Town regulations on this matter. That trail segment is due for completion in June/July 
2016.  Thank you,  Bill Crowther 
 
Ayr Mount Historic Site 
376 St. Mary’s Road  Hillsborough  NC  27278 
919-732-6886     919-732-4524, fax 
  
Classical American Homes Preservation Trust and 
The Richard Hampton Jenrette Foundation 
http://classicalamericanhomes.org 
  
 



Vietri 

margaret.hauth
Oval





 
 

Board of Commissioners 
Agenda Abstract Form 

 

Meeting Date:   __May 9, 2016_______________ 
 

Department:   _Planning__________________ 
 

Public Hearing:    Yes    No 
 

Date of Public Hearing:   __________________________ 

  
For Clerk’s Use Only 

AGENDA ITEM # 
 

 
      
 

 
   11.D 

 
      

Consent 
Agenda 

Regular 
Agenda 

Closed 
Session 

 

 

PRESENTER/INFORMATION CONTACT:    Margaret Hauth, Planning Director 
 
ITEM TO BE CONSIDERED 

Subject:    
Receive and discuss conceptual site layout for the train station portion of the town’s 20 acres on Orange Grove Street 

 
Attachment(s):   
Concept site plan and maps 

 
Brief Summary:   
The town contracted with Summit Design and Surface 678 to develop a conceptual plan for the train station property. 
The intent of this exercise is to define the areas that will need to be studied under the National Environmental Policy 
Act (NEPA). Essentially, the town needs to define the areas that might be disturbed with the construction. 

 
Action Requested:   
 

 
ISSUE OVERVIEW 

Background Information & Issue Summary:   
The attached drawings with staff added notes are the current version. Staff is drawing to a close on this project and 
wanted to give the board an idea to see where things stood and check in with comments before sharing the plans 
with our funding partners and finalizing next steps.  

 
Financial Impacts:   
 

 
Staff Recommendations/Comments:   
 

 
 



SO
U

TH
 C

H
U

RT
O

N
 S

T
US - 70

ORANGE GROVE ROAD

HILLSBOROUGH TRAIN STATION

MARCH 2016
CONCEPT

(6) Accessible PParkingg Spaaces

(668) Parkingg Spap ces

Trainn Stattion

PlP atform

yPedestrian Pathway

Raingarden / Bioretentioon

Bus Dropoff  and Shuttle

fDroppoff

FU
TU

RE
 B

UI
LD

IN
G

S

FU
TU

RE
 B

UI
LD

IN
G

S

FU
TU

RE
 B

UI
LD

IN
G

S

FU
TU

RE
 B

UI
LD

IN
G

S

FU
TU

RE
 B

UI
LD

IN
G

S

FU
TU

RE
 B

UI
LD

IN
G

S

FU
TU

RE
 B

UI
LD

IN
G

S

SiS te Entry Drivey D

Proposo ed Collins Ridge Drive

OrO ange Grove St. Ext.

Future Develo mentpm

Railroad Tracks



ORANGE GROVE ST. EXT.

PLATFORM

D
R

O
P

 O
F

F
 A

R
E

A
SH

ELTER

S
H

E
LTE

R

8 S
P

A
C

E
S

8 S
P

A
C

E
S

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 C
O

LLIN
S

 R
ID

G
E

 D
R

IV
E

13 S
P

A
C

E
S

13 S
P

A
C

E
S

8 S
P

A
C

E
S

8 S
P

A
C

E
S

9 S
P

A
C

E
S

9 S
P

A
C

E
S

9 S
P

A
C

E
S

9 S
P

A
C

E
S

6 H/C SPACES

10 SPACES

9 SPACES

12 SPACES

FU
TU

R
E

FU
TU

R
E

FU
TU

R
E

FU
TU

R
E

FU
TU

R
E

FU
TU

R
E

FU
TU

R
E

R/R RO
W

200.00'

ACCESS
EASEM

ENT

S
E

TB
A

C
K

60.00'

30.00'

P
R

O
JE

C
T N

O
.

S
H

E
E

T N
O

.

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 N
A

M
E

:

15-0297

























P
R

O
JE

C
T N

O
.

S
H

E
E

T N
O

.

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 N
A

M
E

:

15-0297

























K:\2015\15-0297\CIVIL\Current Drawings\11x17 Bulletin.dwg, 24x36, 4/1/2016 4:16:20 PM, kellysue.woody, 1:1

margaret.hauth
Callout
Station Access only

margaret.hauth
Callout
Potential Access to Collins Ridge

margaret.hauth
Callout
Possible crossing location - may also move significantly east



margaret.hauth
Oval

margaret.hauth
Callout
Station building

margaret.hauth
Callout
Platform to access train by passengers

margaret.hauth
Callout
Bus drop-off/transfer point

margaret.hauth
Text Box
"Future" boxes provide schematic for potential additional development in the vicinity of the station.  Each building is approximately 7,500

margaret.hauth
Text Box
Shaded areas are anticipated for construction with the train station & with the approved funding. Dashed lines indicated possible future additional development NOT funded with the station budget.Current funding anticipates construction of 100 parking spaces, as shown in shaded areas.

margaret.hauth
Callout
This street could be modified to provide the connection to US 70 A, or the connection may shift east.  This is NOT part of the station planning or construction.

margaret.hauth
Callout
Conceptual Collins Ridge Access

margaret.hauth
Callout
Pedestrain walkway to Churton Street



 
 

Board of Commissioners 
Agenda Abstract Form 

 

Meeting Date:   ____May 9, 2016_________________________ 
 

Department:   __      Public Works___________________________ 
 

Public Hearing:    Yes  x  No 
 

Date of Public Hearing:   __________________________ 

  
For Clerk’s Use Only 

AGENDA ITEM # 
 

 
      
 

 
  11.E 

 
      

Consent 
Agenda 

Regular 
Agenda 

Closed 
Session 

 

 

PRESENTER/INFORMATION CONTACT:    Ken Hines,  Public Works Director 
 

ITEM TO BE CONSIDERED: 
 
Ordinance revision amending Town Code, Section 11-17, Specifications for Solid Waste receptacles 

 
Attachment(s):  
Section 11-17 with item tracking and revisions 
Revised ordinance 

 
Background:  
With the expansion of residential properties the Town Code needs to be updated to clearly define the requirements 
for solid waste collection to be performed by the town.  The new ordinance will allow property owners and developers 
to know the restrictions for solid waste collection before construction begins. 

 
Action Requested: 
Approve an ordinance amending Town Code, Section 11-17. 

 
ISSUE OVERVIEW 
The existing Town Code does not state that solid waste collection will only occur on public streets.  The revised 
ordinance clarifies the issue.  
  
The revision states that dwelling units must have driveways or other clearly defined spaces where roll-out carts can 
be serviced. This will ensure access for collection by an automated garbage truck.   
 
A revision was included to address multiple townhouses (more than five units) where each townhouse is located on a 
single lot.  The subsection now reads when five or more dwelling units (each share a least an adjacent wall with an 
adjacent unit, (such as a townhouse or apartment building), the owner of the premises shall provide one or more 
dumpsters. 

 
Financial Impacts: 
None 

 
Staff Recommendations/Comments:   
No changes will be necessary to current solid waste collections if the ordinance is approved. 

 
 



 
 

  Page 1 

Sec. 11-16. - Property owner responsibility for solid waste receptacle.  

The owner of every premises shall be responsible for providing adequate solid waste receptacles in 
accordance with this section to store the solid wastes generated by activities taking place on those premises 
between scheduled pickups.  

(Prior Code, § 11-16) 

Sec. 11-17. - Specifications for solid waste receptacle.  

(a) (a) The Town shall have no obligation to, and does not, collect solid waste from premises 
unless the premises have frontage on a public street constructed to Town standards and solid 
waste receptacles are provided as required by this Section. 

(b) All dwelling units have driveways or other clearly defined curbside locations where roll-carts can 
be serviced along the public street.   

(c) Subject to the provisions of this section, and after consultation with the owner of the premises 
concerned, the sanitation superintendent shall determine the size, number, and type of solid waste 
receptacles that must be provided for all premises in accordance with section 11-16. In making 
this determination, the sanitation superintendent shall consider the type of activities on each 
premises and the amount of solid waste likely to be generated by those activities, as well as the 
welfare of the occupants and neighbors of those premises and the town's need to facilitate 
collection and minimize the costs of this service.  

(dcb) Unless otherwise determined by the sanitation superintendent for good cause shown, wWhen there 
are  fivefive or more attached dwelling units  are located on a single lot (eg., each  unit shares at least 
one wall with an adjacent unit, (such as a townhouse or apartment building), the owner(s) of the 
premises shall provide one or more dumpsters solid waste receptacles as determined by the sanitation 
superintendent.dumpsters or privately-serviced roll out carts so that the criteria relating to capacity are 
satisfiedso that the criteria relating to capacity are satisfied..  

(edc) Unless otherwise determined by the sanitation superintendent for good cause shown, whenever 
any nonresidential premises requires more than three of the containers described in subsection (e) 
(fe) of this section, assuming twice per week collection by town crews in order to satisfy the 
requirement stated in subsection (a c) of this section, then one or more dumpsters of an appropriate 
size shall be required. For purposes of this section where multiple business developments having an 
accessway or parking area owned in common by such businesses or enterprises or by an association 
of such owners, the term "nonresidential premises" refers collectively to all of the businesses located 
on a single lot or served by an accessway that is commonly owned.  

(1) Two cubic yards of storage capacity are provided for every eight dwelling units or fraction thereof.  

(2) If more than one dumpster is required, the owner shall provide the smallest number of dumpsters 
capable of satisfying the requirements stated in subsection (1) of this section.  

(fed) Businesses are required to store their waste matter in either 30-gallon cans with handles and lids or 
the town prescribed dumpsters. The dumpsters are optional if a business has no more than three 30-
gallon cans of waste daily. If the daily waste from any one business exceeds three 30-gallon cans, the 
business must purchase and maintain a prescribed dumpster. The size of the dumpster and its location 
are to be determined by the sanitation superintendent.  

(gfe) When dumpsters are required by the sanitation superintendent, only dumpsters compatible with town 
collection equipment will be approved.  

(hgf) Unless otherwise determined by the sanitation superintendent for good cause shown, the owners of 
all premises not required to be served by dumpsters shall provide at least one 30—32 gallon container 
made of galvanized metal, plastic, rubber, or other material resistant to rust, corrosion, or rapid 

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering
Style: a, b, c, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left +
Aligned at:  0.25" + Indent at:  0.55"

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Highlight



 
 

  Page 2 

deterioration. Each required container shall be watertight and provided with handles and a tightfitting 
cover.  

 



AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 11-17, SPECIFICATIONS FOR SOLID WASTE 
RECEPTACLES, OF THE TOWN CODE OF THE TOWN OF HILLSBOROUGH 

 

THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE TOWN OF HILLSBOROUGH ORDAINS: 

 

Subsection (a). Existing subsection (a) is re-identified as subsection (c). 

Subsection (a). Subsection (a) is amended to read, “The Town shall have no 
obligation to, and does not, collect solid waste from premises 
unless the premises have frontage on a public street 
constructed to Town standards and solid waste receptacles are 
provided as required by the Section.” 

Subsection (b). Subsection (b) is re-identified as subsection (d). 

Subsection (b). Subsection (b) is amended to read, “All dwelling units have 
driveways or other clearly defined curbside locations where roll-
carts can be serviced along the public street.” 

Subsection (c).   Subsection (c) is re-identified as subsection (e) and “subsection 
(e)” in the first sentence is amended to read “subsection (f).” 
“Subsection (a)” in the first sentence is amended to read   
“subsection c.” 

Subsection (d). Subsection (d) is re-identified as subsection (f). 

Subsection (d). Subsection (d) is amended to read, “When there are five or 
more attached dwelling units (e.g., each shares at least one wall 
with an adjacent unit, such as a townhouse or apartment 
building), the owner(s) of the premises shall provide one or 
more solid waste receptacles as determined by the sanitation 
superintendent.”  

Subsection (e). Subsection (e) is re-identified as subsection (g). 

Subsection (f). Subsection (f) is re-identified as subsection (h).  



 
 

Board of Commissioners 
Agenda Abstract Form 

 

Meeting Date: May 9, 2016 
  

Department: Finance 
  

Public Hearing:   Yes  X  No 
  

Date of Public Hearing:  
 

  
For Clerk’s Use Only 

AGENDA ITEM # 
 

 
      
 

 
  11.F 

 
      

Consent 
Agenda 

Regular 
Agenda 

Closed 
Session 

 

 

PRESENTER/INFORMATION CONTACT:    Phillip Cordeiro, Assistant Finance Director 
 
ITEM TO BE CONSIDERED 

Subject:    
Itinerant Merchant Permit Policy 

 
Attachment(s):   
Draft Itinerant Merchant Permit Policy  
Draft Itinrant Merchant Permit Application 

 
Brief Summary:   
As of July 2015, the authority of municipalities to levy a privilege license tax on businesses was repealed. However, 
legislation still enables municipalities to regulate itinerant merchants. The town’s staff has drafted and enacted a 
policy that most closely resembles the previous privilege license policy, but lacks clear guidance from the board in 
light of the recent changes in state law. 

 
Action Requested:   
Staff requests that the town board review the attached draft itinerant merchant policy and application and provide 
direction. The board can choose any of the following actions: (1) pass a resolution to enact an ordinance consistent 
with the draft policy as is; (2) recommend changes to the draft policy and pass a resolution to enact an ordinance 
consistent with the revised draft policy; or (3) rescind and abolish municipal regulations pertaining to itinerant 
merchants. 

 
ISSUE OVERVIEW 

Background Information & Issue Summary:   
See “Brief Summary” above. 

 
Financial Impacts:   
Eliminating the registration requirement saves staff time but also eliminates any associated fees. For that reason we 
believe the financial impact to be negligible. 

 
Staff Recommendations/Comments:   
Staff recommends the board rescind and abolish all municipal regulations pertaining to itinerant merchants; however, 
staff also recommends that the board reserve the right to revisit the subject at a later date if unforeseen problems 
arise as a result of not regulating itinerant merchants. 

 



Town of Hillsborough
P.O. Box 429
Hillsborough, NC 27278

Page 1 of 1
Pursuant to NCGS Chapter 132, Public Records, this correspondence and any responses to it may be considered public

record and as such are subject to request and review by anyone at any time.

Town of Hillsborough Itinerant Merchant Permit Ordinance

Pursuant to N.C.G.S. 160A-178 and N.C.G.S. 153A-125, the Town of Hillsborough has enacted the following ordinance to regulate
activity of itinerant merchants within the Town’s jurisdiction. The public interest served by the this ordinance is to preserve public
safety by clearly identifying all itinerant merchants operating within the Town’s jurisdiction and to prevent individuals, merchants,
and/or entities that pose a threat to public safety from operating within the Town’s jurisdiction.

An itinerant merchant is any individual, business, corporation, or entity that attempts to engage in an act of commerce (as defined
below) within the Town’s jurisdiction and does not maintain a fixed place of business therein. While the final determination for which
merchants classify as itinerant shall be left to the Town’s administration, merchants that do not continuously operate in the same, fixed
location for at least six months each year will generally be classified as itinerant and subject to this ordinance.

Acts that qualify as commerce under this ordinance include, but are not limited to: [1] acceptance of payment of any kind (including
donations); [2] solicitation of payment of any kind (including donations; regardless of whether a payment is processed); [3] entering
into an agreement to engage in an act of commerce in the future; and [4] distribution of information with the intent of generating an
act of commerce now or in the future.

Acts that do not qualify as commerce under this ordinance include: [1] giving away free merchandise without solicitation for and/or
acceptance of payment of any kind (both now and in the future); and [2] exclusively providing information to the public without the
intent to generate an act of commerce now or in the future.

All merchants that sell prepared food and/or prepared beverages shall also be subject to the Town’s prepared food and beverage tax.

The Town’s Planning Department shall maintain overall responsibility for permitting ordinance (including ordinance formulation and
promulgation). The Planning Department shall publish additional guidance and/or changes to this ordinance as directed by the Town
Manager and/or Board of Commissioners as necessary.

All itinerant merchants subject to this ordinance shall complete and submit an Itinerant Merchant Permit Application to the Town’s
Finance Department. A reasonable permit fee shall be assessed by the Finance Department to recoup the administrative and
enforcement costs of this regulation. Fees shall be published in the Town’s annual budget. The Finance Department shall review and
process all applications within a reasonable amount of time. Permits shall be valid for a period of time as published on approved
permits issued by the Town’s Finance Department. Violations of this ordinance shall be considered to be noncriminal/civil infractions
as provided by N.C.G.S. 14-4 and shall be punishable by a $100 fine, per occurrence, and shall be enforced by submission to the
North Carolina Debt Setoff Clearinghouse and/or civil ligation (including, but not limited to small claims and/or district court).

Application Instructions

A copy of the Town’s Itinerant Merchant Permit Application may be downloaded by clicking HERE (“Forms” section). Please
submit a signed and completed application (including payment) in person or via U.S. Mail before conducting business within
the Town’s jurisdiction. The only acceptable form of payment is a personal or business check. Please do not mail cash.

If submitting your application in person, please visit the Town of Hillsborough Finance Department located in the Town Annex at
137 N. Churton St, Hillsborough, NC 27278.

If submitting your report via U.S. Mail, please mail your application and check to:
Town of Hillsborough Finance Dept.
Attn: Accounts Payable, Itinerant Merchant
P.O. Box 429
Hillsborough, NC 27278

Any questions pertaining to the Town’s Itinerant Merchant Permit ordinance may be submitted via e-mail to
Accounts.Payable@hillsboroughnc.org or via phone by calling (919) 732-2104.



	
	
Town	of	Hillsborough	
P.O.	Box	429	
Hillsborough,	NC	27278	
	
	

	

	
Page	1	of	1	

	

Pursuant	to	NCGS	Chapter	132,	Public	Records,	this	correspondence	and	any	responses	to	it	may	be	considered	public	
record	and	as	such	are	subject	to	request	and	review	by	anyone	at	any	time.	

 

ITINERANT MERCHANT PERMIT APPLICATION INSTRUCTIONS 
 

Please submit a signed and completed application (including payment) in person or via U.S. Mail before conducting business 
within the Town’s jurisdiction. The only acceptable form of payment is a personal or business check. Please do not mail cash. 
 
If submitting your application in person, please visit the Town of Hillsborough Finance Department located in the Town Annex at 
137 N. Churton St, Hillsborough, NC 27278. 
 
If submitting your report via U.S. Mail, please mail your application and check to: 

Town of Hillsborough Finance Dept. 
Attn: Accounts Payable, Itinerant Merchant 
P.O. Box 429 
Hillsborough, NC 27278 

 
Any questions pertaining to the Town’s Itinerant Merchant Permit policy may be submitted via e-mail to 
Accounts.Payable@HillsboroughNC.org or via phone by calling (919) 732-2104. 
 
 

TOWN OF HILLSBOROUGH • ITINERANT MERCHANT PERMIT APPLICATION 
 
A ) Legal Name of Business ____________________________ 
                                                                           *Use individual/owner name if no business name 
 

Doing Business As _________________________________ 
                                                                           *Use individual/owner name if no business name 
 

Operator of Business  _______________________________ 
                                                                                *Provide responsible individual's name (print)   

B ) Mailing Address ________________________________ 
 

 ___________________________________________ 
 

 ___________________________________________ 
  

Location(s) Where Conducting Business _____________________ 
 

___________________________________________ 

 

___________________________________________ 

                  *Provide physical address(es), business name(s), intersection(s), etc. to best describe location 
 

Phone # ______________________________________ 
 

E-Mail  _______________________________________ 
 

C) Mode of Business:  
 

Brick & Mortar Stand / Tent 
Door-to-Door Vehicle-Based 

 

Nature of Business _______________________________ 
                                                                                          *What will you be selling? 

 

Will you sell any prepared food?           Yes            No 
  *If yes, Hillsborough Single-Day Prepaid Food & Beverage Tax Application is required 
 

Will you sell any prepared beverages?          Yes           No 
  *If yes, Hillsborough Single-Day Prepaid Food & Beverage Tax Application is required 
 

Will you sell any beer and/or wine?     
  *If yes to either, Hillsborough Single-Day Prepaid Food & Beverage Tax Application is required AND 
   Hillsborough Beer/Wine Business License Application are required 
 

Beer:                  Yes   No 
Wine:                 Yes   No 

 

Will you operate as a taxicab?                Yes             No 
  *If yes, Hillsborough Taxicab Business License Application is required 
 

D) Fees Enclosed:    
 

Itinerant Merchant Permit ( $15 ):       Yes           No 
 

Total Fees Enclosed:  _______________________________ 
 

E) 12 Digit State Sales Tax #  H - ________________________ 
                                                                                                               *if applicable 
 

F) Signature  ___________________________________ 
 

Print Name  ____________________________________ 
 

Title ________________________________________ 
 

 


	BOC_Agenda_050916
	Item 4.A Recognition of Citizen Academy Graduates and Presentation of Certificates
	Item 4.B Introduction of Officer William Felts and public reaffirmation of his Oath of Office
	Item 5.A  Board of Adjustment – Interview Rob Bray for an out-of-town position
	Item 5.B Orange County Animal Services Advisory Board – Interview Kimberly Rider for appointment as the Town of Hillsborough representative
	Item 5.C Orange County Animal Services Advisory Board – Interview Victoria Hudson for appointment as the Town of Hillsborough representative
	Item 6.A  Board of Adjustment – Adopt a resolution requesting the Board of County Commissioners to appoint Rob Bray to an out-of-town seat with a term ending June 30, 2017
	Item 6.B Orange County Animal Services Advisory Board – Adopt a resolution requesting the Board of County Commissioners to appoint a Town of Hillsborough representative with a term ending June 30, 2018
	Item 9  Departmental Reports
	Item 10.A Approve Board of Commissioner Meeting Minutes
	Item 10.B Miscellaneous budget amendments and transfers
	Item 10.C Receive report from the Schools Adequate Public Facilities Ordinance Technical Advisory Committee regarding school projections and data
	Item 10.D Interlocal agreement regarding funding and responsibilities related to the Community Home Trust
	Item 10.E Traffic Calming Policy revisions
	Item 10.F Approve letter of support for the agreement between the Occoneechee Band of the Saponi Nation and Orange County to re-establish a village site in Hillsborough
	Item 10.G Approve resolution authorizing the 2016-2017 HOME program design
	Item 10.H Mental Health Awareness Month Proclamation
	Item 10.I  Consider Professional Services Agreement with EMA Resources, Inc. for Water Plant residuals removal
	Item 10.J Consider acceptance of water & sewer facilities at Waterstone Estates subdivision, Phase 2, and start of 1-year warranty period
	Item 10.K  Consider changing the name of the Old Water Plant facility to the "Adron F. Thompson Water/Sewer Facility"
	Item 10.L Encroachment agreement request for 125 Bonaparte Drive
	Item 10.M  Interlocal Agreement for Orange County to administer collection of stormwater fees and charges to be levied against
and charged to properties located within the town
	Item 10.N Authorize Manager to enter into contracts for design and survey work related to relocating town hall annex and conceptual design for police and fire station
	Item 11.A Discussion of service impact report related to the potential annexation of Northside Mobile Home Park
	Item 11.B Receive request from Mystery Brewing to authorize use of Riverwalk for a “parade” on Saturday, June 18
	Item 11.C Receive request from Classical American Homes Preservation Trust to install pedestrian warning and trail crossing signs on Elizabeth Brady Road
	Item 11.D Receive and discuss conceptual site layout for the train station portion of the town’s 20 acres on Orange Grove Street
	Item 11.E Ordinance revision amending Town Code, Section 11-17, Specifications for Solid Waste receptacles
	Item 11.F Itinerant Merchant Permit Policy



